
BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

Allied Universal Corporation and 1 
Chemical Formulators, Inc.’s Petition to ) Docket No. 040086-E1 
Vacate Order No. PSC-01-1003-AS-E1 ) Filed: April 22,2004 
Approving, as Modified and Clarified, the ) 
Settlement Agreement between Allied 1 
Universal Corporation and Chemical ) 
Formulators, Inc., and Tampa Electric 1 
Company and Request for Additional 1 
Relief. 1 

NOTICE OF INTENT TO REQUEST 
CONFIDENTIAL CLASSIFICATION 

Odyssey Manufacturing Company (“Odyssey”), by and through undersigned counsel and 

pursuant to Rule 25-22.006(3)(a), Florida Administrative Code, files thsNotice ofIntent to Request 

Confidential Classification and states as follows: 

1. On April 22, 2004, Circuit Judge Michael B. Chavies signed the Agreed Order on 
- 

Defendants’ Emergency Motion for Contempt and for Sanctions in Allied Universal Corporation, 

et al, v. Odyssey Manufacturing Company, et al, Case No. 01-27699 CA25 in the Circuit Court of 

the 1 lth Judicial Circuit in and for Miami-Dade County, Florida. (Attachment 1). TheAgt.eed orded. 

provides in part that: 

The parties are hereby permitted to file any and all documents and 
deposition transcripts obtained during the captioned matter with the 
Florida Public Service Commission (“PSC”), Docket No. 040086-E1, 
subject to said party seeking confidential classification thereof 
pursuant to Rule 25-22.006, F.A.C. 

2. Accordingly, concurrently with the Notice, Odyssey is filing an original and one (1) 

copy of the transcript of the December 18, 2003 deposition of Stephen Sidelko in the aforesaid 
p y ! p f L -  t d  I t ’  

‘- i! 4 7 g 5 f , K  22 2; 
;:FSC-C<:”. 1 .  l y . / i l l  - ’ 1 - 



circuit court proceeding (Attachment 2), together with the January 23,2004, Errata Sheet, as signed 

by Stephen Sidelko (Attachment 3), in an envelope marked “Confidential” with the confidential 

portions of the transcript and errata sheet highlighted on the copy. Odyssey has also filed fifteen 

(15) edited copies of said transcript and errata sheet, with the confidential infomation therein 

redacted. 

3. The vast majority of the information for which confidential classification will be 

requested is intended to be and is treated by Odyssey as private and has not been publicly disclosed. 

The balance of the redacted information, on information and belief, is intended to be and is treated 

by Allied Universal Corporation and/or Tampa Electric Company as private and has not been 

publicly disclosed. Odyssey will extend its best efforts to collaborate with saidparties to ensure that 

the confidentiality of said balance of the redacted information is preserved. 

4. The original of this Notice is being filed in the Division of Records and Reporting 

and a copy is being served on all counsel of record. 

Respectfully submitted this 22nd day of April, 2004. 

c 
WXYNE L. SCHIEFELBEIN, 
Of Counsel 
ROSE, SUNDSTROM & BENTLEY LLP 
2548 Blairstone Pines Drive 
Tallahassee, FL 32301 

(850) 656-4029 (Fax) 
Attorney for  Defendants 

(850) 877-6555 



. 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that a true and correct copy of the foregoing Notice of Intent to 
Request Confidential Classification has been fbmished via Hand Delivery" andor U.S. Mail to the 
following on this 22"d day of April, 2004: 

Kenneth A. Hofhan,  Esq. 
J. Stephen Menton, Esq. 
Rutledge, Ecenia, Purnell & Hoffman, P.A. 
P.O. Box 551 
Tallahassee, FL 32302 

Daniel K. Bandklayder, Esq. 
Anania, Bandklayder, Blackwell, 

100 S.E. 2"d Avenue, Suite 4300 
Miami, FL 33131 

Baumgarten, Tonicella & Stein 

James D. Beasley, Esq. 
Ausley & McMullen 
227 South Calhoun Street 
P.O. Box 391 
Tallahassee, FL 32302 

Harry W. Long, Jr., Esq. 
Tampa Electric Company 
702 N. Franklin St., 6th Floor 
Tampa, FL 33602 

*Martha C. Brown, Esq. 
Marlene K. Stem, Esq. 
Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 

Harold McLean, Esq. 
Office of Public Counsel 
Florida Public Service Commission 
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard 
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850 

OdysseyMotice of Intent to Req Confidential Classification 
-\;t;ayne L. Schiefelbein, Esq. 
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04-22-04 09:50 From-RUDEN McCLOSKY 14 F L  NT 
P 
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Plaintiffs, 

V. 

ODYSSEY MANUFACTURZNG 
COMPANY, a Delaware Corporation, and : ’ 
sENTRV INDUSTRIES, InC., a Florida : 
corporation, 

Defendants. 

Court orhenvise being Wly advised Sn the premises, it i s  hereby 

C O N S D E W ,  ORDERED ANP A Q m G E D  as follows: 

1. The Comt’s Rotecrive Order dated Sqtmber 3, 2002 remains in full force and 

effect. 

2- The parries are hereby p d t t e d  to file any and all documents and deposition 

transclip~s obtain4 durisg the captioned matter With the Florida Public Service Commission 



04-22-04 09:51 From-RUDEN McCLOSKY 14 F L  NT 
I 

I; : 

P W S U ~ T  to Rule 25-22.006, F.A.C. 

March, 2004. 

Copies Furnished: 

2 
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I N  THE C I R C U I T  COURT OF THE ELEVENTH J U D I C I A L  
C I R C U I T  I N  AND FOR MIAMI-DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA 

CASE NO.: 01-27699 CA 2 5  

A L L I E D  UNIVERSAL CORPORATION, 
a F l o r i d a  C o r p o r a t i o n ;  and CHEMICAL 
FORMULATORS, I N C .  , a F1 o r i  da C o r p o r a t i  on, 

P1 a i  n t i  f f s , 
vs . 
ODYSSEY MANUFACTURING COMPANY, a 
D e l a w a r e  corporat ion;  and SENTRY 
INDUSTRIES,  I N C . ,  a F l o r i d a  
C o r p o r a t i o n ,  

D e f e n d a n t s .  
/ . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  

100 S.E. second s t r e e t  
M i  ami , F 1  ori  da 
Thursday, D e c e m b e r  1 8 ,  2003 
1O:OO a.m. - 3:50 p.m. 

CONTINUED DEPOSITION OF STEPHEN SIDELKO 

Taken on beha l f  o f  t h e  P l a i n t i f f ,  A l l i e d ,  

be fo re  J A M I E  TAYLOR, R e g i s t e r e d  P r o f e s s i o n a l  

R e p o r t e r  and N o t a r y  P u b l i c  f o r  t h e  s t a t e  o f  F l o r i d a  

a t  Large, pursuant t o  a N o t i c e  of Taking D e p o s i t i o n  

f i l e d  i n  t h e  above cause. 
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ANANIA BANDKLAYDER BLACKWELL BAUMGARTEN 
TORRICELLA & STEIN,  ESQ. by 
DANIEL K .  BANDKLAYDER, ESQ. 
100 S.E.  second S t r e e t ,  S t e .  4300 
Miami, FL 3 3 1 3 1  
A t to rney  f o r  t he  P l a i n t i f f  

RUDEN MCCLOSKY, by 

200 E. Broward Blvd. 
F t .  Lauderdale, FL 3 3 1 3 1  
A t to rney  f o r  t he  Defendants 

GLENN N. SMITH,  ESQ. 

ALSO PRESENT: 

MICHAEL KOVEN 

WITNESS EXAMINATION BY PAC E 

STEPHEN SIDELKO D i r e c t  M r .  Bandklayder 148 

*** INDEX OF PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBITS *** 
NO. 3 ,  customer contac t  note f rom Allman 18 9 

No. 4, S ide l ko ' s  a f f i d a v i t  t o  TECO 208 

NO. 5 ,  memo f rom Allman 208 

NO. 6, F l o r i d a  bleach market summary 257 

NO. 7, l e t t e r  t e r m i n a t i n g  r e s t r i c t i v e  
covenant 271 

No. 8, DeAngeliS' ECU cos t  est imate 276 

No. 9, memo re :  o t e n t i a l  new i n d u s t r i a l  
customer - E leach p l a n t  279 

NO. 10, A l lman's  6/8/98 memo t o  Gates 285 

(Exh ib i t s  4-10 at tached hereto.  E x h i b i t  
3 was i n a d v e r t e n t l y  n o t  attached.) 

148 

1 STEPHEN SIDELKO, 

2 having been d u l y  sworn and responded "I do," was 

3 examined and t e s t i f i e d  as fo l l ows :  

4 DIRECT EXAMINATION 
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Q okay. Good morning, M r .  S ide lko.  You 

have had your depos i t ion  taken before i n  t h e  case. 

YOU understand t h a t  t h i s  i s  a con t inua t ion  o f  your 

p rev ious  depos i t ion .  You're s t i l l  sworn t o  t e l l  

t h e  t r u t h ,  under oath, and you know t h a t  a l l  your 

answers a re  be ing  recorded by our repo r te r  today. 

BY MR. BANDKLAYDER: 

A Yes. 

Q 

Thein.  

o f f e r e d  M r .  Thein a p o s i t i o n  w i t h  Odyssey? 

v e r y  w e l l .  I ' d  l i k e  t o  s t a r t  w i t h  corky  

D id  t h e r e  come a p o i n t  i n  t i m e  when someone 

A Yes. 

Q who f i r s t  contacted M r .  Thein about 

t h a t ?  

A I d i d .  

Q And how d i d  t h a t  come about? 

A 

run it. 

would have been l e f t  t o  me t o  run. I d i d n ' t  want 

t o  move t o  Tampa. He was my f i r s t ,  bes t  candidate 

t h a t  I came up w i t h .  

I was going t o  have t o  h i r e  somebody t o  

I f  I d i d n ' t  h i r e  somebody t o  run i t ,  i t  

149 

1 Q How d i d  you know o f  M r .  Thein? 

2 A M r .  Thein had been s e l l i n g  c h l o r i n e  and 

3 caus t i c  i n  t h e  F l o r i d a  market f o r  occ iden ta l  

4 chemical f o r  f i v e  t o  ten  years. Sentry I n d u s t r i e s  

5 was one o f  h i s  customers. 

6 

7 the  bes t  candidate? 

Q why was i t  t h a t  you f e l t  t h a t  he was 

page 3 
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I thought he would have been very  A 

s t rong i n  the  sales aspect. 

i n s e l l  i ng chl  o r i  ne gas t o  muni c i  pa l  i ti es . 
He had had experience 

Q Do you know approx imate ly  fo r  how many 

years he had been doing t h a t ?  

A His  career was a salesperson. The same 

f i v e  t o  t e n  years.  

Q Had he ever been invo lved  i n  bleach 

sa les  t o  your knowledge? 

A Not t o  my knowledge. 

Q when d i d  you f i r s t  broach the  sub jec t  

w i t h  M r .  Thein about h i s  coming t o  work f o r  

odyssey? 

A Sometime i n  t h e  summer o f  --  poss ib l y  

t h e  sp r ing ,  poss ib l y  the  summer of 1998. 

Q And was the re  any th ing  i n  w r i t i n g ,  

e i t h e r  from you t o  him o r  him t o  you r e l a t i n g  t o  

these d iscuss ions? 

150 
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A NO. 

Q NO? 

A NO. 

Q For example, you never gave him a 

w r i t t e n  o f f e r  o r  a 1 e t t e r  o r  any th ing  1 i ke t h a t ?  

A NO. 

Q when I ask i f  t h e r e  was any th ing  i n  

w r i t i n g  f rom him t o  you o r  you t o  him, I don ' t  mean 

necessa r i l y  you i n d i v i d u a l l y .  

o r  sen t r y  o r  anybody on your b e h a l f .  

I mean from odyssey 

was the re  

Page 4 
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anyth ing a t  a l l  i n  w r i t i n g  from anyone t o  o r  from 

Corky Thein r e l a t i n g  t o  t h e  p o s s i b i l i t y  o f  h i s  

coming t o  work f o r  odyssey? 

A No. 

Q SO i t  was a l l  verbal? 

A Yes.  

Q And how many conversations 

approximately would you say you had w i t h  him about 

t h a t ?  

A A t  l e a s t  t h r e e  o r  f o u r .  Maybe a h a l f  a 

dozen. 

Q what happened dur ing  t h e  l a s t  

conversat i  on? 

A He t o l d  me t h a t  he would n o t  be 

i nteres ted  i n  t h e  p o s i t i o n .  

151 

Q what were t h e  reasons t h a t  he was n o t  

i n t e r e s t e d  i n  t h e  p o s i t i o n ?  

A what reasons d i d  he g i v e  me? 

Q Yes. 

A He t o l d  me he had another o p p o r t u n i t y  

t o  s t a r t  h i s  own business, and a f t e r  l o n g  

d e l i b e r a t i o n ,  he decided t h a t  would be b e t t e r  fo r  

him. 

Q DO you know i f  he u l t i m a t e l y  went o u t  

i n t o  h i  s own business? 

A He t o l d  me t h a t  he d i d .  

Q Have you been i n  touch w i t h  him s ince  

then? 

Page 5 
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And d i d  he ge t  h i s  own business 

A Yes. 

Q 

s ta r ted?  

A I haven' t  seen any documents t h a t  say 

He says t h a t  he owns the  t h a t  he owns i t .  

business, and he --  as a matter o f  f a c t ,  he 's  a 

customer. 

Q O f  who? 

A A l l i e d ,  odyssey and Sentry.  

Q over  what pe r iod  o f  t i m e  would you say 

these h a l f  a dozen o r  so conversations took p lace  

between you and M r .  Thein? I n  other  words, d i d  i t  

1 5  2 
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1 3  
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16 

. take p lace  over  a week, a month, s i x  months o r  

what 's your bes t  est imate? 

A F i v e  o r  s i x  months. 

Q why d i d  they  -- why d i d  t h e  

conversat ions cont inue over such a r e l a t i v e l y  l ong  

t ime  frame? 

A 

Q w e l l  , as I understand i t , t h e  sub jec t  

I d o n ' t  understand the  quest ion.  

o f  t h e  conversat ions was your proposal t o  have him 

become a genera l  manager f o r  odyssey, i s  t h a t  

r i g h t ?  

A Yes, t h a t ' s  co r rec t .  

Q why d i d  i t  take  s i x  months o r  so t o  

t a l k  about t h a t ?  

conversat ion and your o f f e r  and h i s  u l t i m a t e  

dec is ion  have been completed w i t h i n  a f e w  weeks? 

Why wasn't -- why cou ldn ' t  t h a t  

page 6 
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DO you understand what I ' m  asking? 1 7  

1 8  A NO. 

19 Q why d i d  i t  drag ou t  f o r  s i x  months? 

20 MR. SMITH: o b j e c t  t o  the  form. Answer 

2 1  i t  i f  you can. 

22 THE WITNESS: Ne i ther  one o f  us was i n  

23 a hu r ry .  The t ime al lowed f o r  t h a t  amount o f  

24 d e l i b e r a t i o n  on h i s  p a r t .  

2 5  Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) Were t h e r e  any --  

1 5 3  
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A we d i d n ' t  own any land.  There r e a l l y  

was no odyssey i n  1998. 

Q when d i d  odyssey purchase t h e  l a n d  o r  

maybe I should ask when was the  l a n d  purchased t h a t  

odyssey u l t i m a t e l y  loca ted  i t s  f a c i l i t y  on? 

A 

Q 

The c los ing  was i n  September o f  1998. 

Had he a l ready turned t h e  j o b  down 

p r i o r  t o  t h a t  t i m e ,  p r i o r  t o  the  t ime  you c losed on 

t h e  land? 

A No. He was s t i l l  cons ider ing.  

Q when was i t  t h a t  he gave you h i s  

dec i  s i  on? 

A Around Thanksgiving o f  1998. 

Q D i  d he have any operat ions exper ience 

i n  terms o f  opera t ing  a manufactur ing f a c i l i t y ?  

A Not t o  my knowledge. 

Q When you had these conversat ions w i t h  

him, were they  by telephone o r  i n  person o r  some 

combi na t ion? 

Page 7 
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20 A They were i n  person. 

2 1  Q where d i d  these conversat ions take 

22 place? 

2 3  A I n  my o f f i c e  i n  sent ry  I n d u s t r i e s .  

24 Q was he there  because he was making 

25 sa les c a l l s  o r  s e r v i c i n g  t h e  Sentry account? 
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A Yes. 

Q So the re  were no telephone -- were 

t h e r e  any telephone conversat ions between t h e  two 

of you about your o f f e r i n g  him a p o s i t i o n ?  

A There may have been. 

Q 

h i s  o f f i c e ?  

would they  have been t o  h i s  home o r  t o  

A He would have c a l l e d  me. 

Q 

your o f f i c e ?  

A He would have c a l l e d  me a t  my o f f i c e .  

Q I f  you had h i r e d  M r .  Thein,  who would 

have a c t u a l l y  run t h e  p l a n t ?  I n  o the r  words, who 

would be i n  charge o f  operat ions? 

would he have c a l l e d  you a t  home o r  a t  

A How was I intend ing  t o  s t r u c t u r e  t h e  

company below M r .  Thein i s  your quest ion? 

Q Yes, i n  terms o f  operat ions e s p e c i a l l y .  

A IS t h a t  a 1 eg i  ti mate ques t i  on? 

MR. SMITH:  I f  you know t h e  answer. 

THE WITNESS: I d o n ' t  have a d e f i n i t e  

answer because we d i d n ' t  come t o  t h a t ,  b u t  I 

suppose I would have h i  red  somebody w i t h  

Page 8 
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M r .  Thein.  

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) when you were 
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n e g o t i a t i n g  w i t h  M r .  Thein,  was there  any 

d i  scussion about compensation? 

A Yes. 

Q 

A 

D i d  you make him an o f f e r ?  

I t o l d  him what h i s  sa la ry  would be i f  

he accepted t h e  j o b .  

o f f e r ?  

would you consider t h a t  an 

Q Yes. 

A okay. Then I made him an o f f e r .  

Q How much was t h e  o f f e r ?  

A 

Q As p a r t  o f  t h a t  o f f e r ,  was the re  any --  
$100,000 a year as a s t a r t i n g  s a l a r y .  

were t h e r e  any inc reases ,  p e r i o d i c  increases? 

A I d o n ' t  r e c a l l  t h a t  we t a l k e d  about 

t h a t .  

Q was t h e r e  any back and f o r t h  

n e g o t i a t i o n  over  t h e  compensation issue? 

A NO. 

Q D id  M r .  Thein ever t e l l  you something 

t o  t h e  e f f e c t  t h a t  he f e l t  t h a t  u n t i l  you obta ined 

an e l e c t r i c  r a t e  commitment, the  plans f o r  odyssey 

were t o o  i n d e f i n i t e  o r  words t o  t h a t  e f f e c t ?  

A NO. 

Q D i d  M r .  Thein --  d i d  you and M r .  Thein 

have any d iscuss ions about P a t r i c k  Allman? 

Page 9 
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A NO. 

Q D i d  anyone witness any o f  t h e  

conversat ions between you and M r .  Thein regard ing 

your employment o f f e r ?  

A I d o n ' t  know o f  any. 

Q Was anyone e lse  i nvo l ved  i n  t h e  

dec i  sion-maki ng process regarding corky  The? n? 

A No. Can I ask another quest ion? 

Q Yes. 

(Thereupon, there  was a d iscuss ion  o f f  

t h e  record.)  

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) Is t he re  any th ing  

you want t o  add t o  t h e  previous answer? 

MR. SMITH: NO. Not p e r t i n e n t .  

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) D id  you have any 

conversat ions w i t h  M r .  Thein about p rocur ing  any 

e l e c t r i c  r a t e  commitment from TECO? 

A I may have mentioned t h a t  t h a t  was one 

o f  t he  issues t h a t  had t o  be resolved f o r  t h e  

o v e r a l l  f e a s i  b i  1 i t y .  

Q what, i f  anything, d i d  he say about 

t h a t ?  

A Nothing t h a t  I r e c a l l .  

Q when i s  t h e  l a s t  t ime t h a t  you had any 

contac t  w i t h  M r .  Thein? 

/ 

\ 

157 
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A Few. months ago, th ree ,  f ou r ,  f i v e ,  s i x  

months ago. 

Q what was t h e  occasion f o r  t h a t ?  

A Telephone c a l l  about one o f  h i s  

customers i n  F o r t  P ierce.  

Q D i d  you c a l l  him o r  d i d  he c a l l  you? 

A He c a l l e d  me. 

Q what was t h e  phone c a l l  about? 

A The terms f o r  a s a l e  t o  h i s  customer i n  

Fo r t  P ierce.  

Q So he was I guess o rde r ing  some product 

t o  be shipped t o  a customer o f  h i s  o r  something 

1 i ke t h a t ?  

A He was n e g o t i a t i n g  the  terms o f  t h e  

shipment t o  h i s  customer. 

Q 

f rom Sentry? 

Th is  i s  something he was purchasing 

A A t  t h a t  t ime  i t  was something he was 

purchasing from sent ry .  

Q Have you ever discussed any aspect o f  

t h i s  case w i t h  him? 

A By t h i s  case you mean t h e  a n t i t r u s t  

cas e? 

Q w e l l ,  yes, a l though I ' m  n o t  j u s t  

l i m i t i n g  i t  t o  a n t i t r u s t .  Th is  e n t i r e  l a w s u i t ,  

158 

1 t h i  s 1 i ti g a t i  on? 

2 A But excl  ud i  ng t h e  PSC. 

3 Q why don ' t  we take  i t  one s tep  a t  a 
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t ime.  The PSC case ended i n  e a r l y  2000, and I 

b e l i e v e  t h i s  case was f i l e d  i n  November o f  2000, so 

s t a r t i n g  w i t h  t h i s  case, which was f i l e d  here i n  

s t a t e  c o u r t  i n  around November o f  2000, have you 

had any conversat ions w i t h  him -- 
A I d o n ' t  t h i n k  so. I d o n ' t  b e l i e v e  so. 

Q what conversat ions,  i f  any, have you 

had w i t h  him about t h e  PSC case? 

A I t o l d  him t h a t  one o f  A l l i e d ' s  c la ims 

was t h a t  dur ing  t h e  t i m e  t h a t  I had o f f e r e d  him a 

j o b  and he was d e l i b e r a t i n g  t h a t  A l l i e d  a l leged 

t h a t  Allman knew he was going t o  be t h e  general 

manager and whatever your c la im was, d i d  some 

crooked deal ings t o  g e t  us an i l l e g a l  e l e c t r i c  

r a t e .  

Q And what, i f  anyth ing,  d i d  he say about 

t h a t ?  

A I don I t r e c a l l  . 
Q what was t h e  purpose o f  your t e l l i n g  

him what you t o l d  him about t h a t ?  

A My purpose was t h a t  we may have needed 

him t o  t e s t i f y .  

159 

1 Q I n  t h e  PSC case? 

2 A yes. 

3 Q Have you spoken t o  him about p o s s i b l y  

4 t e s t i f y i n g  i n  t h i s  case? 

5 A No. 

6 Q HaS anybody? 
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A Not t h a t  I know o f .  

Q Have you had any o ther  conversat ions 

w i t h  M r .  Thein about e i t h e r  t h i s  case o r  t h e  PSC 

case? 

A Not t h a t  I r e c a l l ,  

Q Have you had any conversat ions w i t h  him 

about A1 1 i ed o r  CFI? 

A He's mentioned A l l i e d .  He's mentioned 

A l l i e d  i n  our conversat ions.  

Q 

A 

And i n  what context  d i d  t h a t  come up? 

The purpose o f  con tac t ing  Sentry  and 

odyssey was t o  f i n d  an a l t e r n a t e  s u p p l i e r ,  t h a t  

sometimes he had d i f f i c u l t y  havi  ng A1 1 i ed make t h e  

c o r r e c t  d e l i v e r i e s .  

Q 

A I n  Orlando. 

Q And t o  your knowledge, i s  he buy ing 

where i s he present1 y 1 ocated? 

bleach from e i t h e r  A l l i e d  o r  CFI? 

A I understood t h a t  he was. 

160 

Q DO you know who's a c t u a l l y  -- w e l l ,  do 

you know where t h e  bleach t h a t  he 's  g e t t i n g  f rom 

A l l i e d  o r  C F I  i s  produced? 

A I don ' t  have the  f a i n t e s t  idea .  

Q Are you present ly  --  when I say you, I 

mean e i t h e r  Sentry  o r  odyssey, a back-up s u p p l i e r  

o f  b leach f o r  M r .  Thein 's  business? 

A I bel ieve  t h a t  I ' m  h i s  s u p p l i e r  f o r  a 

few of  h i s  accounts from sentry ,  and I a l s o  b e l i e v e  
Page 1 3  
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t h a t  he does some business w i t h  Odyssey, b u t  he 

arranged those d e t a i l s  h imse l f  w i t h  Marvin and Pat, 

so I d o n ' t  know where, i f  anywhere, they go f o r  

him, and I would suppose t h a t  he s t i l l  does 

business w i t h  A l l i e d  a t  o ther  l oca t i ons .  

Q A l l  r i g h t .  s h i f t i n g  gears here t o  

another sub jec t .  

regu la to ry  agencies o r  personnel regarding e i t h e r  

A l l i e d  o r  CFI? 

Have you had any contact  w i t h  any 

MR. SMITH: Does t h a t  i nc lude  PSC? 

MR. BANDKLAYDER: Oh, yes, we can 

i n c l u d e  PSC. 

THE WITNESS: I appeared before the  PSC 

i n  t h e  TECO l a w s u i t .  

G1 enn . 
I have a quest ion f o r  

(Thereupon, the re  was a d iscuss ion o f f  

161 

1 the record. )  

2 

3 

MR. SMITH: Going t o  take  a break. 

(Thereupon, a recess was taken.) 

4 (Thereupon, the  record  was read back by 

5 t he  r e p o r t e r  .) 

6 THE WITNESS: The l u s t i c e  Department 

7 contacted me regarding A l l i e d ,  and we d o n ' t  

8 know whether t h a t ' s  a r e g u l a t o r y  agency o r  

9 no t ,  so I ' m  -- 
10 Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) D i d n ' t  mat te r .  I 

11 was going t o  ask you about them anyway. 

1 2  A That ' s  t h e  on ly  r e g u l a t o r y  agency w i t h  
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whom I have had contact  about A l l i e d  and none f o r  

C F I  . 
Q To your knowledge, has anyone e i t h e r  

a f f i l i a t e d  w i t h  Sentry o r  odyssey o r  a c t i n g  on 

t h e i r  b e h a l f  had any contact  w i t h  any regu la to ry  

agencies o r  personnel about A l l i e d  o r  C F I ?  

A Not t o  my knowledge. 

Q And I ' m  s p e c i f i c a l l y  i n c l u d i n g  i n  t h a t  

quest ion 1 i ke, f o r  example , H i  11 sboro Envi ronmental 

p r o t e c t i o n  Commi s s i  on. 

w i t h  them? 

Has anyone had any contac t  

A Not t o  my knowledge. 

Q O r  Department o f  Environmental 

162 
, 
i 
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1 2  

1 3  

14 

15 

Regul a t i  ons? 

A same answer. 

Q And Uni ted States EnVi ronmental 

P ro tec t i on  Agency? 

A same answer. 

Q Has anyone a f f i l i a t e d  wi th Sentry  o r  

odyssey had any contact  w i t h  e i t h e r  t h e  P o r t  o f  

Tampa o r  any o f  t h e  dockage f a c i l i t y  opera tors  a t  

the  Por t  o f  Tampa about A l l i e d  o r  CFI? 

A same answer. 

Q Answer being no? 

A Answer being no t  t o  my knowledge. 

Q YOU haven' t  had any such contac t ,  

r i g h t ?  

A N e i t h e r  do I know o f  any such contac t .  
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Q Fai r enough. 

when d i d  you f i r s t  have contac t  w i t h  

t h e  Department o f  Jus t ice?  

A 

Q And who c a l l e d  who? 

A 

Q 

A I be l i eve  so. 

Q And p r i o r  t o  the  t i m e  you received a 

Approximately t h e  summer o f  2000. 

I was c a l l e d  be fore  a grand j u r y .  

Does t h a t  mean you got a subpoena? 

subpoena, had you had any contact  w i t h  anyone f rom 

16 3 
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1 3  

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

t h e  Department o f  Jus t i ce?  

A NO. 

Q So when you got  t h e  subpoena, was i t  a 

s u r p r i s e  t o  you? 

A Yes. 

Q And d i d  t h e  subpoena r e q u i r e  you t o  

b r i n g  any th ing  w i t h  you t o  t h e  grand j u r y ?  

A Not t h a t  I r e c a l l .  

Q 

A Not t h a t  I r e c a l l .  

Q 

D id  you b r i n g  anyth ing w i t h  you? 

D id  you have an a t to rney  represent  you 

i n  connect ion w i t h  t h a t  appearance be fore  t h e  grand 

j u r y ?  

A I d o n ' t  b e l i e v e  so. 

Q when you received t h e  subpoena, how d i d  

you know t h a t  i t  had anyth ing t o  do w i t h  A l l i e d  o r  

CFI? 

A The sub jec t  o f  t h e  i n v e s t i g a t i o n  was 
Page 16 
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19 c h l o r i n e  and bleach business i n  F lo r i da .  

20 Q D id  t h a t  i nc lude  sent ry  o r  odyssey? 

2 1  A The subject  o f  t he  case was c h l o r i n e  

2 2  and bleach business i n  F lo r i da .  

23  Q w e l l ,  what was i t  about the subpoena 

24 t h a t  i n d i c a t e d  t o  you t h a t  i t  somehow r e l a t e d  t o  

25 A l l i e d  o r  C F I  as opposed t o  any one o f  a number of 
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other  companies t h a t  a re  invo lved i n  the  c h l o r i n e  

and bleach bus i  nesses i n  F lo r ida? 

A It d i d n ' t .  

Q w e l l ,  before you appeared be fo re  the  

grand j u r y ,  d i d  you have any conversat ions w i t h  

anyone a t  t h e  Department o f  Jus t ice?  

A No. 

Q So you j u s t  went i n  t h e r e  c o l d  and took  

i t  from there? 

A yes. 

Q D i d  you know i n  advance what t h e y  would 

be ask ing you about? 

A NO. 

Q 

A I l e f t  w i t h  i n s t r u c t i o n s  no t  t o  

what d i d  they  ask you about? 

d isc lose  i t .  

Q 

A An o f f i c i a l  o f  t he  grand j u r y .  

Q what d i d  he o r  she t e l l  you? 

A 

secret .  

who gave you those i n s t r u c t i o n s ?  

That my test imony was t o  be kep t  
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Q who was t h a t  person? 

A I don ' t  know. 

Q Male o r  female? 

A Femal e. 
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Q where was t h e  grand j u r y  proceeding 

tha t  you attended? 

A Miami. 

Q 

grand j u r y ?  

For how long  d i d  you appear before t h e  

A 45 minutes.  

Q D i d  you have any f u r t h e r  contact  w i t h  

anyone from t h e  Department o f  Jus t i ce  a f t e r  t h a t  45 

minute appearance? 

A yes. 

Q what was t h a t ?  

A About a year l a t e r ,  I was requ i red  t o  

appear i n  A t l a n t a  a t  the u n i t e d  States Jus t i ce  

Department o f f i c e  concerning my test imony the  p r i o r  

year  i n  Miami. 

Q when you say you were requ i red  t o  

appear, do you mean you were subpoenaed again? 

A 

Q what was i t  t h a t  requ i red  -- 
A I th ink  i t  was a l e t t e r .  

Q 

I d o n ' t  t h i n k  i t  was a subpoena. 

was i t  from t h a t  same person t h a t  

quest ioned you i n  f r o n t  o f  t he  grand j u r y ?  

A I d o n ' t  know. 

Q D i d  t h e  l e t t e r  say t h a t  you w e r e  
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25 requ i red  t o  come t o  A t lan ta?  
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A T h a t ' s  how I understood i t . 

Q D id  you consu l t  w i t h  an a t to rney  about 

i t ?  

A Yes. 

Q who? 

MR. SMITH: Yes. 

THE WITNESS: The pa r tne r  i n  Ruden 

McCl osky who hand1 es those types of  i ssues . 
His  name i s  Mark Nuryk, N-u-r-y-k. 

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) D id  he go w i t h  

you t o  A t l a n t a ?  

A Yes. 

Q D id  anyone e l se  go w i t h  you? 

A NO. 

Q 

A Not t h a t  I r e c a l l .  

Q Have you, t o  t h i s  day, ever prov ided 

D id  you b r i n g  anyth ing w i t h  you? 

any documents o f  any s o r t  t o  the  Department o f  

Just ice? 

A Not t h a t  I r e c a l l .  

Q when I say you, I mean you meaning 

sent ry ,  odyssey o r  you o r  anyone a c t i n g  on beha l f  

of the  companies . 
A Same answer. 

Q when you went up t o  A t l an ta ,  who d i d  

Page 19 



121803ss.txt 
167 

i 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

1 2  

1 3  

14 

1 5  

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

2 1  

22 

23 

24 

25 

1 

you meet w i t h ?  

A 

Q 

A 1 don ' t  know. 

Q 

Attorneys f o r  t h e  Jus t i ce  Department. 

was the  same female a t to rney  there?  

How many a t to rneys  from t h e  Department 

o f  J u s t i c e  were there? 

A Few. 

Q And what d i d  you a l l  t a l k  about? 

A They t o l d  me no t  t o  d isc lose  i t .  

Q D id  they t e l l  you t h a t  i t  was a secre t  

and was pro tec ted  by law from d isc losure? 

A I don ' t  remember. 

MR. BANDKLAYDER: I don ' t  know o f  any 

p r i v i l e g e  there .  I f  you do, Glenn, please 

t e l l  me because otherwise I would l i k e  t o  get  

answers. 

MR. SMITH: He's been i n s t r u c t e d  no t  t o  

d i sc lose  in fo rmat ion .  I d o n ' t  p r a c t i c e  i n  

those areas, so I can ' t  comment o ther  than 

he ' s  under those i n s t r u c t i o n s ,  and we a re  

going t o  honor them u n t i l  somebody r u l e s  

d i f f e r e n t l y  o r  you contac t  t h e  Department o f  

J u s t i c e  and they  say i t ' s  okay. 

MR. BANDKLAYDER: W e l l ,  I mean I know 

t h a t  whatever they  were doing over the re  a t  

168 

t h e  Department o f  Jus t ice ,  i t ' s  over and 
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they 've  dropped i t .  

MR. SMITH: I don' t  know t h a t .  

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) So how long  were 

you up the re  t a l k i n g  w i t h  the  Department o f  J u s t i c e  

people? 

A 

Q 

The b e t t e r  p a r t  of a morning. 

w i thou t  g e t t i n g  i n t o  t h e  s p e c i f i c s  o f  

your conversat ions,  genera l l y  speaking, was sen t ry  

o r  odyssey one o f  the  subjects  t h a t  you a l l  

d iscussed o r  was i t  j u s t  l i m i t e d  t o  A l l i e d  o r  

A l l i e d  and CFI? 

A I t h i n k  t h a t  would f a l l  under the  

requirement t h a t  I don ' t  d iscuss i t .  

Q Did  you have any f u r t h e r  contac t  w i t h  

the  Department o f  Jus t ice?  

A Not t h a t  I r e c a l l ,  

Q 

now, do you have any knowledge o f  any improper o r  

i l l e g a l  a c t i v i t i e s  on t h e  p a r t  o f  A l l i e d  or  any o f  

i t s  a f f i l i a t e s  o r  personnel? 

P u t t i n g  as ide the  Department o f  J u s t i c e  

MR. SMITH: o b j e c t  t o  the  form. You 

mean l i k e  d i d  he see them speeding one day? 

MR. BANDKLAYDER: whatever. 

MR. SMITH: Any type? 

169 

MR. BANDKLAYDER: Any type.  If t he  

answer i s  yes, then w e ' l l  s t a r t  narrowing 

th ings  down and proceed from the re ,  b u t  t h e  

quest ion,  a t  l e a s t  ou t  o f  t h e  box here,  i s  do 
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you have any knowledge o f  any improper or  

i l l e g a l  a c t i v i t i e s  on the  p a r t  o f  A l l i e d  or  

i t s  a f f i l i a t e s  o r  any o f  i t s  personnel? 

MR. SMITH: ob jec t  t o  t h e  form. 

THE WITNESS: According t o  t h e  

newspaper, occas iona l l y  A l l i e d  ge ts  empty t o n  

c y l i n d e r s  back from the  i s lands  w i t h  mar i juana 

ins ide .  Beyond t h a t ,  I have no s p e c i f i c  

knowledge t h a t  A l l i e d  has done something 

i l l e g a l  and they have d e f i n i t e l y  done i t  and 

i t ' s  d e f i n i t e l y  i l l e g a l .  I have no s p e c i f i c  

knowledge. I d o n ' t  know what they  do, and I 

d o n ' t  know t h e  l e g a l i t y  o f  i t .  

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) And t h e  mar i juana 

i ssue ,  t h a t ' s  something you p icked up f rom t h e  

newspaper? 

A Yes. I t  was i n  t h e  Miami Herald.  

Q was t h a t  recen t l y?  

A NO. 

Q when was t h a t ?  

A Poss ib ly  t e n  years ago. 

170 

1 Q Was the re  some suggestion t h a t  A l l i e d  

2 was i nvolved i n  impor t i ng  marijuana? 

3 A No. 

4 MR. BANDKLAYDER: We ' l l  take  a break. 

5 (Thereupon, a b r i e f  recess was taken.) 

6 Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) we1 1 , f o l  1 owi ng 

7 up your l a s t  answer, a re  you aware o f  any 
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a c t i v i t i e s  by A l l i e d  o r  i t s  a f f i  1 i ates o r  personnel 

t h a t  you t h i n k  may be i l l e g a l  i n  some respect? 

A 

Q DO you have any general knowledge? 

I have no speci f i c know1 edge. 

A No. 

Q Have you read M r .  Al lman's testimony? 

A M r .  Allman'S test imony regard ing what? 

Q w e l l ,  have you read i t  f i r s t  o f  a l l ?  

Have you read i t ?  

A what? which test imony? 

Q H is  depos i t i on  i n  t h i s  case t h a t  we 

took  two o r  t h ree  weeks ago. 

A I have not .  

Q He t e s t i f i e d  a t  h i s  depos i t i on  t h a t  you 

t o l d  him about a l l  s o r t s  o f  i l l e g a l  predatory  

p r i c i n g  and p r i c e  f i x i n g  a c t i v i t i e s  on t h e  p a r t  o f  

A l l i e d .  D id  you t e l l  him about those th ings? 

A Not t h a t  I r e c a l l .  
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Q D id  you ever t e l l  him t h a t  A l l i e d  o r  

i t s  a f f i l i a t e s  o r  i t s  personnel had engaged i n  

p r i c e  f i x i n g ?  

A I could conceivably  have t o l d  him t h a t  

was the  sub jec t  o f  an i n v e s t i g a t i o n .  

d i d  no t  t e l l  him t h a t  A l l i e d  was g u i l t y  of  t h a t .  

I c e r t a i n l y  

Q what i n v e s t i g a t i o n  were you r e f e r r i n g  

t o ?  

A The J u s t i c e  Department, t h e  grand j u r y  

probe i n t o  c h l o r i n e  and b leach business i n  F l o r i d a .  
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Q w e l l ,  how come you d i d n ' t  keep i t  a 

secret? 

A Because t h a t  was the sub jec t .  

Q So you discussed w i t h  M r .  Allman t h e  

th ings  about the  Department o f  Jus t i ce  probe t h a t  

you now contend you' r e  p roh i  b i  t ed  from d i  s c l  o s i  ng 

t o  me, i s  t h a t  r i g h t ?  

A No. I t o l d  you the  sub jec t .  

Q You t o l d  me the  subject  was t h e  

c h l o r i n e  and bleach businesses i n  F lo r i da .  D id  you 

t e l l  M r .  Allman t h a t  t h e  subject  was some 

accusat ion o f  p r i c e  f i x i n g  by A l l i e d  o r  i t s  

a f f i l i a t e s ?  

A The sub jec t  o f  t he  case was an 

accusat ion t h a t  p r i c e  f i x i n g  was t a k i n g  p lace  i n  

172 
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t h e  market. 

Q D id  you ever t e l l  M r .  Allman t h a t  

A l l i e d  was invo lved  i n  p r i c e  f i x i n g ?  

A No. 

Q D id  you ever t e l l  M r .  Allman t h a t  

A l l i e d  was invo lved  i n  predatory  p r i c i n g  p rac t i ces?  

(Thereupon, t h e r e  was a d iscuss ion o f f  

t h e  record.)  

THE WITNESS: I expla ined t o  M r .  Allman 

what happened when US c h l o r i n e ,  t h e  ancestor 

of sen t r y  I n d u s t r i e s  s t a r t e d  i n  1984, t h a t  I 

thought t h a t  A l l i e d  engaged i n  p redatory  

p r i c i n g  f o r  a p e r i o d  o f  about th ree  years and 
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p r i c e d  t h e i r  product below -- a t  o r  below my 

cos t .  

I never gave any i n d i c a t i o n  o f  whether 

o r  no t  t h a t  might be l e g a l  o r  i l l e g a l ,  b u t  I 

d i d  t e l l  him t h a t  A l l i e d  t r i e d  t o  run  US 

c h l o r i n e  ou t  o f  business when i t  opened and 

when i t  was smal l .  I don ' t  know whether 

t h a t ' s  i l l e g a l  or not ,  and I d i d  n o t  pursue 

t h a t  aspect o f  i t .  

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) Are t h e r e  any 

o ther  p o t e n t i a l l y  i l l e g a l  th ings  t h a t  you might  

have t o l d  M r .  Allman t h a t  you f e e l  A l l i e d  o r  i t s  

173 
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a f f i l i a t e s  d id?  

A They might  have an unsafe work p lace ,  

bu t  I have no personal knowledge. 

Since you don ' t  have any personal  Q 

know1 edge, what ' s your basi  s f o r  saying they  migh t  

have an unsafe workplace? 

A They r e p o r t  more accidents than anybody 

e l se  i n  the  c h l o r i n e  business t h a t  I ' m  aware o f .  

Q How many accidents do they r e p o r t ?  

A A few every year .  

Q what types o f  accidents a re  you 

r e f e r r i n g  t o ?  

A The sub jec t  o f  t h e  damaging news 

a r t i  c l  es , ch l  o r i  ne 1 eaks , auto accidents and 

acc idents  a t  customers's l oca t i ons .  

Q what leads you t o  be l i eve  t h a t  A l l i e d  
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17 

18 producers o r  gas d i s t r i b u t o r s ?  

19 A No. I j u s t  heard them more. I have 

20 n o t  researched t h i s .  I don ' t  have a l i s t  o f  t h e  

2 1  number of accidents.  I t ' s  j u s t  a general 

22 pe rcep t ion  t h a t  I hear o f  more acc idents  by A l l i e d .  

23 Q Now, you r e f e r r e d  t o  damaging newspaper 

24 a r t i c l e s .  which a r t i c l e s  are those? 

25  A The Tampa Tr ibune a r t i c l e s  t h a t  TECO 

has more such accidents than any o ther  bleach 
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produced t o  A l l i e d  dur ing the  PSC l a w s u i t .  

Q 

i s  t h a t  i t  received those a r t i c l e s  f rom odyssey, 

c o r r e c t ?  

And you understand t h a t  TECO's p o s i t i o n  

A I understand t h a t  t h a t ' s  TECO's 

p o s i t i o n .  

Q 

A None. 

Q Have you ever asked M r .  Allman why he 

what knowledge do you have about t h a t ?  

sent  those a r t i c l e s  t o  TECO? 

A Yes. 

Q What d i d  he t e l l  you? 

A He s a i d  he d i d n ' t  t h i n k  t h a t  he d id .  

Q 

A 

D id  he say anyth ing e l s e  about i t ?  

He says he t h i n k s  t h a t  L a r r y  Rodriguez 

probably  go t  them from the  TECO customer research 

1 i b r a r y  o f f  t he  i n t e r n e t  , 

Q Have you o r  M r .  Allman ever asked M r .  

Rodriguez about t h a t ?  
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20 A I have n o t .  

2 1  Q Has M r .  Allman? 

22 A I don ' t  know. 

23 Q NOW, odyssey has a f a x  machine I 

24 presume, doesn ' t  i t ?  

25 A I know t h a t  a t  t he  present t ime they 
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have a f a x  machine. 

Q 

frame? 

A 

D id  they have one back i n  the  1999 t i m e  

They would have purchased a f a x  machine 

a t  some p o i n t  du r ing  1999. 

Q 

i t  was then? 

Is Odyssey's f a x  number t h e  same now as 

A I don ' t  know. 

Q Have you seen the  a r t i c l e s ?  

A I have seen photocopies o f  the  TECO 

produc t ion  t o  A l l i e d  t h a t  was l a t e r  produced t o  us 

i n  the  s i x  boxes o f  documents, yes. I have seen 

photocopies o f  t he  produc t ion .  

Q The a r t i c l e s ?  

A The a r t i c l e s .  

Q Now, you ' re  c la im ing  i n  t h i s  case t h a t  

t h e  i n fo rma t ion  i n  t h e  a r t i c l e s  i s  t r u e .  

have personal knowledge o f  t h a t ?  

DO you 

A I do no t .  

Q can you t e l l  me who does? 

A Wel l ,  everybody t h a t  works a t  A l l i e d .  

Q Anybody e lse? 
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A The people who respond t o  the  leaks ,  

24 t h e  f i r e  department, t he  p o l i c e  department, 

25 whatever they c a l l  the  H i l l s b o r o  county EPC, t he  
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Department of Envi ronmental Regulat ions,  s t a t e  o f  

F l o r i d a  if they responded, whoever responded t o  t h e  

a1 1 eged acc idents .  

Q Anybody else? 

A Eyewitnesses. 

Q 

A I do no t .  A lso  the  i n j u r e d  --  the  

Do you know any o f  them? 

p a r t i e s  who were i n j u r e d  and the  doctors  who 

t r e a t e d  them. 

Q Have you o r  anyone on odyssey o r  

Sent ry 's  beha l f  contacted any o f  these people t o  

f i n d  ou t  what they  might know and perhaps what they  

might be ab le  t o  t e s t i f y  t o ?  

A I have no t .  

Q Has anyone on beha l f  o f  odyssey o r  

Sentry done t h a t ?  

A Not t o  my knowledge. 

Q A l l  r i g h t .  So j u s t  t o  k i n d  o f  wrap 

t h i s  up, I mean are  you ab le  t o  i d e n t i f y  by name 

any s p e c i f i c  witnesses who can t e s t i f y  as t o  

whether t h e  i n fo rma t ion  i n  these var ious  newspaper 

a r t i c l e s  i s  t r u e ?  

A Wel l ,  f o r  some o f  them, A l l i e d  has 

f i l e d  a r e p o r t  t o  Washington t h a t  -- we assume 

A l l i e d  wou ldn ' t  make up t h i n g s  l i k e  t h a t .  A l l i e d  
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has repor ted c e r t a i n  accidents t o  the  a u t h o r i t i e s ,  

so assuming t h a t  A l l i e d  has no t  invented t h a t  

i n fo rma t ion ,  we took  t h a t  as p roo f  t h a t  they  were 

t r u e .  

Q But my quest ion i s  are you ab le  t o  

i d e n t i f y  by name any witnesses who might be ab le  t o  

t e s t i f y  t o  t h e  t r u t h f u l n e s s  o f  the  in fo rmat ion? 

A I am n o t  persona l ly ,  no. 

Q Has Sentry ever had any acc idents? 

A 

Q what t ype  o f  accidents? 

A Hydroch lo r ic  a c i d  s p i l l ,  c h l o r i n e  

Sentry  has had a few acc idents .  

d ischarge and tank  t r u c k  over tu rn ing .  

Q what was the  tank t r u c k  f i l l e d  w i th?  

A Bleach. 

Q And when you say c h l o r i n e  re lease,  you 

mean the  c h l o r i n e  gas release? 

A Yes. 

Q Where d i d  t h a t  occur? 

A A t  Sentry .  

Q Here i n  Miami? 

A Yes. 

Q when was t h a t ?  

A 

Q Anybody i n j u r e d ?  

Ten o r  f i f t e e n  years ago. 

178 
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A NO.  

Q was the  i n c i d e n t  reported? 

A I t h i n k  i t  was be fore  the  cu r ren t  

r e p o r t i n g  system was i n  p lace.  I don ' t  be l i eve  i t  

would have been requ i red .  

Q what q u a n t i t y  o f  c h l o r i n e  was re leased 

i n  t h a t  i n c i d e n t ?  

A I don ' t  r e c a l l  . 
Q Approximately? Was i t  more than t e n  

pounds? 

A I doubt i t . 

Q Did anyone seek medical t reatment  as a 

r e s u l t  o f  t h a t  i n c i d e n t ?  

A NO. 

Q Is t h a t  t h e  o n l y  t ime t h a t  any c h l o r i n e  

was ever released a t  a sen t ry  f a c i l i t y ?  

A That I r e c a l l .  

Q You don ' t  r e c a l l  any o ther  i n c i d e n t s ?  

A No. 

Q when was t h e  i n c i d e n t  w i t h  the  s e n t r y  

--  was i t  a sen t ry  tanker  t r u c k  t h a t  overturned? 

A yes. 

Q 

A About ten  years ago. 

Q where d i d  t h a t  happen? 

And when d i d  t h a t  happen? 

179 

1 A Seven years ago. 

2 on t h e  corner  o f  54th s t r e e t  and Le 

3 ieune Road. 
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Q 

t ruck?  

And d i d  any bleach escape from t h e  

A Yes, about h a l f  o f  the  l oad .  

Q what would t h a t  be, about 2 , 5 0 0  

ga l  1 ons? 

A Approxi mate1 y . 
Q 

A There was no cleanup. 

Q 

who was invo lved i n  the  cleanup? 

SO what happened t o  the  2 , 5 0 0  g a l l o n s  

o f  b leach t h a t  went i n t o  the  s t ree t?  

A I t  went i n t o  the  storm sewer. 

Q was the re  any response by e i t h e r  f i r e  

rescue o r  any haz mat teams? 

A oh, yeah. 

Q Both? 

A And DERM. 

Q Department o f  Environmental Regulat ions 

as w e l l ?  

A Dade County. 

Q was t h e r e  any ac t i on  taken by DERM o r  

any o ther  r e g u l a t o r y  agencies as a r e s u l t  o f  t h a t  

i nc iden t?  

1 8 0  

1 A No. 

2 Q You mentioned there was a l s o  was i t  a 

3 

4 A Hydroch lo r ic .  

5 Q where d i d  t h a t  happen? 

6 A A t  t h e  Sentry I n d u s t r i e s .  

hyd roch lo r i c  a c i d  o r  s u l f u r i c  ac id? 
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Q When was t h a t ?  

A wh i l e  i t  was s t i l l  US c h l o r i n e ,  l a t e  

80's. 

Q 

was leaked? 

About how much o f  t he  hyd roch lo r i c  a c i d  

A I don ' t  r e c a l l ,  100 ga l lons .  

Q where d i d  i t  go? 

A on the  ground next  t o  the  r a i l r o a d  

s ign.  

Q 

A 

who was invo lved i n  t h a t  cleanup? 

we cleaned i t  ourselves by p u t t i n g  

sodium b icarbonate on i t  under the  superv is ion o f  

t h e  H i  a1 eah F i  r e  Department. 

Q HOW d i d  t h a t  s p i l l  happen? 

A The r a i l r o a d  moved a car  t h a t  was 

hooked up, and t h e  wheel o f  t he  r a i l  car c u t  t h e  

hose. 

Q was the re  any c la im made by s e n t r y  

aga ins t  t h e  r a i l r o a d  as a r e s u l t  o f  t h a t  i n c i d e n t ?  

181 

1 A NO. 

2 Q was the re  any c la im  made by t h e  

3 r a i l r o a d  aga ins t  Sentry? 

4 A No. 

5 Q The c h l o r i n e  re1 ease i n c i  dent t h a t  

6 Sentry  exper ienced i n  Miami, how d i d  t h a t  happen? 

7 A I don ' t  r e c a l l .  

8 Q what about the  tanker  t r u c k ,  t h e  

9 over turned tanker  t r u c k  i n c i d e n t  t h a t  sen t r y  
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experienced here i n  Miami near Le JeUne Road, how 

d i d  t h a t  happen? 

A I don ' t  know f o r  sure.  we t h i n k  the  

d r i v e r  took  the  corner t o o  f a s t .  

Q what about odyssey, has odyssey had any 

acc idents  or re leases o f  any s o r t ?  

A 

Q 

employees? 

Not t o  my know1 edge. 

Has i t  had any i n j u r i e s  t o  any o f  i t s  

A Not t o  my knowledge. 

Q 

employees? 

Has Sentry had any i n j u r i e s  t o  i t s  

A Yes. we've had spra ined ankles and 

sprained knees c l imb ing  on s t a i r s  o r  ladders t o  

check the  l e v e l  o f  t h e  tanks.  

t o  t h e  customers's l o c a t i o n s  t o  f i l l  the  storage 

when the  d r i v e r s  go 

i 

18 2 
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tank  f o r  bleach, we ve had a few t w i s t e d  ankles and 

spra ined knees from s l i p p i n g  e i t h e r  on t h e  s t a i r  t o  

the  tank  o r  t h e  s t a  r t o  t h e  t r u c k ,  and we've had a 

few people splashed i n  t h e  eye w i t h  e i t h e r  

hyd roch lo r i c  a c i d  from the  one g a l l o n  f i l l i n g  

opera t ion  o r  t he  hose t h a t ' s  connected f o r  l oad ing  

the bleach tankers,  b u t  t h e r e  a re  no ser ious --  t o  

my knowledge, we haven ' t  had a l o s t - t i m e  acc ident  

i n  terms o f  t h e  sp lashing i n  t h e  eye. 

l o s t  t i m e  acc idents  a re  t h e  spra ined ankles o r  

sprained knees from t h e  s l i p p i n g  on the  s t a i r  t o  

the  tank  o r  t h e  s t a i r  t o  t h e  t r u c k .  

The o n l y  
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Q Have odyssey o r  Sentry had any motor 

v e h i c l e  acc idents  o ther  than the  one tanker  t r u c k  

t h a t  you s a i d  r o l l e d  over near Le leune Road? 

A Yes. 

Q About how many? 

A A f e w  every year a t  Sentry. I have no 

i d e a  about odyssey. 

Q Have any o f  those acc idents  t h a t  Sentry  

has had i n v o l v i  ng motor vehi  c l  es a1 so i nvol ved 

tanker  t rucks?  

A Some. 

Q What types o f  accidents? 

A Fender benders. 
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Q Does Sentry repackage ch lo r i ne  f o r  

resa le?  

A 

Q Yes. 

A The elemental ch lo r i ne?  

Q Yes. 

Do you mean c h l o r i n e  gas? 

A NO.  

Q so I t ake  i t  sen t ry  doesn' t  s e l l  

elemental c h l o r i n e  i n  e i t h e r  one ton  c y l i n d e r s  o r  

150 pound c y l i n d e r s  o r  any o ther  s i z e  conta iner  

then,  does i t ?  

A That i s  c o r r e c t .  

Q DOeS odyssey? 

A No. 

Q M r .  Allman t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  he wrote a 
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l e t t e r  t o  Harry Long complaining about t h e  f a c t  

t h a t  A l l i e d  apparent ly  had obtained in fo rma t ion  

about odyssey's e l e c t r i c  ra te .  

he had w r i t t e n  such a l e t t e r ?  

were you aware t h a t  

A I have a vague r e c o l l e c t i o n .  

Q D id  you ever see the  l e t t e r ?  

A NO. 

Q 

o f  i t ?  

DO you know where we might f i n d  a copy 

A NO. 
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Q 

o f  i t ?  

A 

DO you o r  odyssey o r  sent ry  have a copy 

I have never had a copy and Sentry  has 

never had a copy. 

Q Do you know i f  odyssey has a copy 

somewhere? 

A NO. 

Q D id  M r .  Allman ever read the  l e t t e r  t o  

you? 

A No. 

Q Did  he t a l k  t o  you about i t  be fo re  he 

sent i t ?  

A I d o n ' t  s p e c i f i c a l l y  r e c a l l .  He may 

have. 

may have t o l d  me t h a t  he d i d .  

d i f f e r e n c e  t o  me e i t h e r  way. 

Q why i s  t h a t ?  

A I thought i t  would --  i f  he had a 

He may have s a i d  he was going t o  do i t  o r  he 

I t  d i d n ' t  make any 
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19 

20 i n f o r m a t i o n  t o  A l l i e d ,  then a l e t t e r  o f  t h a t  na ture  

2 1  would s top  the  f l o w  o f  in fo rmat ion  t o  A l l i e d .  I t ' s  

22 our  i n fo rma t ion .  I d i d n ' t  see the  harm o f  e i t h e r  

23 

24 sen t .  

25 Q Did  M r .  Allman t e l l  you about the  

l e g i t i m a t e  concern t h a t  TECO was passing our 

sending t h e  l e t t e r  o r  t h a t  i t  al ready had been 

18 5 
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14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

te lephone conversat ion he had w i t h  M r .  Rodriguez i n  

which M r .  Rodriguez supposedly t o l d  M r .  Allman t h a t  

A l l i e d  had discussed w i t h  M r .  Rodriguez odyssey's 

e l e c t r i c  ra te?  

A I remember reading t h a t  i n  h i s  

depos i t i on  f o r  t h e  PSC. 

Q But d i d  you and M r .  Allman ever have 

any conversat ions about t h a t  a t  t he  t ime o r  around 

t h e  t ime t h a t  i t  happened? 

A I d o n ' t  remember t a l k i n g  about i t  a t  

t h e  t i m e  t h a t  i t  happened. 

Q when d i d  you f i r s t  f i n d  o u t  t h a t  A l l i e d  

had approached TECO f o r  t he  purpose o f  o b t a i n i n g  an 

e l  e c t  r i  c r a t e  comparable t o  odyssey's? 

A I have no idea.  

Q can you t e l l  me approximately? 

A 

Q was i t  e a r l y ,  mid o r  l a t e  1999? 

A I d o n ' t  have the  f a i n t e s t  idea .  

Q 

Someti me d u r i  ng 1999, 

when you f i r s t  approached TECO f o r  t h e  

purpose o f  ob ta in ing  any , e l  e c t r i  c r a t e  f o r  t h e  
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22 proposed odyssey p l a n t ,  i s n ' t  i t  t r u e  t h a t  you t o l d  

23 TECO t h a t  you needed a r a t e  i n  the f p e r  megawatt 

24 hour range? 

2 5  A No, t h a t  i s  no t  t r u e .  

/ -  
I. 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

1 2  

1 3  

14 

1 5  

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

2 1  

22 

23 

24 

18  6 

Q Did  there  come a p o i n t  i n  t ime when you 

d i d  t e l l  t h a t  t o  TECO? 

A Not t h a t  I r e c a l l .  

Q You never t o l d  Pat Allman t h a t  you 

needed a r a t e  i n  the  m p e r  megawatt hour range i n  

order f o r  t h e  p l a n t  t o  be feas ib le?  

A NO. 

Q what r a t e  d i d  you t e l l  h im you needed 

i n  order  f o r  t he  p l a n t  t o  be feas ib le?  

A 

Q why not? 

A 

I never gave him a ra te .  

we app l i ed  f o r  an i n t e r r u p t i b l e  t a r i f f ,  

standard i n t e r r u p t i  b l  e commercial serv ice  1 i ke most 

ch lo r i ne  p l a n t s  i n  t h e  un i ted  States have. The 

r a t e  would have been -- under the  normal s t r u c t u r e d  

t a r i f f  a t  TECO would have been $36 per  megawatt 

hour. Tha t ' s  why Pete DeAngelis and I went t o  TECO 

because t h a t  was t h e i  r r a t e  sheet f o r  i n t e r r u p t i b l e  

power . 
Q s h o r t l y  a f t e r  you contacted TECO about 

t h a t  i n t e r r u p t i b l e  r a t e  of $36, you learned t h a t  i t  

was no longer  a v a i l a b l e ,  d i d n ' t  you? 

A I ' d  say w i t h i n  two weeks I l earned t h a t  

there  was a w a i t i n g  l i s t .  
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Q w e l l ,  d i d  the re  ever come a p o i n t  i n  

1 

2 

3 

t ime when you t o l d  Pat Allman you needed t o  have a 

r a t e  of about m - p e r  megawatt hour i n  o rder  f o r  

t he  p l a n t  t o  be feas ib le?  

4 A No. 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

1 3  

14 

1 5  

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

2 1  

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q That never happened? 

A NO. 

Q what a b o u t e c e n t s  per k i l o w a t t  hour o r  

cents? Am I mixing up decimal p o i n t s  here? 

A No. The answer i s  s t i l l  no. ~ 

Q e per  megawatt hour t r a n s l a t e s  t o  

@ per  megawatt hour i s  

what, .cents per  k i l o w a t t  hour? 

cents  a 9 A 

k i l o w a t t  hour ,  t h a t  i s  co r rec t .  

Q The i n i t i a l  ra te ,  base r a t e  t h a t  

Odyssey go t  under i t s  con t rac t  w i t h  TECO was j u s t  

t h a t ,  wasn ' t  i t ?  

A Yes. 

Q #cen ts  per k i l o w a t t  hour,  per  

megawatt hour? 

A That  i s  c o r r e c t ,  

Q would t h i s  p l a n t  have been f e a s i b l e  i f  

TECO had prov ided Odyssey an i n i t i a l  base r a t e  o f  

-cents per  -- I should say- per  megawatt 

hour, p l u s  taxes? 

A I don ' t  know. 

1 8  7 
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6 
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10 

11 

12 

1 3  

14 

1 5  

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

2 2  

23 

24 

2 5  

Q I s n ' t  i t  t r u e  t h a t  odyssey's bank 

requ i  red a r a t e  i n  the  range o f  0 per  megawatt 

hour as a prerequi  s i t e  t o  approving odyssey's loan? 

A The bank took  a l l  o f  t h e  assumptions 

t h a t  we made a t  our  p ro jec t i ons  and repeated them 

back. t o  us i n  t h e i r  commitment l e t t e r  and sa id  

prov ided you get a l l  o f  your approvals and costs  i n  

t h e  way you have descr ibed them t o  us, we w i l l  fund 

t h e  loan,  so the  o n l y  p lace  t h a t  would have 

appeared would be t h e  commitment l e t t e r ,  and they  

gave us back our numbers from our  own p r o j e c t i o n s .  

That was our  p red ic ted  cos t .  

we a l s o  had a p red ic ted  cos t  f o r  s a l t  

and f o r  a few o ther  th ings .  we a l s o  had a t  t h e  

t ime  -- I don ' t  know even whether o r  n o t  we had 

c losed on t h e  l o t ,  so t h a t  might  have been 

inc luded,  bu t  a l l  o f  the whatever was s t i l l  up i n  

t h e  a i  r was p rov i s iona l  from t h e i  r commitment, 

which you would expect f rom a bank. 

s i t u a t i o n  changed, they  would want t h e  oppor tun i t y  

l e g a l l y  t o  re-evaluate.  

I f  t h e  

Q SO according t o  t h e  commitment l e t t e r ,  

one o f  t h e  th ings  t h a t  t h e  bank requ i red  was t h a t  

you ob ta in  the r a t e  t h a t  you had planned on 

ob ta in ing ,  which was the  1 ) p e r  megawatt hour,  and 

189 

1 t h a t l ' s  an i n i t i a l  base r a t e ,  r i g h t ?  
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A The r a t e  t h a t  we expected t o  receive,  

yes. 

Q Have you ever read Pam Winters '  

depos i t i on  testimony? 

A No. 

Q D i d  you know t h a t  she t e s t i f i e d  t h a t  

t h e  8 e l e c t r i c  r a t e  was i n  f a c t  a cond i t i on  o f  

t h e  l oan  approval? 

A I know i t  was a cond i t i on  o f  the  l o a n  

approval .  

Q Did  you ever  go back t o  TECO and t e l l  

them t h a t  you needed t h e  0 ra te?  

(Thereupon, the re  was a d iscuss ion o f f  

t h e  record.) 

THE WITNESS: No. 

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) so how d i d  i t  

come about t h a t  you, odyssey, ended up w i t h  an 

i n i t i a l  base r a t e  o f  e? 
A That 's  what TECO o f f e r e d  me. 

MR. BANDKLAYDER: L e t ' s  take  j u s t  a 

f i v e  minute break. 

(Thereupon, a recess was taken f rom 

11:15 t o  11:25.) 

(Thereupon, t h e  document r e f e r r e d  t o  

190 

1 was marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n  as P l a i n t i f f ' s  

2 E x h i b i t  NO. S S 3 . )  

3 Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) I o n l y  have one 

4 copy o f  t h i s ,  so w e ' l l  have t o  share, b u t  t ake  a 
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l o o k  a t  what I ' v e  marked as E x h i b i t  3 ,  SS3. 

You're t a k i n g  a l ook  a t  t he  e x h i b i t  

now? 

A I have. 

Q This  i s  a customer contact  note 

prepared b y  M r .  Allman, and he says i n  here t h a t  

t h e  customer, whi ch was you, b e l i  eved t h a t  w i t h o u t  

t h e  0 p e r  megawatt hour ra te ,  h i s  o n l y  choices 

would be t o  not  b u i l d  t h e  p l a n t  o r  l o c a t e  i t  

elsewhere. Did you t e l l  him t h a t  a t  t h e  t ime t h a t  

he had t h a t  conversat ion w i t h  you? 

MR. SMITH: Let  him f i n i s h  h i s  ques t ion  

be fo re  you answer. 

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) Did  you t e l l  him 

t h a t  a t  o r  about the  t ime  t h a t  he had t h a t  

conversa t ion  w i t h  you on March 1 2  of 1998? 

(Thereupon, there  was a d iscuss ion o f f  

t h e  record. )  

THE WITNESS: I do no t  remember t e l l i n g  

these i n d i v i d u a l s  or  P a t r i c k  Allman t h a t  I 

needed a r a t e  o r  m o r  I would l o c a t e  t h e  

191 

p l a n t  elsewhere. I remember t h a t  when we went 

the re ,  we expected t o  get  a r a t e  of  $36, which 

was t h e i r  r a t e  sheet i n t e r r u p t i b l e  r a t e .  

Now, we may have sa id  i f  we d o n ' t  ge t  

t h e  r a t e  t h a t  we want, we won' t  b u i l d  t h e  

p l a n t ,  bu t  I don ' t  r e c a l l  t h a t  0 was any 

s o r t  o f  a c u t o f f  i n  t h e  whole scope o f  our  
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8 f e a s i b i l i t y  study. 

9 Now, something t h a t  may be confusing 

10 here, a t  t h e  t ime t h a t  we appl ied,  t h e  10 

11 

1 2  

1 3  

14 d i d n ' t  r e a l l y  have a s i t e .  $ 3 6  p lus  1 0  

1 5  percent  i s  $39.60, and I have seen f rom our 

16 

17 

18 $39.6, whi ch was t h e  $36 i n t e r r u p t i b l e  r a t e  

19 t h a t  we expected t o  get  w i t h  a 10 percent  c i t y  

20 o f  Tampa u t i l i t y  o r  H i l l s b o r o  County, whatever 

2 1  t a x  i t  was a t  the t ime, i t  was some t a x  f o r  

22 which we were going t o  be ob l iga ted .  Later  

2 3  Allman t o l d  us t h a t  we d i d n ' t  have t h e  tax .  

24 Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) The 10 percent 

2 5  u t i l i t y  t ax?  

percent  u t i  1 i t y  t a x  would have app l i ed  t o  our  

s i t e  o r  t hey  assumed t h a t  the  10 percent 

u t i l i t y  t a x  would apply t o  our s i t e  because we 

e a r l y  c a l c u l a t i o n s  a f e w  cost  est imates t h a t  

DeAngeliS d i d  f o r  us t h a t  used a r a t e  o f  

192 
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A That t h e  p a r t i c u l a r  l o t  where we were 

f o r  t he  p a r t i c u l a r  year when we were going t o  s t a r t  

up, and I d o n ' t  know whether i t  was because o f  t h e  

t a x  had exp i red  o r  because o f  where t h e  p roper t y  

was, bu t  t h a t  odyssey would no t  have t o  pay the  10 

percent .  

Q And i s  t h a t  u l t i m a t e l y  what happened, 

t h a t  odyssey d i d  no t  have t o  pay t h e  10 percent? 

r a t e  -- I r e c a l l  t h a t  Allrnan o f f e r e d  me e. A Tha t ' s  exac t l y  what happened, and t h e  

I 

Page 42 



( 0  

11 

1 2  

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

1 8  

19 

20 

2 1  

22 

23 

24 

25  

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

121803ss.txt  
d o n ' t  r e c a l l  going t o  him and saying i f  I d o n ' t  ge t  

I ' m  going t o  q u i t ,  bu t  I ' m  no t  saying i t  d i d n ' t  

happen. 

something t h a t  took  p lace  f i v e  o r  s i x  years ago 

now. 

I ' m  saying t h a t ' s  my r e c o l l e c t i o n  o f  

Q IS i t  your r e c o l l e c t i o n  then t h a t  t he  

4) number came from him ra the r  than from you? 

A That ' s my reco l  1 e c t i  on. 

Q w e l l ,  what number d i d  you f e e l  you 

needed i n  terms o f  an e l e c t r i c  r a t e  p rospec t i ve l y  

i n  order t o  make the  p l a n t  economical ly f eas ib le?  

A I don ' t  t h i n k  we had a s p e c i f i c  number 

i n  mind. 

Q Why then d i d  you inc lude  the  number 

i n  your business p lan  back a t  t h a t  t ime? 

19 3 

A Because t h a t  was t h e  r a t e  we had 

expected t o  ge t .  I f  t h e  C I S R  --  TECO had o f f e r e d  

us under a CISR t a r i f f ,  which was a program 

t h a t  was no t  i n  ex is tence a t  t h e  t ime they made t h e  

o f f e r .  I t  was a p rov i s iona l  o f f e r  i f  they cou ld  

ge t  the  p u b l i c  se rv i ce  commission t o  approve t h a t  

type  o f  t a r i f f  i n  t h e i r  market. 

So I knew t h e  r a t e .  I j u s t  d i d n ' t  know 

whether o r  n o t  i t  would ever be extended 

o f f i c i a l l y ,  b u t  we d i d n ' t  nego t ia te  back and f o r t h  

on the 0. I t  was always e from the  beginning 

o f  the summer, f o u r t h  of J u l y  a t  l e a s t ,  b u t  t he  

program d i d n ' t  e x i s t ,  and i t  took u n t i l  September 
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t o  have t h e  Pub l i c  serv ice  commission approve t o  

TECO and TECO approve i n t e r n a l l y  t he  o f f e r  t o  

odyssey . 
Q w e l l ,  why are  you us ing the  4 t h  o f  J u l y  

as a re ference po in t?  was there  some s o r t  o f  

meeting o r  something on t h a t  date? 

A No. 

Q I thought -- 

A Midd le  o f  t he  summer. 

Q SO you ' re  saying -- are  you say ing t h a t  

by ~ u l y  l e t ' s  say you knew t h a t  t he  r a t e  t h a t  would 

be o f f e r e d  was e? 
194 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

1 3  

14 

15 

16 

A I contacted them i n  March. w i t h i n  a 

month e i t h e r  way I would say, yeah, somewhere i n  

t h e  middle o f  t h e  summer I learned t h a t  i f  an o f f e r  

were extended under t h i  s p a r t i c u l a r  t a r i f f ,  C I S R  

t a r i f f ,  t h a t  i t  would be 0. 
Q And w e l l ,  where d i d  you ge t  t h a t  

i n f o  rmat i  on from? 

A 

Q w e l l ,  you knew, d i d n ' t  you, t h a t  no one 

I must have go t ten  i t  from Allman. 

had ever g o t t e n  a r a t e  under the  CISR t a r i f f  p r i o r  

t o  odyssey? 

A I d i d n ' t  know t h a t .  I knew t h a t  TECO 

had never o f f e r e d  i t  t o  anybody. 

Q ~ l l  r i g h t .  what bas is  then d i d  you 

have f o r  t h i n k i n g  t h a t  TECO was going t o  propose a 

r a t e  o f  (I t o  odyssey under the  C I S R  t a r i f f ?  
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A Because t h a t ' s  what he t o l d  me, and if 

my name came up t o  the  top  of t he  w a i t i n g  l i s t  f o r  

i n t e r r u p t i b l e  power, my r a t e  would have gone down 

t o  $36, and t h a t  a lso  would have been s a t i s f a c t o r y .  

Q D id  you ever t e l l  M r .  Allman t h a t  i t  

was -- t h a t  t h e  op t i on  o f  p u t t i n g  odyssey's name on 

a w a i t i n g  l i s t  was unacceptable? 

A NO. A t  t he  t ime t h a t  I d i d  i t , i t  was 

t h e  o n l y  a l t e r n a t i v e  I had. 

Q IS i t  your test imony then t h a t  you d i d  

p u t  your  name o r  odyssey's name o r  s e n t r y ' s  name on 

a wai ti ng 1 i s t  f o r  t he  i n t e r r u p t i  b l  e t a r i f f ?  

A I d i d  pu t  odyssey's name on a w a i t i n g  

l i s t  f o r  i n t e r r u p t i b l e  power. 

Q 

TECO requ i red  i n  order  t o  pu t  odyssey on t h a t  

w a i t i n g  l i s t  f o r  i n t e r r u p t i b l e  power? 

And d i d  you s ign  whatever documentation 

A I don ' t  r e c a l l  e x a c t l y  what I d i d .  I 

t h i n k  I e i t h e r  sent them a l e t t e r  o r  f i l l e d  out  a 

form. 

Q And d i d  odyssey's name ever come t o  t h e  

t o p  o f  t h a t  l i s t ,  w a i t i n g  l i s t  f o r  i n t e r r u p t i b l e  

power? 

A It d i d  no t .  

Q when d i d  you submit your  business p lan  

n connection w i t h  the  l o a n  t o  c 

aPP1 

t i z e n s  Bank 

ca t ion? 

A somet me i n  1998. 
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Q was i t  before  you had the  signed deal 

2 1  

22 A Yes. 

f o r  t he  CISR ra te?  

23 Q And obv ious ly  -- w e l l ,  was i t  sometime 

24 

25 o r  was i t  before  t h a t ?  

a f t e r  March 1 2  when you f i r s t  met w i t h  M r .  Allman 
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22 

A No, i t  would have been a f t e r .  I t  would 

have been a f t e r  I met w i t h  TECO. 

Q w e l l ,  as I understood i t , your f i r s t  

con tac t  w i th  M r .  Allman was around March 1 2  o f  

1998, and t h a t  con tac t  i s  r e f l e c t e d  i n  t h i s  memo, 

E x h i b i t  No. 3 .  Is t h a t  i n  f a c t  t h e  f i r s t  contact  

you had w i t h  M r .  Allman? 

A Yes. 

Q And i s  i t  your test imony t h a t  you 

submit ted t h e  proposed business p lan  t o  c i  ti zens 

Bank sometime a f t e r  March 12 o f  1998? 

A Yes. I t  contained in fo rma t ion  t h a t  

would have no t  been a v a i l a b l e  u n t i l  t h e  summer o f  

1998. 

Q L i k e  what? 

A The l o c a t i o n  o f  the  p roper t y ,  p r i c e  o f  

t h e  s a l t  expected, expected p r i c e  o f  e l e c t r i c i t y .  

Q And i s  i t  your test imony t h a r  the  

expected p r i c e  o f  e l e c t r i c i t y  i s  something you d i d  

n o t  know u n t i l  t h e  summer o f  1998? 

A Tha t ' s  when t h e  p r o b a b i l i t y  increased 

t o  a p o i n t  where we f e l t  i t  was wor th pursuing. 
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Q when d i d  you f i r s t  reasonably be l i eve  

24 t h a t  odyssey would get a r a t e  o f  per  megawatt 

25 hour? 
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MR. SMITH: ob jec t  t o  t h e  form. 

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) I'll ask i t  a 

l i t t l e  d i f f e r e n t l y .  

was l i k e l y  t h a t  odyssey would ge t  a m per  

megawatt hour e l e c t r i c  ra te?  

when d i d  you f i r s t  b e l i e v e  i t  

A I d i d n ' t  consider i t  l i k e l y  u n t i l  i t  

happened, which was on September 4 o f  1998. 

September 4 ,  i t  was j u s t  a p o s s i b i l i t y .  

Before 

Q I n  M r .  Allman's March 1 2  memo, i t  says 

t h a t  you and M r .  DeAngelis t o l d  him t h a t  odyssey's 

e n t i r e  business p lan  was based on a e e l e c t r i c  

ra te .  IS t h a t  t r u e  o r  not? 

MR. SMITH: Object  t o  the  form. 

Misstates what t h e  document says. 

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) L e t  me read 

verbat im. Quote, they i n d i c a t e d  t h a t  t h e i r  e n t i r e  

business p lan  had been based on 0 per  megawatt 

hour e l e c t r i c i t y .  c lose  quote. Is t h a t  t r u e ?  

MR. SMITH: Same o b j e c t i o n .  Miss ta tes  

t h e  document. 

THE WITNESS: w e l l ,  t h i s  i s  what t h e  

i n d i v i d u a l s  i n  TECO t o l d  Pat based on what 

they  heard e i t h e r  Pete DeAngelis o r  I say, and 

I ' m  a l l ow ing  t h a t  we might  have sa id ,  

expect ing $36 power, and we d i d n ' t  know about 
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t he  10 percent  u t i l i t y  t ax ,  bu t  g iven t h a t ,  

t h a t ' s  39.6. Tha t ' s  what we came today 

expect ing.  SO t h a t  would be my r e c o l l e c t i o n  

o f  what might have been sa id  a t  t h a t  meeting. 

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) Wel l ,  back i n  

March o f  1998 when you had these conversat ions w i t h  

M r .  Allman and M r .  Pa is ley  and M r .  shepherd --  
A No. M r .  Allman was n o t  i n  t h a t  

meeting . 
Q w e l l  -- 

A M r .  Allman heard about t h e  meeting. 

Q YOU had a meeting w i t h  M r .  Pa i s ley  and 

M r .  shepherd on March 12, d i d n ' t  you? 

A I c a n ' t  swear t o  the  names, b u t  yes, we 

had meetings w i t h  people f rom TECO. 

Q And t h a t  evening you received a c a l l  

from M r .  Allman, d i d n ' t  you? 

A I remember it as a few days l a t e r ,  bu t  

I remember g e t t i n g  a c a l l  f rom M r .  Allman. 

Q Wel l ,  M r .  Allman descr ibes the  

telephone c a l l  i n  h i s  March 12, 1998 memo, which he 

typed a t  11:22 p.m., so i f  M r .  Allman says t h a t  

t h a t  te lephone c a l l  took  p lace  t h e  evening o f  

March 12, do you have anyth ing t o  r e f u t e  t h a t ?  

A NO. 

I 

199 
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Q I n  any event, d i d  you t e l l  any o f  those 

t h r e e  people, Anthony Pais ley,  Dave shepherd o r  M r .  

Allman, t h a t  Odyssey's e n t i r e  business p l a n  had 

been based on a 0 per megawatt hour e l e c t r i c  

ra te?  

A I d i d  no t .  

Q D id  M r .  DeAngelis t e l l  them t h a t  i n  

you r p res en c e? 

A Not t h a t  I r e c a l l .  

Q D id  you o r  a c t u a l l y  d i d  odyssey have a 

business p l a n  o r  prospect ive business p lan  a t  t h a t  

t ime? 

A I would t h i n k  not .  I ' m  n o t  abso lu te l y  

sure,  b u t  I would t h i n k  t h a t  t h e r e  would no t  have 

been enough in fo rma t ion  t o  d r a f t  one. 

Q w e l l ,  t o  your knowledge -- 
A We had been working from t h e  end o f  

1997, so I d o n ' t  know a t  what p o i n t  you would c a l l  

i t  a business p lan.  

Q A t  what p o i n t  was t h e r e  any s o r t  of 

model o r  business p lan  p u t  i n  w r i t i n g  f o r  the  

proposed new p l a n t ?  

A w e l l ,  sometime i n  t h e  f i r s t  h a l f  of 

1998. 

Q But ,  w e l l ,  g e t t i n g  back t o  my quest ion,  

200 

1 

2 Allman and M r .  Pa is ley  and M r .  shepherd on March 1 2  

3 of  1998? 

was i t  before  o r  a f t e r  your conversat ions w i t h  M r .  
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A There may have been some s o r t  o f  d r a f t  

business p lan  a t  t he  t ime we had the meeting, b u t  

i t coul  dn ' t have been very compl e t e .  

Q Did  t h a t  business p lan  have an e l e c t r i c  

r a t e  i n  i t  o f  per megawatt hour? 

A No. I f  there  was- a- business p lan ,  

p r i o r  t o  the  meeting i t  would have been $36. 

t h e  meeting i t  would have been 39.6 because as I 

r e c a l l ,  t h a t ' s  where we learned about t h e  10 

percent  t a x .  

A f t e r  

Q Well , d i d  you t e l l  M r .  Allman on 

March 12 t h a t  you needed a r a t e  o f  e i t h e r  $36 p l u s  

t a x  or $39.6 i n  order  f o r  your business p lan  t o  

work? 

A I d o n ' t  r e c a l l  t h a t .  

Q what do you r e c a l l  t e l l i n g  him about 

t h a t ?  

A That  I wanted t h e  $36 ra te  t h a t  was 

pub l ished i n  h i s  r a t e  sheets. 

Q D i d  you t e l l  him t h a t  your business 

p lan  requ i red  a $36 ra te?  

A I d o n ' t  r e c a l l  t e l l i n g  him t h a t ,  no. 

201 

1 Q w e l l ,  what r a t e  do you r e c a l l  t e l l i n g  

2 

3 12th? 

4 A That  I expected $36. I t  wasn't a 

5 quest ion of  what I needed. I expected $36. 

6 Q w e l l ,  j u s t  t o  be c l e a r ,  M r .  Allman i n  

him t h a t  you needed when you t a l k e d  w i t h  him on t h e  
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t h i s  memo says t h a t  you be l ieved t h a t  w i thou t  the  

0 per  megawatt hour r a t e  your o n l y  choices would 

be t o  n o t  b u i l d  the  p l a n t  o r  l o c a t e  i t  elsewhere. 

IS he wrong about t h a t ?  

A You'd have t o  ask M r .  Allman. 

Q w e l l ,  I have bu t  I ' m  ask ing you now. 

A I don ' t  be l i eve  t h a t ' s  what was sa id  i n  

t h e  meeting, b u t  as i t  was re layed t o  M r .  Allman 

and t h e  way he understood i t ,  he very  w e l l  could be 

t e l l i n g  t h e  t r u t h  as he knew i t  i n  t h a t  memo, not  

be i  ng present  a t  the  meeting. 

Q w e l l ,  t h e  p a r t  o f  h i s  memo where I ' m  

reading t h a t  f rom r e l a t e s  t o  h i s  te lephone 

conversat ion w i t h  you, bu t  you ' re  say ing t h a t  you 

never t o l d  him t h a t  w i thou t  t h e  per  megawatt 

hour r a t e  your o n l y  choice would be t o  no t  b u i l d  

t h e  p l a n t  o r  l o c a t e  i t  elsewhere, r i g h t ?  

A I d o n ' t  r e c a l l  t e l l i n g  him t h a t  

s p e c i f i c a l l y  was any d i f f e r e n t  than any o ther  

202 
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9 

number f o r  e l e c t r i c i t y .  

Q I t  says here t h a t  he asked you on 

March 1 2  t o  g i v e  him a copy o f  your  business p lan.  

D id  he do t h a t ?  

A If he asked me, I ' m  sure I d i d  i t .  

Q Doesn' t  t h a t  i n d i c a t e  t o  you t h a t  there  

was a business p lan  i n  ex is tence a t  t h a t  t ime? 

A That  would i n d i c a t e ,  yes. 

Q cou ld  he be r i g h t  about t h a t ?  
Page 5 1  
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A He could be r i g h t ,  t h a t  t he  business 

p lan  ex is ted  i n  some form. 

changed over time. 

p lan  as more in fo rmat ion  was co l l ec ted .  

I t ' s  a document t h a t  

It became a b e t t e r  business 

Q Did t h a t  business p lan  ever have an 

e l e c t r i c  r a t e  h igher  than per megawatt hour? 

A I r e c a l l  seeing one t h a t  had $41, bu t  I 

d o n ' t  know why. 

Q You d o n ' t  know why? 

A No. A t  t he  t ime  I guess we thought we 

might  pay $41, t a x  o r  something. 

Q M r .  Allman says here t h a t  he was going 

t o  send you a nondisc losure agreement. 

t h a t ?  

Did he do 

A I r e c o l l e c t  t h a t  he d id ,  yes. 

Q w e l l ,  you t o l d  us t h a t  your business 

203 

5 
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1 2  

p lan  always had r a t e s  of  $41  o r  l e s s  i n  i t .  

t h a t ?  

why i s  

A That was based on in format ion t h a t  we 

go t  from TECO. 

Q w e l l ,  i f  you had no t  been ab le  t o  ge t  a 

r a t e  o f  0 per megawatt hour f rom TECO, would you 

s t i l l  have b u i l t  t h e  p l a n t  i n  Tampa? 

A w e l l ,  t he re  was some leeway. I d o n ' t  

know what our th resho ld  was, b u t  we went f rom 36 t o  

39.6 i n  an hour and d i d n ' t  cancel t he  p r o j e c t .  we 

had some to le rance about 0, bu t  I don ' t  remember 

what our l i m i t  was, and we never had t o  t e l l  them. 
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Q wel l ,  was there any limit t o  how h i g h  

an e l e c t r i c  r a t e  odyssey could agree t o  pay and 

s t i l l  go forward w i t h  the  plant? 

A I ' m  sure there was. 

Q How would that  have been determined? 

A - By calculat ing-the cost  t o  make a 

gallon of bleach a t  each rate  a t  w h i c h  e l e c t r i c i t y  

was offered. 

Q were those calculations done during 

th i s  planning process leading up t o  the 

construction o f  t h e  plant? 

A Not t o  my knowledge. 

Q No one ever p u t  a pen t o  paper t o  

f igure out what t h e  cost  o f  production would be a t  

different  e l e c t r i c  ra tes?  

A Not t o  my knowledge. 

Q D i d  you ever t e s t i f y  e i the r  by 

a f f i d a v i t  o r  wri t ten testimony or  l i v e  testimony 

t h a t  without a r a t e  o f  approximately e per 

megawatt hour you would not have gone forward w i t h  

the odyssey plant?  

A Yes. I signed -- i n  order t o  qualify 

f o r  the CISR t a r i f f ,  I signed an a f f i d a v i t  t o  TECO 

tha t  said i f  I d i d n ' t  get  the CISR r a t e ,  tha t  I 

would not b u i l d  t h e  p l a n t  o r  b u i l d  i t  elsewhere. 

Q The CISR r a t e  o f  

A The C I S R  r a t e  fo r  which they had 

offered me 0. 

.. . .. . .. 

2 04 
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Q So you signed an a f f i d a v i t  saying t h a t  

w i t h o u t  t h a t  C I S R  r a t e  you would no t  b u i l d  t h e  

p l a n t  i n  Tampa, r i g h t ?  

A could you repeat t h a t ?  

Q Yes. You signed an a f f i d a v i t  t h a t  

w i t h o u t  t h e  0 r a t e  you would not  b u i l d  t h e  p l a n t  

i n  Tampa, r i g h t ?  

A I was s ign ing  an a f f i d a v i t  t h a t  s a i d  

t h a t  i f  TECO d i d  not  o f f e r  me a r a t e  under t h e  C I S R  

t a r i f f ,  I would b u i l d  the  p l a n t  elsewhere o r  n o t  

205 

b u i l d  i t .  

Q w e l l  , I mean -- 
A I don ' t  know t h a t  0 was i n  t h a t  

document. I don ' t  be l i eve  t h a t  i t  was. I f  you 

have a copy, I ' d  be happy t o  l o o k  a t  i t . 

Q w e ' l l  probably do t h a t  be fore  t h e  end 

o f  t h e  day. 

YOU don ' t  r e c a l l  what number was i n  t h e  

a f f i d a v i t ,  i f  any? 

A The number was no t  impor tant  t o  me. I 

was s i g n i n g  t h a t  I need -- conceptual ly  t h a t  I 

needed t h e  CISR t a r i f f  o f f e r  and no t  t h e  r a t e  t h a t  

people pay i n  t h e i r  houses and no t  t h e  

i n t e r r u p t i b l e  r a t e  because the re  was a w a i t i n g  

l i s t .  

Q w e l l ,  how d i d  you know when you s igned 

t h e  a f f i d a v i t  what r a t e  you needed? 

A I d o n ' t  understand the  ques t ion .  
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19 Q YOU say t h a t  you signed an a f f i d a v i t  

20 

2 1  p l a n t .  what r a t e  were  you r e f e r r i n g  t o  i n  terms o f  

22 numbers? 

23 A I had i n  my mind 0. That was the  

24 

2 5  t ime he discussed the  C I S R  r a t e  w i t h  me. He sa id  

saying t h a t  you needed the  CISR r a t e  t o  b u i l d  the  

number t h a t  Allman had-come up w i t h  from t h e  f i r s t  
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t he  CISR r a t e  w i l l  be h igher  than t h e  i n t e r r u p t i b l e  

ra te .  Approximately I). I t  was h i s  number. 

Q when you signed the  a f f i d a v i t ,  t h e  

number t h a t  you had i n  mind i n  s ign ing  t h a t  

a f f i d a v i t  was e, r i g h t ?  

A Tha t ' s  what I had been t o l d .  

Q HOW d i d  you know t h a t  e would make 

the  p l a n t  f e a s i b l e  i f  you had never done any 

ca l  c u l  a t i  ons? 

A You asked i f  I -- we had done 

c a l c u l a t i o n s  a t  I). 
Q I thought e a r l i e r ,  t e n  minutes ago, you 

t o l d  me t h a t  you had not done any c a l c u l a t i o n s .  

A I saw ca lcu la t i ons  a t  $36, $39.6, @ 
and $41. I b e l i e v e  t h a t  you asked me f o r  o the r  

numbers h igher  than $41. 

Q who d i d  those ca l  cu l  a t ions? 

A DeAngelis. 

Q And they  were a t  $36, $39.6 and $41? 

A 

Q And e. L e t  me make sure I have t h a t  
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24 A Those are  c a l c u l a t i o n s  t h a t  I r e c a l l  

25 seeing.  

$36, $39.6, e and $41, i s  t h a t  r i g h t ?  
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Q what was your  bas is  f o r  say ing then i n  

t h e  a f f i d a v i t  t h a t  w i t h o u t  a r a t e  i n  t h a t  range you 

would n o t  b u i l d  t h e  p l a n t  i n  Tampa? 

A As I understood i t , my choices t o  buy 

power f rom TECO were i n t e r r u p t i b l e .  

ove rso ld  and on a w a i t i n g  l i s t .  The C I S R  r a t e ,  

which t h e y  had t o l d  me v e r b a l l y  would be i n  t h e  

o rde r  o f  o r  t h e  r a t e  t h a t  people pay i n  t h e i r  

houses, which I don ' t  know what i t  i s  bu t  I assume 

i t ' s  u n a t t r a c t i v e .  SO g iven  those th ree  choices,  I 

s a i d  t h a t  I needed t h e  CISR r a t e  o r  I wouldn ' t  

b u i l d  t h e  p l a n t .  

The t a r i f f  was 

Q what would have made the  r a t e  t h a t  

people pay f o r  t h e i  r houses una t t rac t i ve?  

A It makes t h e  bleach cost  more per 

g a l l o n  f o r  e l e c t r i c i t y .  

Q Why i s  t h e  e l e c t r i c  cost  impor tant  o r  

why was i t  impor tan t  t o  you i n  determining whether 

o r  n o t  t h e  p l a n t  would be feas ib le?  

A w e l l  , paying t h e  r a t e  t h a t  people pay 

i n  t h e i r  houses would have been a waste o f  money. 

I t ' s  cheaper se rv i ce  t o  p rov ide .  There's a heavy 

l o a d  a t  n i g h t  when everybody i s  s leeping,  and i t  

should be a cheaper r a t e ,  and paying TECO the  r a t e  
Page 56 



1218035s. t x t  

2 5  t h a t  people pay i n  t h e i r  houses would have been a 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

1 5  

16 

17 

1 8  

19 

2 0  

2 1  

22 

23 

24 

25 

208 

waste o f  money. 

would have g iven us a discounted i n d u s t r i a l  ra te ,  

so t h e r e  was no p a r t i c u l a r  reason t o  pay TECO t h e  

f u l l  r e s i  dent i  a1 t a r i f f .  

some- elec_tri..c-..u_ti_li~~- som-ewhere 

MR. BANDKLAYDER: A l l  - r i g h t .  I f  YOU 

a l l  want t o  take a shor t  break f o r  lunch,  we 

can do t h a t  now. I f  you ' re  no t  hungry,  we 

d o n ' t  have t o .  why don ' t  we take  a break. 

w e ' l l  p i c k  back up a t  --  be ready t o  go by 1. 

(Thereupon, a luncheon recess was taken 

from 12:OO t o  1:07.) 

(Thereupon, the  documents r e f e r r e d  t o  

were marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n  as P l a i n t i f f ' s  

E x h i b i t  Nos. 4 and 5.) 

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) Next e x h i b i t  i s  

NO. 4. Here's an ex t ra .  

I ' m  a l so  going t o  hand what you I have 

now marked E x h i b i t  5 .  That i s  SS5. 

Have you had a chance t o  l o o k  a t  

E x h i b i t  4? 

A yes. 

Q And does t h a t  appear t o  be a t r u e  and 

co r rec t  copy o f  t he  a f f i d a v i t  t h a t  you submi t ted t o  

Tampa E l  e c t r i  c company? 

A Yes. 
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Q And i n  t h a t  a f f i d a v i t ,  paragraph 4, you 

s t a t e  i f  Odyssey i s  unable t o  ob ta in  a r a t e  o f  

b lank --  i t ' s  l e f t  b lank  --  cents per k i l o w a t t  hour 

o r  l ess ,  odyssey w i l l  have no a l t e r n a t i v e  b u t  t o  

l o c a t e  i t s  manufactur ing f a c i l i t y  i n  a d i f f e r e n t  

e l e c t r i c  se rv i ce  area where i t  can ob ta in  such a 

r a t e .  

That i s  what you s tated? 

A I read t h a t ,  yes. 

Q YOU signed t h a t ?  

A Yes, I d i d .  

Q And you submit ted t h a t  t o  Tampa 

E l e c t r i c  Company, d i d  you no t?  

A Yes, I d i d .  

Q And the  r a t e  t h a t  i s  i n  t h a t  paragraph, 

al though i t ' s  blanked ou t  on my copy, ism 

cents ,  i s n ' t  i t ?  

A I would b e l i e v e  so, yes. 

Q I f  you l o o k  a t  E x h i b i t  No. 5 ,  which i s  

a memo from Pat Allman, he exp la ins  t h a t  t h e  r a t e  

r e f e r r e d  t o  i n  the  a f f i d a v i t  i s  0 per megawatt 

hour, which o f  course would be e cents, r i g h t ?  

A That i s  c o r r e c t .  

Q SO even though our  copy o f  the 

a f f i d a v i t  i s  redacted ou t ,  what i t  says underneath 

2 10 

1 t he  blacked ou t  p a r t  i s  -cents per  k i l o w a t t  
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hour? 

A I would t h i n k  so. 

Q Is t he re  any doubt i n  your mind about 

t h a t ?  

A NO. I don ' t  know what e l s e  i t  cou ld  

have been. 

Q what i s odyssey's present capac i ty  i n 

terms o f  b leach product ion? 

A 

Q And are you p lann ing  an expansion i n  

t h e  near f u t u r e ?  

A Yes 

Q when? 

A w i t h i n  t h e  nex t  s i x  weeks. 

Q . So t h a t ' s  t h e  Christmas expansion t h a t  

M r .  Allman r e f e r r e d  t o ?  

A I would assume so. 

Q He s a i d  you were going t o  be doing 

expansion around Christmastime, so t h a t ' s  Christmas 

o f  t h i s  year ,  even though i t ' s  r e a l l y  going t o  be 

f o u r  o r  f i v e  weeks a f t e r  Christmas? 

A Yeah. I d o n ' t  know e x a c t l y  when i t  i s ,  

b u t  we a r e  t a l k i n g  about t h e  same t h i n g .  

Q What i s  t h e  na ture  o f  t h a t  expansion? 

2 11 

1 A -- 
2 Q what w i l l  t h e  capac i t y  be a f t e r  t h a t  

3 

4 A -gallons. 

expansion i s  completed and opera t i ona l?  
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Q what type  o f  c e l l s  are you adding i n  

t h i  s expansion? 

A manufactured 

by  Ineos .  

Q The same c e l l s  t h a t  you have had f o r  

t h e  o t h e r  p r e e x i s t i n g  p lan t?  

A yes, f o r  a l l  p r a c t i c a l  purposes, 

i d e n t i c a l  t o  the  e x i s t i n g .  

Q The type t h a t  l oan  Minty  descr ibed a t  

her  depos i t ion?  

A I d o n ' t  r e c a l l  a 

Q YOU were there  w i t h  me, a l though you 

l e f t  e a r l y .  - 
A -  

Q 

A odyssey's crew. 

Q 

And who's doing t h e  expansion? 

Are the re  any f u r t h e r  expansions 

planned a f t e r  t h a t ?  

A Yes. 

Q when and what? 

A The p l a n t  i s  designed t o  rece ive  0 

212 

2 c e l l .  

3 Q Now, a re  t h e  ones t h a t  you ' re  go ing  t o  

4 

5 

6 A Yes. 

7 Q And then a f t e r  t h a t  you p lan  a t  some 

be adding i n  the  next  s i x  weeks o r  so, a re  those 

going t o  be numbers - 
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p o i n t  t o  add numbers 0 

A Yes. 

Q Now, you say t h a t  t h a t ' s  what the  p l a n t  

what do you mean? was designed f o r .  

A The p l a n t  was -a day expandable 

And once -- 
The * i s  t he  product ion w i t h  .cells. 

When you say 0, i s  t h a t  e 
I )  per day o f  c h l o r i n e .  

to * 
Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q IS t h a t  d- 
A 0 
Q HOW much does -- what does t h a t  

t r a n s l a t e  t o  -- I ' m  so r ry .  

maxi mum? 

Did you s a y a i s  t h e  

A Yes. 

Q what does t h a t  t r a n s l a t e  t o  i n  terms of 

ga l l ons  o f  bleach? 

213 

A About- 

Q Annual ly? 

A Per year,  annual ly .  

Q DOeS t h a t  assume t h e  p l a n t  i s  running 

2 4  hours a day seven days a week? 

A I t  assumes t h a t  i t  w i l l  be down f o r  a 

number o f  days per year.  

Q SO what percentage e f f i c i e n c y  l e v e l  o r  

running t ime  a r e  you assuming when you use a f i g u r e  

o f  l e t ' s  say w a s  t h e  maximum p l a n t  
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A I s a i d  - 
Q I ' m  sorry .  A f t e r  you g e t  up t o  t h e e  

w, does t h a t  come to- 

A Yes. 

Q I thought you sa id  1). My mistake. 

A f t e r  you a d d - c e l l s  NO. @aKd-@; t h a t  

w i l l  g i v e  you a maximum capaci ty  o f  somewhere i n  

t h e  @ t o  - g a l l o n  range? - gallons .  

A w i t h  c e l l s ,  we expect 1) o r  0 

A t  1 ) c e l l s ,  you w i l l  havel), 8 - gallons,  and then when you do t h e  next  

expansion up t o e  c e l l s ,  t h a t  w i l l  g i v e  you 0 
0, which i s  t h e  equiva lent  of- 

Q 

gal lons,  i s  t h a t  r i g h t ?  

A R i g h t .  YOU asked about t h e  e f f i c i e n c y .  

The e f f i c i e n c y  would be somewhere between 0 and 0 
percent. I d o n ' t  know e x a c t l y .  

Q IS t h e  p l a n t  capable o f  be ing expanded 

beyond e c e l l s  or- o r  - gallons? 

A I t  would be d i f f i c u l t .  

Q why? 

A Because t h e  i n d i v i d u a l  processes a r e  

s ized f o r  0. 
Q I ' m  n o t  sure I understand what t h a t  

means. Probably because I ' m  n o t  an engineer. when 

you say t h e  i n d i v i d u a l  processes, what a re  you 
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r e f e r r i n g  t o ?  

A The T. R. set  t h a t  receives and 

c o n d i t i o n s  t h e  e l e c t r i c i t y ,  the l i x a t o r  t h a t  

d isso lves  t h e  s a l t  and p u r i f i e s  t h e  b r i n e  t o  feed 

t h e  c e l l s ,  t h e  c i r c u l a t i o n  o f  the b r i n e  i n  t h e  c e l l  

loop  and t h e  processing c h l o r i n e  and c a u s t i c  i n t o  

bieach, i t ' s  a l l  s i z e d  f o r  t h e  maximum capaci ty  o f  

t h a t  p l a n t .  To make i t  go higher,  you would have 

t o  l o o k  a t  t h e  p o t e n t i a l  b o t t l e  necks, which you 

would expect t o  be frequent since everyth ing was 

Q IS t h e  amount o f  e l e c t r i c i t y  t h a t  
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y o u ' r e  e n t i t l e d  t o  receive under t h e  e x i s t i n g  TECO 

c o n t r a c t  s u f f i c i e n t  t o  prov ide power f o r  o r  

A Yes. 

Q I s  i t  s u f f i c i e n t  t o  prov ide enough 

power f o r  any amounts over tha t?  

A I r e c a l l  there  was some leeway above (. m a day. 

Q Approximately how much? 

MR. SMITH: I f  you know. 

THE WITNESS: I don' t  know. I could 

guess. 

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) what's your bes t  

approximat ion recogniz ing i t  may n o t  be e x a c t l y  

p rec ise? 

MR. SMITH: l u s t  the bes t  o f  your 
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memory . 

THE WITNESS: .or -a day. 

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) can you t e l l  me 

approximately how much e l e c t r i c i t y  i t  would requi  r e  

t o  produce up t o  (.or "per day? 

A 

Q 

Twice as much as o r  -per day. 

How much- e T e c t r i c i  t y  is requ i  red '  f o r  

l e t ' s  say - per day? IS there a formula? 

A Yeah, I bel ieve f o r  those c e l l s  i t ' s  
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about 

speed, a t  a c u r r e n t  densi ty  o f  1) w i t h  our 

or  0 k i l o w a t t s  per 0 a t  f u l l  - c e l l  o f  the  s i z e  t h a t  we have w i t h  t h e  . 

number of membranes t h a t  we have. 

Q So t h a t ' s  roughly how much o r  t h e  

q u a n t i t y  o f  ECU t h a t  those p a r t i c u l a r  c e l l s  can 

generate with- i s  i t  megawatts o r  wat ts? 

A No. Those are k i l o w a t t s .  

Q 0 k i l o w a t t s ?  

A -. Might b e w a t  f u l l  

c u r r e n t  d e n s i t y .  

Q So i f  we l o o k  a t  t h e  maximum number o f  

k i l o w a t t s  t h a t  odyssey i s  e n t i t l e d  t o  rece ive  under 

t h e  TECO c o n t r a c t  and d i v i d e  i t  by- o r  

t h a t  w i l l  t e l l  us t h e  maximum number o f  ECU t h a t  

t h e  p l a n t  can generate under t h e  ex i  s t i  ng c o n t r a c t ,  

i s  t h a t  r i g h t ?  

A I f  t h e  u n i t s  -- i f  e v e r y t h i n g  i s  i n  t h e  

same u n i t s ,  t h a t  c a l c u l a t i o n  should work, yes. 
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20 Q The e l e c t r i c  r a t e  t h a t  odyssey has i s  

2 1  e s s e n t i a l l y  guaranteed under i t s  con t rac t  through 

22 sometime i n  2010, r i g h t ?  

23 A I r e c a l l  t h a t  i t  was a t e n  year 

24 cont rac t .  

25  Q Maybe i t ' s  2009, b u t  my r e c o l l e c t i o n  -- 
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t h e  p o i n t  i s  i t ' s  a t e n  year cont rac t ,  and i t  says 

what your ra tes w i l l  be dur ing  t h e  term o f  t h e  

c o n t r a c t ,  r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q Have you done any p lann ing  t o  determine 

what w i l l  happen once t h a t  c o n t r a c t  expi  res? 

A NO. 

Q Has t h a t  sub jec t  come up a t  a l l  among 

t h e  investors .  o r  the  company people? 

A NO.  

Q w e l l ,  as we s i t  here  today, do you have 

any ideas as t o  what's going t o  happen w i t h  regard 

t o  odyssey's e l e c t r i c  r a t e  a f t e r  t h e  TECO c o n t r a c t  

expi  res? 

A We don ' t  know what TECO w i l l  o f f e r  us. 

we know t h a t  t h e r e  are improvements i n  t h e  c e l l  

technology, which would e f f e c t i v e l y  c u t  our 

e l e c t r i c  ra te .  We could rep lace  our e x i s t i n g  c e l l s  

w i t h  the  new generat ion o f  c e l l s  t h a t  a re  much more 

e f f i c i e n t  and purchase a l o t  l e s s  e l e c t r i c i t y  per  

ECU ton, as low as e k i l o w a t t  hours per - 
a t  0 cur ren t  dens i ty  l o a d i n g  on t h e  membranes. 
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24 

25 A Righ t  now there  would be a - would g i ve  you 0 k i l o w a t t s  
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Q Are the re  disadvantages associated w i t h  

t h a t  as compared t o  the  - t h a t  you ' re  

using? 

A None. 

Q Is i t  poss ib le  f o r  you t o  use those i n  

your expansions? 

A I t  would be more expensive than -- our 

expansion i s  v e r y  cheap because spaces were l e f t  

t he re  t o  drop i n  these p a r t i c u l a r  c e l l s .  

i n  o ther  c e l l  s would requi  r e  d i f f e r e n t  w i  r i  ng , 
d i f f e r e n t  -- t h e  transformer r e c t i f i e r  would have 

t o  cond i t i on  e l e c t r i c i t y  t o  a new standard. 

woul dn ' t be cheap and simple, b u t  techn ica l  1 y , yes, 

we could change today t o  those c e l l s .  

Dropping 

I t  

Q Does the  t ransformer r e c t i f i e r  t h a t  

you ' re  now us ing  have a maximum c a p a b i l i t y  i n  terms 

o f  t h e  amount o f  e l e c t r i c i t y  i t ' s  ab le  t o  handle? 

A - per day. 

Q would i t  handle anyth ing over and above 

t h a t ?  

A Not as i t  s i t s  today, no. 

Q cou ld  i t  be mod i f ied  o r  would it j u s t  

have t o  be replaced? 

A I d o n ' t  know. 
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Q You mentioned t h a t  the  expansions 

y o u ' r e  p lann ing  a re  r e l a t i v e l y  cheap. 

c o s t  o f  them? 

what i s  t he  

A About _ _  .- 

Q For what, t h e  complete -- 
A For m c e l l s ,  f o r  a 

expansion. 

Q Does t h a t  i nc lude  a l l  t h e  costs 

assoc ia ted  w i th  t h e  expansion? 

A Yes. 

Q Not j u s t  acqu i r i ng  the  c e l l s ,  bu t  I 

guess the  l a b o r ,  i n s t a l l a t i o n ,  w i r i n g ,  whatever 

e l s e  has t o  be done i n  connection w i t h  tha t?  

A Yes, approximately.  

Q I mean t h a t ' s  f i n e .  

A 

Q 

w i th in  $100,000 or  $200,000 each way. 

From whom a re  you acqu i r i ng  the  c e l l s ?  

A _. 
Q Are they  new c e l l s ?  

A Yes. 

Q Is Joan M in ty  invo lved i n  t h a t  process? 

A I assume so. 

Q TO what ex ten t  i s  she invo lved  i n  

d e a l i n g  w i t h  odyssey? 

A I d o n ' t  know. 

0 
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Q Do you have contact  w i t h  her from t ime 

t o  t i  me? 

A The on ly  t i m e  I ' v e  ever seen her  o r  

t a l ked  t o  her was a t  her  deposi t ion.  I ' m  sor ry .  I 

saw her  a t  the  s t a r t u p  bu t  d i d  no t  speak t o  her. 

Q I have some quest ions regard ing costs.  

Hopefu l l y  t h i s  won' t  ge t  i n t o  a s e n s i t i v e  area. 

we l l ,  l e t  me s t a r t  ou t  w i t h  t h e  bas ics.  what does 

i t  cos t  odyssey t o  generate one ECU? 

MR. SMITH: ob jec t ion .  Continue our 

ob jec t ion .  Th is  i s  c o n f i d e n t i a l  in fo rmat ion  

and i s  i r r e l e v a n t  t o  t h e  issues i n  t h i s  case. 

I n s t r u c t  him n o t  t o  answer. 

MR. BANDKLAYDER: I thought we were 

beyond -- we were i n  agreement and t h e  judge 

was i n  agreement and everybody was i n  

agreement t h a t  costs  a re  d iscoverable i n  t h i s  

case. 

MR. SMITH: Dan, we had a long 

d iscuss ion about t h i s  yesterday. You never 

go t  back t o  me, so as f a r  as I ' m  concerned, 

t h e  same r u l e s  apply .  

MR. BANDKLAYDER: we haven' t  reached an 

agreement regard ing p r o f i t s ,  b u t  I d o n ' t  t h i n k  

t h a t  t h e r e ' s  anyth ing t o  d iscuss w i th  regards 

221 

t o  costs.  I mean the  judge has ru led  t h a t  

bo th  s ides have t o  d i sc lose  t h e i r  cos ts .  We 

have a l ready  d isc losed ours,  and I know you 
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want more in fo rmat ion  and y o u ' l l  ge t  i t , b u t  

you now have t o  d i sc lose  yours. 

MR. SMITH: You have no t  sent them y e t .  

That s t i l l  was up i n  the  a i r  yesterday. You 

d i d n ' t  agree t o  t h a t .  

what documents you ' re  going t o  produce t o  

support  your costs .  

YOU haven' t  t o l d  me 

I haven't go t  anything. 

MR. BANDKLAYDER : we1 1 , YOU know, YOU 

gave us an i n t e r r o g a t o r y .  

our cos ts  and you asked us t o  break i t  down by 

s i x  or  so categor ies o f  d i f f e r e n t  types o f  

cos ts ,  and we answered the  i n t e r r o g a t o r y  

completely,  and you ' re  f r e e  t o  quest ion our  

wi tnesses about i t ,  request more documents. 

YOU asked us f o r  

MR. SMITH: I asked f o r  documents. You 

s t i l l  haven ' t  g iven them t o  me. I don ' t  know 

how many t imes I have t o  ask you f o r  them. 

MR. BANDKLAYDER: I ' m  no t  sure which 

documents you ' re  r e f e r r i n g  t o .  

f o r  documents now. I ' m  j u s t  asking f o r  t h e  

same in fo rma t ion  t h a t  you've a l ready go t ten  

from us. Obviously you know we a r e  l a t e  i n  

I ' m  no t  ask ing  

222 

the  game. 

t h a t .  

gamesmanship here. 

cos ts .  I know you say you want more 

suppor t ing  documentation, and t h a t ' s  f i n e .  

Y o u ' l l  ge t  i t , b u t  so f a r  we don ' t  even have 

I t ' s  t ime t h a t  we move forward w i t h  

I ' m  no t  t r y i n g  t o  engage i n  

we have given you our  
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your costs ,  l e t  a lone any suppor t ing 

documentation. 

MR. SMITH: our costs a re  n o t  re levant  

Since you have changed your -- t o  t h i s  case. 

t h e  o r i g i n a l  d iscussion w i t h  t h e  judge was 

based up-on--yaur-version o r  your theory- o f  your 

damages a t  t h e  t ime. 

so i t ' s  no longer  re levant  t o  t h i s  case. 

That 's  t o t a l l y  changed, 

MR. BANDKLAYDER: Our theory  i s  we 

should have a c e l l  p l a n t  b u t  we d o n ' t  because 

o f  what t h e  defendants d id .  I f  we had a c e l l  

p l a n t ,  we could generate o r  produce bleach a t  

t h e  same c o s t  t h a t  t h e  defendants a r e  

producing i t  a t ,  and we are e n t i t l e d  t o  show 

what those costs  are.  

MR. SMITH: That 's  no t  what you say i n  

your answers t o  i n t e r r o g a t o r i e s .  

MR. BANDKLAYDER: I t h i n k  i t  i s .  I t ' s  

e x a c t l y  what we say i n  our i n t e r r o g a t o r y  

223 

answers, 

MR. SMITH: You've go t  t o  show me t h a t  

because I d o n ' t  see it, and so f a r  you have 

produced no documentation t o  support  your  

c l a i m  f o r  your damages, f o r  your cos ts ,  f o r  

noth ing and so t o  say t h a t  i t ' s  been agreed 

upon, and i t ' s  been done i s  j u s t  i n c o r r e c t .  

YOU haven' t  done it. 

MR. BANDKLAYDER: Judge Farre11 r u l e d  
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on i t .  YOU were there.  I was there .  I sa id  

iudge, we have answered t h e  i n te r roga to r ies .  

Here are our costs, and he said, yes, you 

have. okay. odyssey, you have go t  t o  p rov ide  

the  same in fo rmat ion ,  

MR. SMITH: I argued w i th  iudge Farre11 

over t h i s  issue about your c la im was -- your 

c la im was based upon the  p r o f i t s  experienced 

by odyssey. I argued wi th  him about t h a t .  He 

sa id,  smith, you may be r i g h t .  I t ' s  no t  

re1 evant and not admiss ib le  but  i t ' s  t h e i  r 
theory.  You've go t  t o  produce them. You now 

changed it. 

MR. BANDKLAYDER: That 's  n o t  how i t  

came down. 

r u l e d  on p r o f i t s  y e t ,  b u t  he has ru led  on 

YOU may be r i g h t  t h a t  he hasn ' t  

costs .  There's no doubt. I t ' s  i nd i spu tab le  

iudge Farre11 ru led  t h a t  both s ides  are 

e n t i t l e d  t o  get i n t o  costs .  

MR. SMITH: You haven' t  g iven  me any of 

your s t u f f .  

MR. BANDKLAYDER: DO you want t o  see 

our i n t e r r o g a t o r y  answer again? 

MR. SMITH: I ' m  f a m i l i a r  w i t h  i t . 

MR. BANDKLAYDER: We f l a t  Out t o l d  YOU 

what our costs  are.  YOU want t o  probe i t ,  and 

t h a t ' s  f i n e .  YOU can do t h a t ,  b u t  we've s t i l l  

g iven you t h e  costs.  I ' m  e n t i t l e d  a t  t h e  very 
Page 7 1  
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l e a s t  t o  g e t  t he  same from you. 

MR. SMITH: L is ten ,  I have a1 ready 

g iven my i n s t r u c t i o n .  YOU know what t o  do. 

MR. BANDKLAYDER: I r e a l l y  don ' t .  

THE WITNESS: I refuse t o  answer t h e  

quest ion.  

MR. SMITH: YOU Stay Out O f  i t .  

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) I ' d  l i k e  t o  know 

what i t  cos t  you t o  manufacture a ga l l on  o f  b leach 

a t  odyssey. 

MR. SMITH: same i n s t r u c t i o n .  

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) 1 ' d  1 i ke t o  know 

each element t ha t  ' s inc luded i n t h e  determi n a t i o n  

o f  what your cos ts  a re  f o r  a g a l l o n  o f  b leach and 

f o r  an ECU 

Q 

shorten t h  

MR. SMITH: Same i n s t r u c t i o n .  

(BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) w e l l ,  t h a t  w i l l  

s depos i t i on  up q u i t e  a b i t  because I 

have go t  about 100 fo l low-up quest ions.  

who's working a t  odyssey o the r  than 

Marvin Rakes, Pat  Allman, M a r j o r i e  and T i f f a n y ?  

A c r a i  g . 
Q Cra ig .  He's the  p l a n t  manager o r  t he  

operat ions manager o r  something 1 i ke t h a t ?  

A 

Q what ' s h i  s 1 a s t  name? 

A I b e l i e v e  i t ' s  Bates. 

Q 

Something 1 i ke t h a t .  

And genera l l y  what does he do? 
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Supervises the operators  and t h e  A 

maintenance people, keeps the  c e l l  p l  an t  runn i  ng . 
Q who are t h e  operators and the  

mai ntenance people? 

A 

Q 

A I do not.  

Q 

People t h a t  Pat h i  red.  

Do you know any o f  t h e i r  names? 

How many o f  them a r e  the re  

approxi  mate1 y? 

A Approximately 14. 

226 

Q 

A Yes. 

Q 

And are the re  d r i v e r s  as w e l l ?  

I t h i n k  you t o l d  us there  were about 

twe lve  t o  four teen d r i v e r s .  

r i g h t ?  

Does t h a t  sound about 

A I d i d n ' t  t e l l  you t h a t .  

Q I t h i n k  you d i d  a t  your l a s t  

depos i t i on .  How many d r i ve rs?  

A I t ' s  a be l ievab le  number. More than 

e i g h t  o r  n ine ,  l ess  than f i f t e e n .  

Q 

A It could vary.  

Q 

Does i t  vary  from month t o  month? 

or i s  i t  p r e t t y  much steady w i t h  t h e  

except ion o f  some leav ing  and some new ones coming 

on board? 

A I assume t h a t  when t h e  capac i ty  goes 

up, t h a t  some add i t i ona l  d r i v e r s  are h i r e d .  

d o n ' t  know t h a t  f o r  a f a c t .  

I 
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1 9  Q But your understanding i s t h a t  

20 

21 f i f t e e n ?  

22 A Yes 

23 Q Are you able t o  be any more s p e c i f i c  

24 than t h a t ?  

somewhere between e i g h t  o r  n ine and l e s s  than 

25 A No. 
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Q 

A Approxi matel y ten,  

Q Are they  a l l  tanker t rucks? 

A They might have a t r u c k  f o r  r e p a i r s .  I 

HOW many t rucks  does odyssey have? 

don ' t  know i f  i t ' s  t h e i r s  o r  i f  i t ' s  leased o r  

rented, b u t ,  yeah, p r i m a r i l y  t he  t r a c t o r - t r a i l e r  

tanker  t r u c k  . 
Q o the r  than the  d r i v e r s  and t h e  p l a n t  

opera t ion  people, you sa id  there  are rough ly  14 of 

them, and P a t r i c k  Allman and Marvin Rakes and 

Mar jo r i e  and T i f f a n y .  

f o r  odyssey? 

DOeS anyone e l s e  work there  

A I don ' t  be l i eve  so. 

Q T y p i c a l l y  how much does odyssey pay i t s  

t r u c k  d r i v e r s ?  

A I t  used t o  be $12 t o  $14, maybe $15 

when Pat h i r e d  them the  f i r s t  t ime.  I have no idea 

anymore. 

Q DO they  s t i l l  get  p a i d  by t h e  hour? 

A As f a r  as I know. 

Q Are maintenance people i nc luded  i n  the  
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22 

23 

24 A Some o f  those 14 people do maintenance, 

25 and the re  might be one o r  two add i t i ona l  people 

people t h a t  you've a l ready described, those 14 

people t h a t  a re  i nvo l ved  i n  the  operat ion? 
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t h a t  a1 so do maintenance. 

Q 

people make? 

T y p i c a l l y  how much do the  maintenance 

A I don ' t  know. when we s ta r ted ,  we 

d i d n ' t  have any maintenance people. 

operators .  

Q 

we j u s t  had 

T y p i c a l l y  how much do the  operators 

make? 

A when we s t a r t e d  i n  2000, I t h i n k  most 

o f  them were between $14 and $18 an hour. 

Q And M a r j o r i e  and T i f f a n y ,  approximately 

how much do they make? 

A I d o n ' t  know. 

Q A r e  t h e r e  any o the r  employees besides 

those t h a t  we've a l ready  covered? 

A Not t h a t  I can t h i n k  o f .  

Q 

A The t r a c t o r s  a re  leased and t h e  

Are t h e  t r u c k s  leased o r  purchased? 

t r a i l e r s  a re  purchased. 

Q 

A I d o n ' t  b e l i e v e  so. YOU mean 

IS t h e r e  a l oan  on t h e  t r a i l e r s ?  

speci f i c a l l  y? 

Q A c t u a l l y ,  no, I d o n ' t  mean 

s p e c i f i c a l l y .  I guess they  a r e  sub jec t  t o  a 
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A Tha t ' s  what I would assume a l so .  

Q IS t h e r e  any separate l oan  o the r  than 

t h e  C i t i zens  Bank loan t h a t  pe r ta ins  t o  t h e  

t r a i  1 ers? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

systems. 

Q 
t r a c t o r s ?  

A 

Not t h a t  I'm aware o f .  

And t h e  t r a c t o r s  you say are  leased? 

Tha t ' s  my understanding, yes. 

From who? 

I b e l i e v e  most ly from Ryder, Ryder 

Are they  a l l  t he  same types o f  

They were when we s ta r ted .  I suppose 

by now t h a t  t hey  must have changed some. 

Q How o f t e n  do you rep lace t r a c t o r s ?  

A They could be leased f o r  f o u r ,  f i v e  o r  

I'm o n l y  f a m i l i a r  w i t h  t h e  f i r s t  lease,  seven. 

which was as I r e c a l l  a f i v e  year t e r m  on t h e  f i r s t  

batch o f  t r a c t o r s .  

Q was t h i s  a batch o f  -- w e l l ,  how many 

were i n  t h a t  batch? 

A I b e l i e v e  s i x .  Might have o n l y  been 

f i v e .  

Q what type o f  t r a c t o r s  were t h e y  o r  a re  

they? 
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A Diesel  . 
Q I f i g u r e d  that ,  b u t  I mean -- 
A Twin screw I n t e r n a t i o n a l .  

Q Are they I n t e r n a t i o n a l ?  

A I t h i n k  so. 

Q Do you know the  model number? 

A NO. I ' m  n o t  even sure t h e y ' r e  

I n t e r n a t i o n a l .  

Q From whom does odyssey ob ta in  i t s  

caus t i c?  

A 

buy ing  from. 

Q 

i t s  caus t ic?  

I don ' t  know who t h e y ' r e  p resen t l y  

How much does odyssey p resen t l y  pay f o r  

A I don ' t  know. 

Q Has i t  changed s ince  odyssey s t a r t e d  

do ing  business? 

A I ' m  sure i t  has. 

Q Has the  s u p p l i e r  changed? 

A yes. 

Q who were some o f  t h e  supp l i e rs  t h a t  

odyssey go t  i t s  caus t i c  from? 

A o l i n ,  Occidenta l ,  Falcon, and I b e l i e v e  

a t  one p o i n t  DOW. I ' m  no t  sure about Dow. 

Q How was i t  de l ivered? 

2 3 1  

A B y  tank  t r u c k .  
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Q IS t h a t  s t i l l  t he  case? 

A Yes. 

Q How was i t  stored? 

A I n  a storage tank.  

Q A t  t h e  odyssey f a c i l i t y ?  

A Yes. 

Q Are t h e  d e l i v e r i e s  --  i s  each d e l i v e r y  

t h e  same s i z e  o r  amount? 

A 

Q 

de l  i very? 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 
A 

Q 

Each d e l i v e r y  i s  a t ruck load.  

YOU ge t  a f u l l  t r uck load  i n  each 

Yes. 

what i s  t h a t ,  5,000 ga l lons? 

No. It has t o  be l e s s .  

How much? 

Roughly 4,000 ga l l ons .  

Is Pam Winters '  s t i l l  a t  C i t i zens  Bank? 

I have heard t h a t  she's no t .  

where d i d  you hear t h a t  from? 

I d o n ' t  remember. 

who does odyssey now deal w i th  a t  

C i t i z e n s  Bank? 

A J i m  B icke l .  

Q How do you s p e l l  B i cke l?  

232 

1 A How do I s p e l l  i t ?  

2 Q I t ake  i t  you d o n ' t  r e a l l y  know how 

3 i t ' s  spe l led ,  b u t  maybe you have seen t h e  name 

4 w r i t t e n  somewhere? 
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A I t h i n k  i t  has one L. 

Q 

A No. E-1. I be l ieve  t h a t  i t ' s  

Is i t  spe l led  l i k e  p i c k l e  bu t  wi th  a B? 

B - i  -c-k-e-1 . 
Q Do you know what h i s  p o s i t i o n  i s  a t  t h e  

bank? 

A Not exact1 y . 
Q Is he t h e  person t h a t  -- w e l l ,  what 

s o r t  of deal ings does odyssey have w i t h  M r .  s i c k e l ?  

A M r .  B icke l  i s  our account manager, so 

he oversees a l l  of our banking a c t i v i t y .  

Q NOW, o ther  than t h e  loan t h a t  odysse,y 

has w i t h  C i t i z e n s  Bank, does odyssey a c t u a l l y  do 

i t s  banking w i t h  C i t i z e n s  Bank i n  terms o f  

mai n t a i  n i  ng accounts there? 

A odyssey has a c r e d i t  l i n e  f a c i l i t y  w i t h  

C i t i z e n s  Bank. 

Q Is t h a t  separate from the  1999 l o a n ,  

t h e  f i v e  year loan? 

A Yes. 

Q when d i d  odyssey ob ta in  t h e  c r e d i t  

1 l i n e ?  

2 A A t  about t h e  same t i m e .  

3 Q IS t h a t  secured by t h e  same mortgage 

4 and secured agreement as t h e  main loan? 

5 A NO. 

6 Q what i s  i t  secured 'by? 

7 A Recei vab1 es and inventory  . 
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8 Q was Peoples Bank invo lved  somehow i n  

9 the  f i n a n c i n g  o f  odyssey as w e l l ?  

10 A Not t h a t  I know o f .  

11 Q I know Ci t i zens  Bank was, bu t  I r e c a l l  

1 2  the re  was another bank as w e l l ,  and I ' v e  f o r g o t t e n  

1 3  the  name. what was i t ?  was i t  union Planters? 

14 A C i t i zens  Bank apparent ly  s o l d  shares of 

1 5  t he  term loan,  t h e  equipment l oan .  

16 Q TO whom? who d i d  they  s e l l  i t  t o ?  

17 MR. SMITH: I f  you know. 

18 THE WITNESS: w e l l  , I know who they 

19 tu rned o u t  t o  s e l l  i t  t o ,  un ion P lan ters  was 

20 one, and Bank o f  Alma was another.  

2 1  Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) what 's t h a t ?  

22 A Bank o f  Alma. 

23 Q E-1 -ma? 

24 A A-1 - m a .  

25 Q who has i t  now? who owns t h e  l oan  o r  

. .  

234 
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t h e  paper o r  t h e  receivable now? 

A The same. 

Q Bank o f  Alma. 

A w e l l ,  we owe the  money t o  c i t i z e n s  

Bank. 

Q And then bu t  I thought  you sa id  

C i t i zens  Bank s o l d  o f f  p a r t  o f  t h e  l o a n  t o  -- 
A Tha t ' s  what I understood. I have never 

seen any documents t o  t h a t  e f f e c t .  

Q YOU make a l l  your -- when I say you, 
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11 odyssey makes i t s  payments t o  c i t i z e n s  Bank? 

12 A Yes. AS f a r  as odyssey i s  concerned, 

13 they  owe a l l  o f  t he  equipment loan t o  C i t i z e n s  

14 Bank. 

15 Q And does C i t i zens  Bank have t h e  c r e d i t  

. 16 . l i n e  too? 
- - .- 

A Yes. 

Q when you say t h e  equipment i s  s e c u r i t y  

f o r  t h e  term loan, which equipment a r e  you t a l k i n g  

about? 

A A1 1 of t h e  equipment , bu i  1 dings . 
Q The bu i l d ing ,  t h e  c e l l s ,  t h e  machinery 

i n s i d e  t h e  b u i l d i n g ,  i s  t h a t  what you mean? 

A Yes, every th ing  t h a t  odyssey owns. 

Q But you say t h e  c r e d i t  l i n e  i s  

1 

2 
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4 
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11 

12 

13 

235 

separa te ly  secured by receivables? 

A Yes. 

Q How much i s  t h e  c r e d i t  l i n e ?  

A 

Q Is t h a t  what c i t i z e n s  Bank s o l d  o f f  t o  

union p1 anters? 

A I don ' t  know. 

Q Now, t h e  term loan,  t h a t ' s  t h e  -- t h a t  

was t h e  one t h a t  was I t h i n k  the  p r i n c i p a l  amount 

t h a t  range? 

MR. SMITH: Reread the  ques t ion ,  

p l  ease. 
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Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) L e t  me c lean i t  

up. what i s  t h e  p r i n c i p a l  amount o f  t he  term loan? 

MR. SMITH: L e t ' s  take  a break, please. 

MR. BANDKLAYDER: O f f  t h e  record.  

(Thereupon, the re  was an o f f  t h e  record 

d i  scussi  on. ) 

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) what -was-the 

p r i n c i p a l  amount o f  t h e  t e r m  loan? 

MR. SMITH: ob jec t  and i n s t r u c t  him n o t  

t o  answer on the  same bas is  t h a t  I i n s t r u c t e d  

him n o t  t o  answer o ther  quest ions about c o s t  

i n fo rma t ion .  

236 

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) I ' v e  go t  a l o t  O f  

quest ions about t h i s .  I ' m  n o t  going t o  ask them 

a l l ,  bu t  I l e a s t  want t o  ge t  ou t  a few t o  make a 

record.  

what i s  t h e  i n t e r e s t  r a t e  on t h e  loan? 

MR. SMITH: Same ob jec t i on .  Same 

i n s t r u c t i o n .  

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) what 's t h e  

amor t i za t i on  schedule? 

MR. SMITH: Same ob jec t i on .  Same 

i n s t r u c t i o n .  

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) what 's t h e  

f requency and amount o f  payments on the  term loan? 

MR. SMITH: Same ob jec t i on .  Same 

i n s t r u c t i o n .  

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) what 's t h e  

Page 82 



i 
121803ss.txt 

17 balance on t h e  c r e d i t  l i n e ?  

18 MR. SMITH: Same ob jec t ion .  same 

19 i n s t r u c t i o n .  

20 Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) what a re  t h e  

2 1  payment terms on t h e  c r e d i t  l i n e ?  

22 MR. SMITH: Same ob jec t i on .  Same 

23 i ns t  r u c t i  on 

24 MR. BANDKLAYDER: w e l l ,  I ' v e  asked 

25 several  o f  t h e  quest ions,  bu t  I had a l o t  

237 
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1 2  

1 3  
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1 5  

16 

1 7  

1 8  

19 

more, bu t  s ince  you have i n s t r u c t e d  him n o t  t o  

answer any cos t  quest ions,  I ' m  n o t  going t o  

take everybody's t ime up by ask ing a l l  o f  them 

now u n t i l  a f t e r  t h e  judge r u l e s  on i t  again.  

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) Has odyssey begun 

t h e  process o f  n e g o t i a t i n g  t h e  terms o f  t h e  renewal 

o f  t h e  term loan? 

A Yes. 

Q And who i s hand1 i ng those nego t ia t i ons  

a t  C i t i z e n s  Bank? 

A J i m  B icke l  , 

Q who i s  hand l ing  those nego t ia t i ons  fo r  

odyssey? 

A Marv in Rakes. 

Q And have t h e  terms been agreed upon 

ye t?  

A No. 

Q IS t h e r e  a t i m e  by which they ' re  

expected -- t h e r e ' s  expected t o  be an agreement on 
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20 t h e  terms? 

2 1  A Yes. 

22 Q when i s  t h a t ?  

23 A s h o r t l y .  

24 Q December 3 1  o r  when i s  the  date t h a t  

2 5  you expect t he re  t o  be an agreement on t h e  terms? 

238 
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22 

A 

Q 

We hope t h a t  by December 3 1 .  

Is anyone e l se  a t  c i t i z e n s  sank 

i nvo l ved  i n  negot i  a t i  ng t h a t  renewal? 

A I would have no way d f  knowing. 

Q IS i t  a renewal o r  i s  i t  a new l o a n  o r  

j u s t  what e x a c t l y  i s  i t ?  

A I would c a l l  i t  a renewal. 

Q 

banks? 

IS odyssey n e g o t i a t i n g  w i t h  any o the r  

A No. 

Q Does odyssey have sa les personnel o ther  

than Marvin Rakes and Pat Alltnan? 

(Thereupon, the re  was a d iscuss ion  off 

t he  record.)  

THE WITNESS: N O .  

' Q  (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) IS t h e r e  l i k e  any 

doubt about t h a t ?  

conference w i t h  your a t to rney  t o  answer t h a t  

quest ion.  

I t  seemed t o  r e q u i r e  a l i t t l e  

A No doubt. 

Q 

A Yes. 

DOeS Sentry have sa les personnel? 
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Q How many? 

A one par t - t ime.  

Q And who i s  tha t?  

239 

A A. 3 .  

Q who i s  A. J . ?  Does he have a l a s t  

name? 

A I honest ly  can ' t  t h i n k  o f  h i s  l a s t  

name. I ' m  no t  t r y i n g  t o  w i thho ld  i t .  

Q O r  i s  i t  J ?  Are those h i s  i n i t i a l s ?  

A Yes. 

Q DOeS he have a t e r r i t o r y ?  

A NO, 

Q Does odyssey use any ou ts ide  people o r  

independent cont rac tors  as sa les representa t ives? 

A No. 

Q DOeS Sentry have any ou ts ide  

d i s t r i b u t o r s ?  

A c e r t a i n l y .  

Q HOW many? 

A ~ l l  o f  our  customers a r e  d i s t r i b u t o r s  

i n  one way o r  another except t h e  few t h a t  consume 

t h e  sodium hypoch lo r i t e  themselves. 

customers r e s e l l  i t  i n  one form o r  another.  

Most o f  our 

Q DO you have any customers who r e s e l l  i t  

i n  bu lk? 

A 

Q something more than j u s t ,  you know, 

How would you d e f i n e  b u l k ?  

swimming pool s ize .  I n  o the r  words, I d o n ' t  know 
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what you use f o r  a swimming pool ,  a ga l l on  jug ,  two 

and a h a l f  g a l l o n  jug ,  f i v e  ga l l on  jug,  b igger  than 

t h a t ?  
1 

A Yes. 

Q 

A F ive  o r  s i x .  

Q 

How many o f  those are there? 

Are any o f  them loca ted  i n  the  Tampa 

area? 

A Yes. 

Q which ones? 

(Thereupon, there  was an o f f  t h e  record  

d i  scussi on .) 

MR. SMITH: AS I r e c a l l ,  we a r e  no t  

f u r n i s h i n g  names o f  customers. 

MR. BANDKLAYDER: These are 

d i s t r i b u t o r s ,  and they are ou ts ide  t h e  150 

mi les .  

MR. S M I T H :  The d i s t r i b u t o r s  f o r  Sentry  

ou ts ide  150 m i les ,  b u t  we d i d n ' t  d i sc lose  

names o f  customers as you r e c a l l .  we 

fu rn ished a spreadsheet showing l o c a t i o n s ,  no r  

d i d  you. YOU d i d n ' t  f u r n i s h  names e i t h e r .  

Just  showed l o c a t i o n s ,  so t h a t  would apply  

here. 

customers. 

we a re  n o t  f u r n i s h i n g  the  names o f  t h e  

That 's  been agreed upon b y  both 

241 
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p a r t i e s .  

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) A r e  these people 

you ' re  r e f e r r i n g  t o  o r  companies you ' re  r e f e r r i n g  

t o  up i n  Tampa, a re  they d i s t r i b u t o r s ?  

A I ' m  s t i l l  unclear on what you c a l l  a 

d i s t r i b u t o r .  

MR. BANDKLAYDER: Just  a minute. 

(Thereupon, there  was an i n t e r r u p t i o n  

i n  t h e  record. )  

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) I understand 

t h e r e ' s  something c a l l e d  a t o t e ,  which i s  what, 300 

ga l lons? Are you f a m i l i a r  w i t h  t h a t ?  

A I have seen them. 

Q These e n t i t i e s  t h a t  you s e l l  t o  -- t h a t  

Sentry  s e l l s  t o  i n  Tampa, are they  r e s e l l i n g  

quant i  t i e s  1 arger than to tes?  

A I d o n ' t  be l ieve  so. YOU sa id  i n  Tampa? 

Q I n  t h e  Tampa area. 

A The o r i g i n a l  quest ion I thought 

pe r ta ined  t o  t h e  area w i t h i n  150 m i les  o f  Tampa. 

Now you j u s t  sa id  i n  Tampa. 

Q You're saying t h a t  t he re  a re  people -- 
are  t h e r e  people r e s e l l i n g  t o t e  q u a n t i t i e s  o r  

g rea ter  f o r  sen t ry  t h a t  are w i t h i n  t h e  150 m i les  of 

Tampa? 

242 

1 A Not t o  my knowledge. 

2 Q DO you know how much e l e c t r i c i t y  

3 odyssey i s  c u r r e n t l y  us ing  on average? 
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A Not exact1 y . 
Q w e l l ,  approximately. 

MR. SMITH: You're r e a l l y  once again 

t r y i n g  t o  ge t  i n t o  h i s  cost  in fo rmat ion .  

the same t h i n g  ~ ' v e  already objected t o  and 

I t ' s  

- i n s t r u c t e b  him. SO same- ob jec t i on .  same 

i n s t r u c t i o n .  

THE WITNESS: They know the  r a t e  and 

they know how many ga l lons  we produce a year,  

so t h i s  i s  l e s s  o f  an issue.  

don ' t  -- obv ious ly  they have never had two 

months e x a c t l y  t h e  same s ince  they have 

opened. 

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) I t ' s  never been 

I t ' s  j u s t  t h a t  I 

e x a c t l y  t h e  same, b u t  t he re  must be an average? 

A I t used t o  be -. Maybe now i t ' s  

more. 

Q what 's  t h a t ,  t h e  power b i l l ,  t h e  

e l e c t r i c  b i  1 l ?  

A The e l e c t r i c  b i l l ,  

MR. SMITH: He asked f o r  usage. 

THE WITNESS: I have no idea  about t h e  

243 

1 usage. 

2 Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) You don ' t  know i n  

3 

4 A I d o n ' t  know. 

5 Q But t h e  average e l e c t r i c  b i l l  i s  

6 

terms of k i l o w a t t s  or megawatts? 

somewhere i n  t h e  range o f  -per month? 
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7 A It was. 

8 Q Has i t  gone up o r  down? 

9 A It must have gone up. 

10 Q I s  t h a t  because o f  t he  annual 

11 esca la t i ons?  

.. ... --IZ - - A No. I was t h i n k i n g  more because. we 

0 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

2 1  

22 

23 

24 

25 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

produce more ECU. 

Q Have the esca la t i ons  i n  t h e  TECO 

c o n t r a c t  gone i n t o  e f f e c t ?  

A Yes. I ' h a v e  o n l y  checked once. A t  t h e  

t i m e  t h a t  I checked, it had gone i n t o  e f f e c t .  

Q Have there  been any o the r  changes i n  

odyssey's i n i t i a l  base e l e c t r i c  r a t e  such as f u e l  

surcharges o r  o the r  surcharges o r  new taxes? 

A Not t o  my knowledge. 

Q Now, t h e  i n i t i a l  base r a t e  we have 

a1 ready es tab l i shed  was ()a megawatt hour, r i g h t ?  

Then I understand i n  t h e  second year  of 

A That is c o r r e c t .  

Q 

ope ra t i on  it was t o  go up by- 

w, i s  t h a t  r i g h t ?  

A Tha t ' s  what I understood. 

Q So t h a t  would have been s t a r t i n g  I 

guess i n  A p r i l  o f  '02 i t  would have gone up by- - 
A March 27. 

Q That ' s  p r e t t y  c lose .  

And then d i d  i t  go up another 
Pan@ 89 

244 



121803s~. t x t  

10 

11 A I b e l i e v e  so. 

12 Q SO t h e  r a t e  now i s  p lus  m 
1 3  

1 4  -of t h a t ,  r i g h t ?  

1 5  - A Sounds cor rec t .  

16 Q which probably comes t o  about somewhere 

17 i n  t h e  o r  range per  

18  megawatt hours? I don ' t  know the  exact number, b u t  

19 you probably  do. DO you? 

20 A I d o n ' t  know the  exact number. 

2 1  Q ~ l l  r i g h t ,  w e l l ,  i f  t h a t  p l a n t  had t o  

22 operate today w i t h  an e l e c t r i c  r a t e  o f  cents ,  

23 

24 MR. SMITH: Le t ' s  take a break. 

25 (Thereupon, a recess was taken.) 

._ on o r  about March 27 o f  '03? 

-and then p lus  another - 
could i t  do so p r o f i t a b l y ?  

245 
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THE WITNESS: Ask the  quest ion again.  

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) cou ld  odyssey 

operate p r o f i t a b l y  i f  today i t  had an e l e c t r i c  r a t e  

of  per  megawatt 'hour? 

A Yes. 

Q' How do you determine tha t?  

(Thereupon, there  was a d iscuss ion  o f f  

t h e  record.) 

THE WITNESS: we're p resen t l y  pay ing 

@ o r  1). The increase t o  t h a t  you 

asked me t o  hypothesize over would inc rease 

12 t he  cost  per  g a l l o n  by a l i t t l e  over- 
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we a r e  going t o  make e m i l l i o n  ga l lons  t h i s  

year,  so our  p r o f i t a b i l i t y  would be decreased 

by,  I don ' t  know, roughly - or- 
p o s s i b l y  -. 
c a l c u l a t i o n .  we expect t o  make more than t h a t  

1-ii-this c u r r e n t  year; and, therefore, -we would 

s t i l l  be p r o f i t a b l e .  

Q (BY MR. BANDKMYDER) How d i d  you 

I ' d  have t o  do the  
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determine t h a t  t h e  e l e c t r i c  r a t e  d i f f e r e n t i a l  

between roughly  0 -- I ' m  sor ry .  - 
- 

t r a n s l a t e s  t o  a cos t  d i f f e r e n t i a l  per  ga l l on  o f  

about - 
246 

A Because I prev ious l y  ca l cu la ted  what 

t h e  e f f e c t  o f  power would have had on ~ l l i e d  

r e l a t i v e  t o  0 power, and t h a t  d i f f e r e n c e  us ing  

t h e  Pete DeAngelis template t h a t  he gave us, us ing  

---for c e l l  operat ion 

and --- f o r  i n c i d e n t a l  

power i n c l u d i n g  pumps and c i r c u i t s  and a t o t a l  o f  

._ a t  a d i f f e r e n c e  o f  

so a d i f ference o f  t imes t h a t  must be about 

0. 
Q why d i d  you use- 

A Because t h e  c a l c u l a t i o n  fo r  the ECU 
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\ 1 6  cost  t h a t  DeAngelis d i d  f o r  A l l i e d  t h a t  A l l i e d  

17 produced i n  the s i x  boxes of  mater ia l  claimed t h a t  

18 t h a t  was going t o  be t h e  consumption i n  the A l l i e d  

19 p r o p o s e d w a  day c e l l  process p l a n t .  

20 Q The ques t ion  though was whether odyssey 

- -  - - 2 1  could operate p r o f i t a b l y ,  and odyssey uses w 
22 o r  a c t u a l l y  somewhere between 

23 - 
24 A Yes, t h a t ' s  why ins tead o f  saying i t  

25  would cost  us-, I al lowed t h a t  maybe i t  was 

1 

2 odyssey would s t i l l  be p r o f i t a b l e .  

3 Q so i t  would be somewhere between 

4 

5 -gallons o f  product ion? 

-or  a l i t t l e  more. I stand by my c la im t h a t  - higher cost  annual ly  a t  0 

6 A _.__ Yes. 

7 Q U - 1  t h a t  i s ?  

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

A Yes. If t h e e  were pu t  i n  p lace 

today. 

Q If t h e  what? 

A I f  t h e  r a t e  became e f f e c t i v e  today, 

A l l i e d ' s  0 r a t e  as I understood i t  was i n  J u l y  o f  

A t  t h a t  p o i n t  odyssey would have escalated 

t o  a h igher  number than - 
-p lus  taxes. 

quest ion was a t  _. 
saying -- 

Q A l l i e d ' s  proposal  f rom TECO i s  a c t u a l l y  

I t  wasn' t  j u s t a ,  and my 

But i n  any event,  you ' re  
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19 

20 December o f  2003 and A l l i e d ' s  o f f e r  wasn't u n t i l  

21 

2 2  Q SO i f  you're saying t h a t  the d i f f e r e n c e  

23 i n  t h e  e l e c t r i c  r a t e  means between 0 and 

A But m y  p o i n t  was I ' m  using i t  today i n  

J u l y  o f  m, June of  (Ib, @months from today. 

- - - - ~ 2 + - -  - in  increased cost for --gallons, - . .  

then t h e  increase i n  costs f o r  - gallons 

248 

would be - per year,  r i g h t ?  

A I d o n ' t  know. 

- Q  It would be double? 

A w e l l ,  I don ' t  know. There are  t o o  many 

assumptions t o  say t h a t .  odyssey cannot produce 

t h a t  amount, and A l l i e d  had b e t t e r  c e l l s ,  and i f  

A l l i e d  were t o  buy the  c e l l s  today, they would be 

much b e t t e r .  SO t o o  many compl icat ions f o r  me t o  

even answer t h a t  question. 

Q I f  t h e  cel ls  t h a t  are now a v a i l a b l e  a r e  

so much b e t t e r  than t h e  ones t h a t  were a v a i l a b l e  

when odyssey was i n i  ti a1 1 y bui  1 t , why doesn ' t 
odyssey use those new c e l l s  i n  i t s  expansion? 

A You c a n ' t  mix t h e  k i n d  o f  c e l l .  A l l  

t h e  c e l l s  have t o  be t h e  same. 

Q w e l l ,  i f  odyssey can operate p r o f i t a b l y  

a t  per megawatt, then what was t h e  bas is  o f  

your say ing t h a t  i f  i t  cou ldn ' t  o b t a i n  0 per  

megawatt, i t  would have no a l t e r n a t i v e  b u t  t o  

l o c a t e  i t s  manufacturing f a c i l i t y  elsewhere when 

you signed your a f f i d a v i t ?  
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22 A Th is  document came from TECO. The 

23 language was suggested t o  me by TECO. s ince  I 

24 d i d n ' t  know how t o  apply  f o r  CISR and d i d n ' t  know - 

25 t h e  workings o f  t h e  regulated u t i l i t y  i n d u s t r y ,  I 
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23 

24 

used t h e  language they  suggested, and what I was 

s i g n i n g  i n  my mind i s  what I j u s t  t o l d  you an hour 

ago, t h a t  i f  I d i d n ' t  ge t  t h e  CISR, I would n o t  

b u i l d  my p l a n t  i n  TECO's t e r r i t o r y .  

language they suggested inc luded t h e i r  proposed 

r a t e  o f  1). 

And t h e  

Q w e l l ,  you swore i n  t h i s  a f f i d a v i t  t h a t  

t h e  t h i n g s  you s a i d  were t rue ,  d i d n ' t  you? 

A Yes. 

Q was i t  t r u e  t h a t  w i thou t  a *cen t  per  

k i l o w a t t  hour o r  .per megawatt hour -- s t r i k e  

t h a t .  

IS i t  t r u e  t h a t  absent a -per 

k i l o w a t t  hour o r  per  megawatt hour r a t e  you 

would have had no a l t e r n a t i v e  bu t  t o  l o c a t e  t h e  

p l a n t  somewhere o ther  than Tampa where i t  cou ld  

o b t a i n  a -per k i l o w a t t  o r  e per  megawatt 

hour ra te?  

A I t o l d  you what I assumed. I assumed I 

had th ree  choices; $36 f o r  i n t e r r u p t i b l e  power, e 
f o r  a CISR r a t e  o r  seven o r  e i g h t  cents ,  whatever 

people pay i n  t h e i r  houses, so unless I got  t h i s  

one, I wouldn ' t  b u i l d .  

Q w e l l ,  bu t  -- 
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A The CISR and t h e  I) were t i e d  
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together .  

@ and odyssey's new p l a n t  because you say i f  you 

c a n ' t  ge t  -- i n  your a f f i d a v i t ,  you say i f  you 

c a n ' t  ge t  the  - per k i l o w a t t  hour r a t e  from 

Tampa, you w i l l  b u i l d  t h i s  somewhere e lse  where you 

can g e t  t h a t  r a t e ,  so my quest ion i s  why was t h a t  

Q W e l l ,  what was t i e d  together  was the  

r a t e  of 

t e l l i n g  us today t h a t  - per megawatt hour 

would s t i l l  enable you t o  be p r o f i t a b l e ?  

MR. SMITH: Argumentative, asked and 

so impor tant  t o  you i f  you ' re  

answered. Has your test imony changed? 

THE WITNESS: No. 

MR. BANDKLAYDER: Has what test imony 

changed, f rom the  a f f i d a v i t ?  c l e a r l y  i t  has. 

MR. SMITH: Has your test imony changed 

you p rev ious l y  gave him on t h i s  issue? 

THE WITNESS: No. 

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) we1 1 , your  -sworn 

test imony i n  your a f f i d a v i t  i s  c l e a r l y  d i f f e r e n t  

than what you ' re  t e l l i n g  me today, i s n ' t  i t ?  

A Not i n  my mind. 

Q W e l l ,  I mean i n  t h e  a f f i d a v i t  you say 

i f  odyssey can ' t  ob ta in  0 cents per  k i l o w a t t  

hour,  i t  w i l l  have no a l t e r n a t i v e  b u t  t o  l o c a t e  i t s  
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f a c i l i t y  elsewhere where i t  can ob ta in  II) cents 

per  k i l o w a t t  hour.  Does i t  no t  say tha t?  

why was 0 cents per k i l o w a t t  hour 

A Yes. 

Q 
t h e  th resho ld  t ha t  you re fe r red  t o  i n  your 

a f f i d a v i t ?  

MR. SMITH: ob jec t  t o  the form. 

Argumentative, asked and answered. 

THE WITNESS: TECO p u t  i t  i n  there  

because t h a t  was the  r a t e  they were going t o  

o f f e r  me i f  t h e  C I S R  was approved, and being 

an i n d i v i d u a l  t r y i n g  t o  s t a r t  a company t h a t  

had a l o t  o f  complicated work t o  do, I had no 

reason no t  t o  t r u s t  them f i l i n g ,  doing the  

paper work t o  f i l e  f o r  t he  CISR. 

whatever t h e y  t o l d  me. This  paper came, and I 

signed i t . I read i t  and I bel ieved i t  and I 

signed i t , and i n  my mind the  1) was the  

C I S R .  I f  I got  t h e  C I S R ,  i t  would be e. I f  
I d i d n ' t  g e t  t h e  CISR, I wasn' t  going t o  b u i l d  

the  p l a n t .  I t ' s  no t  con t rad i c to ry  i n  my mind. 

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) I f  back a t  t h e  

I d i d  

t i m e  t h a t  you were o f f e r e d  your r a t e  by TECO, TECO 

had o f f e r e d  you 

odyssey have b u i l t  t h e  p l a n t  i n  Tampa? 

per  megawatt hour, would 

252 

A I d o n ' t  know. I f  they  had o f f e r e d  me 
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2 $41, we would have b u i l t  t h e  p l a n t .  

3 Q But t h a t ' s  n o t  my question. M y  

4 

5 megawatt hour, would you have b u i l t  t h e  p l a n t  i n  

6 Tampa? 

7 A I d o n ' t  know. 

8 Q Wel l ,  what would you need t o  know i n  

quest ion i s  i f  they  had o f f e r e d  you m per 

. .  
- _  

9 

10 

11 

12 

1 3  

14 

1 5  

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

2 1  

22 

23 

24 

25  

order  t o  answer t h a t  question? 

A I wouldn ' t  need t o  know anything. I 

would have had t o  have been presented w i t h  t h a t  

s i t u a t i o n  a t  t h e  t ime and decided t o  go forward or  

t o  abandon Tampa and t r y  t o  b u i l d  t h e  p l a n t  

somewhere e l  se. 

Q Now, i s  i t  your test imony t h a t  i f  TECO 

was under t h e  impression a t  t h e  t ime t h a t  you would 

o n l y  b u i l d  your p l a n t  i n  Tampa i f  you had a r a t e  of 

per megawatt hour o r  less ,  t h a t  TECO was 

mistaken? 

A TECO knew t h a t  i f  I d i d n ' t  g e t  t h e  C I S R  

t h a t  I wasn' t  go ing t o  b u i l d  t h e  p l a n t .  

knew (I) was n o t  a very  good r a t e .  

we a l l  

Q who knew t h a t  i t  wasn't a v e r y  good 

ra te?  

A DeAngelis t o l d  me t h a t  e i s  n o t  a 

1 very good ra te .  

2 Q compared to what? 

3 A compared t o  what c h l o r a l  k i  companies 

4 pa id  i n  h i s  experience. 
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Q If 0 per megawatt hour i s  not  a good 

6 

7 hour i s  a s i g n i f i c a n t l y  worse ra te?  

8 A I t ' s  not  a good r a t e  e i t h e r .  I would 

9 agree t h a t  f a r .  

r a t e ,  then would you agree t h a t  0 per megawatt 

10 Q E l e c t r i c i t y  i s  roughly  45 percent o f  

11- t f ie  v a r i a b E  cos t ,  r i g h t ?  
.. 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

A A l l i e d  has made t h a t  c la im.  

Q Haven't you? 

A I never ca lcu la ted  i t  as a percent,  no. 

Q 

A 

Q 

A NO. 

what do you b e l i e v e  --  
That ' s reasonably c lose. 

So you don ' t  d isagree w i t h  t h a t ?  

Q I f  Odyssey has l o s t  money i n  t h e  l a s t  

th ree  -- th ree  o u t  o f  t h e  l a s t  f o u r  years, then 

what i s  your bas is  f o r  saying t h a t  you can make 

money even i f  i t s  e l e c t r i c  r a t e  was bumped up t o  

, 

MR. SMITH: o ther  than what he 's  t o l d  

25  you? 

2 54 

1 Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) Yes. 

2 A I understood your hypothe t ica l  quest ion 

3 

4 

5 past  f o u r  years. 

6 Q ~ l l  r i g h t .  w e l l ,  suppose odyssey had 

7 had a r a t e  o f  s t a r t i n g  September 30 o f  2002. 

t o  be i f  t h e  r a t e  went i n t o  e f f e c t  today. It has 

noth ing t o  do w i t h  odyssey's performance over t h e  
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A 

Q For t h e  year 2003, r i g h t ?  I n  o t h e r  

We would have l o s t  money. 

words, f o r  the  f i s c a l  year ending 2003, you would 

have 1 o s t  money? 

A I ' m  guessing t h a t ' s  t rue ,  yes. 

Q we know from your previous depos i t i on  

t h a t  odyssey a c t u a l l y  had a p r o f i t  f o r  t he  f i s c a l  

year t h a t  ended September 30 o f  2003, r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q But t h a t  was w i t h  an e l e c t r i c  r a t e  o f  

o r  maybe s l i g h t l y  rough ly  - .... - 

h igher ,  I should s a y o o r  s l i g h t l y  h igher  per 

megawatt hour, r i g h t ?  

A R igh t  . 
Q So you ' re  t e l l i n g  us t h a t  i f  odyssey 

had had a r a t e  o f  -dur ing t h a t  same f i s c a l  

year,  odyssey would have l o s t  money ins tead o f  made 

money, r i g h t ?  

. . .  

255 

A AS bes t  I can ca l cu la te  i n  my head, 

yes. 

Q How a re  you c a l c u l a t i n g  t h a t ?  

MR. SMITH: Wel l ,  Counsel, I ' m  n o t  

go ing t o  l e t  him d i sc lose  t o  you what h i s  

p r o f i t  was f o r  t h a t  year .  same ob jec t i on .  

Same i n s t r u c t i  on. 

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) Based on t h e  

f i g u r e s  you've g iven us f o r  t he  cost  

d i f f e r e n t i a l  -- 
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11 A Based on the f i g u r e s  I ' v e  g iven you, 

12 you can f i g u r e  i t  out .  

1 3  Q So then the  p r o f i t s  f o r  t h e  f i s c a l  year 

14 ending September 30 would have been l e s s  than 

16 A Less than -to 0 o r  

17 wkatever I said.  

18 Q And i n  f a c t  i s  t h a t  t r u e ?  

19 A Yes. 

20 Q why i s  i t  t h a t  t h e  terms o f  t h e  bank 

2 1  loan  renewal have n o t  yet  been f i n a l i z e d ?  

22 A I don ' t  know. 

23 Q Has odyssey approached any o t h e r  banks 

24 

25 A They have done t h a t ,  yes. 

t o  see about g e t t i n g  the  loan from some o ther  bank? 

- 1  

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

11 

12 

13 

Q 

A Nothing ever developed. 

Q which banks d i d  i t  approach? 

A Bank One or F i r s t  Bank, t h e i r  o f f i c e  

And what happened w i t h  t h e  o t h e r  banks? 

might be i n  Cleveland. 

Powell made i n  Michigan. 

It was a c o n t a c t  t h a t  

0 You s a i d  t h a t  odyssey's p r o f i t s  f o r  t h e  

f i s c a l  year of 2003 were I t h i n k  you s a i d  l e s s  t h a n  

- R s  i t  -or i s  i t  

w 
MR. SMITH: Same o b j e c t i o n .  Same 

i n s t r u c t i o n .  

MR. BANDKLAYDER: I f  y o l ' r e  i n s t r u c t i n g  
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him no t  t o  answer, so be i t .  w e ' l l  take  i t  up 

w i t h  the  judge, bu t  i t  r e l a t e s  d i r e c t l y  t o  the  

feas i  b i  1 i t y  of t he  e l  e c t r i  c ra te ,  whi ch he 's  

c la iming on one hand i s  f e a s i b l e ,  a l though he 

seems t o  be saying t h a t  even odyssey would 

l o s e  money a t  t h a t  ra te ,  b u t  you ' re  s t i l l  

i n s t r u c t i n g  him no t  t o  answer? 

MR. SMITH: Yes, s i r .  

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) IS odyssey going 

t o  be renewing both o f  i t s  loans, t h a t  i s  t h e  

c r e d i t  l i n e  and the  t e r m  loan? 

A I be l ieve  t h a t  t he  c r e d i t  l i n e  has an 

257 
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annual renewal o r  i t  d i d  a t  one t ime.  I expect 

t h a t  i t  s t i l l  does. 

Q How are  the  next  two expansions be ing  

pa id  f o r ?  

A They're funded i n t e r n a l l y .  

Q By t h e  inves tors?  

A 

Q 

By t h e  inves tors  o r  t h e  company. 

Have the i nves to rs  p u t  a d d i t i o n a l  

c a p i t a l  i n  s ince the i n i t i a l  s t a r t u p ?  

A Yes. 

Q On how many occasions have t h e  

i nves to rs  pu t  i n  add i t i ona l  c a p i t a l ?  

A A handful .  

Q About f i v e ?  

A okay. 

Q I don ' t  know. I ' m  ask ing  you. 
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A That ' s  as reasonable as anything. I 

d o n ' t  know exac t l y .  

approxi  mat i  on. 

F i ve  i s  a reasonable 

(Thereupon, the  document re fe r red  t o  

was marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n  as p l a i n t i f f ' s  

E x h i b i t  No. 6.) 

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) L e t  me show you 

what we've marked as E x h i b i t  6 .  That i s  SS6. I 

o n l y  have one copy, so we a l l  have t o  share i t .  
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Have you had a chance t o  l ook  a t  i t? 

A Yes. 

Q what i s  i t ?  what i s  E x h i b i t  6? 

A I t ' s  a summary of  my understanding o f  

t h e  F l o r i d a  b leach market. 

Q 

A Yes. 

Q 

A I would say e a r l y  i n  2003. I t  r e f e r s  

I s  t h i s  something t h a t  you prepared? 

when d i d  you prepare i t ?  

t o  sales i n  2002. 

Q what was t h e  purpose o f  t h i s  document 

t h a t  you prepared, t h i s  summary o f  F l o r i d a  bleach 

market? 

A I would guess i t  was something f o r  the  

r e f i n a n c i n g  w i t h  the  o the r  bank. 

Q w i t h  which bank? 

A The Bank One o r  F i r s t  Bank, the  o ther  

Michigan based bank. I d o n ' t  know f o r  sure. 

Q I t  says a t  t h e  top ,  E x h i b i t  A .  Do you 

Page 102 



i 

i 

20 

2 1  

22 

23 

24 

25 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

1 3  

14 

1 5  

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

2 1  

22 

121803ss.txt 

A package t h a t  was submitted f o r  

know what i t  was an e x h i b i t  to? 

A 

f inanc ing  would be m y  guess. 

Q It says i n  t h i s  summary t h a t  you 

-1 prepared t h a t  odyssey's t o t a l  sales were 

ga l lons  f o r  t h e  year 2002. IS t h a t  about r i g h t ?  

2 59 

A I b e l i e v e  so. 

Q was odyssey s e l l i n g  i t s  f u l l  -- s e l l i n g  

ou t  i t s  f u l l  capac i ty  i n  2002? 

A Yes. 

Q Approximately how much o f  those sa les 

were t o  Sentry o r  s e n t r y  customers? 

A 0- 

A - Q - percent? I) percent? 

Q How about i n  t h e  year 2003, d i d  odyssey 

s e l l  ou t  i t s  f u l l  capaci ty? 

A Yes. 

Q what was t h a t ,  about 

ga l  1 ons? 

A w e l l ,  n o t  q u i t e  because t h e  expansion 

d i d n ' t  run u n t i l  about A p r i l .  

Q SO somewhere -- 
something l e s s  than A 0 or- 

0. we are s t i l l  i n  2003, you know. 

Q oh, t h a t ' s  t r u e .  Just  b a r e l y .  

MR. KOVEN: I t h i n k  he was r e f e r r i n g  t o  

your f i s c a l  year 
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2 3  Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) Right .  I was 

24 r e f e r r i n g  t o  your f i s c a l  year.  

25 A we d i d n ' t  count them i n  our  f i s c a l  
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year .  

and i t  was through September. 

we counted them and produced them t o  you, 

Q You have t o t a l  F l o r i d a  sa les f o r  A l l i e d  

where d i d  you g e t  un i ve rsa l  a t  -gallons. 

t h a t  from? 

A I estimated i t . 

Q what d i d  you base t h a t  on? 

A How many p lan ts  they  have, what I 

thought  t h e  capaci ty  o f  each p l a n t  was, how many 

t r u c k s  I thought they had a t  each p lace,  how many 

ECU tons I thought they bought and how many they  

s o l d  as c h l o r i n e  gas, how many employees they  had, 

how many customers they had, how much each customer 

bought, working a t  i t  f r o m  several  d i f f e r e n t  

d i r e c t i o n s ,  t r i e d  t o  make an est imate.  

Q YOU a lso  est imate i n  t h i s  summary, t h a t  

you prepared, t h e  s ize  of t h e  F l o r i d a  bleach market 

i n  ga l l ons  f o r  -- w e l l ,  i n  t he  f u t u r e  up through 

2007, r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q It looks l i k e  f rom 2002 t o  2003 you 

show an increase o f  200 m i l l i o n  t o  230 m i l l i o n .  

Did t h a t  prove t o  be cor rec t?  

A I be l ieve  so. 

Q Then f o r  the  year 2004 you show a 
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pro jec ted  inc rease t o  260 m i l l i o n ,  which would be 

somewhere i n  t h e  range o f  I guess 1 2  t o  1 5  percent 

increase? 

A w e l l ,  i t ' s  11 o r  12. 

Q IS t h a t  accurate? 

A Yes, t h a t ' s  about r i g h t .  

Q 

A On p r i o r  growth, number o f  people 

what a re  you basing t h a t  on? 

moving t o  F l o r i d a ,  number o f  swimming pools  be ing 

b u i l t  and the  l i k e l i h o o d  t h a t  some water and waste 

water p l a n t s  w i l l  change from c h l o r i n e  gas t o  

bleach. 

Q Now, t h e  annual f i g u r e s  tha t  you have 

here f o r  t h e  F l o r i d a  b leach market i n  ga l l ons  from 

'97 through 2007, would those percentage increases 

be any d i f f e r e n t  i n  Tampa t h a t  you est imated them 

t o  be f o r  t h e  e n t i r e  F l o r i d a  bleach market? 

A 

Q For example, you p ro jec ted  an increase 

I would have no way t o  know t h a t .  

o f  11 o r  12 percent  f o r  t h e  year 2004. 

b e l i e v e  tha t  t h a t ' s  l i k e l y  t h e  s i z e  t h a t  the Tampa 

market w i l l  i nc rease as w e l l ?  

Do you 

A Yes. 

Q And i s  t h a t  t r u e  f o r  a l l  o f  t h e  

p r o j e c t i o n s  t h a t  you have here  f o r  t h e  F l o r i d a  

262 
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1 bleach marker i n  gallons on an annual basis, not 

2 the 11 percent but whatever percentages you have 

3 here for  F-lorida would generally hold t rue  f o r  . 

4 Tampa as  well, i s  t ha t  a f a i r  statement? 

5 MR. SMITH: Do you understand the  

' question? 

7 THE WITNESS: If I understand the 

8 question, you're asking me would there  be any 

9 difference between the Tampa market and the 

10 overal l  Florida market i n  the rate  o f  growth? 

11 Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) R i g h t .  

12 A Not t ha t  we know o f .  

13 Q So as f a r  as you're concerned, i t  would 

14 be about t h e  same? 

15  . A  Yes. 

16 Q So i f  the Florida market were t o  

17. increase by 12  percent,  then the Tampa market 

18 

19 A Yes. 

probably would a l s o  increase by about 1 2  percent? 

20 

21 

. 22- 

23 

24 

25 

Q Now, o f  t h e  companies t h a t  a r e  l isted 

i n  this summary tha t  you prepared, which ones, if 

any, does Odyssey se l l  to?  

A Odyssey c e l l s  to  4-m May 

I see t h a t  one second? IS i t  o r  

-? odyssey se l7s  t o  - 

263 
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2. 

3 

Sentry, and 0. 
Q where is  located? 

A 0 Florida.  
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Q where i s  t h a t  near? 

A L ike  Lakeland, Lake wales. 

Q 

A Yes. 

Q 

A 

Did e manufacture bleach on i t s  own? 

Why then does i t  purchase f rom odyssey? 

I f  they have manufacturing problems o r  

emergency back-up. 

Q And what about - 
manufactured bleach, d i d n ' t  i t ?  

A Yes. 

Q Does i t  s t i l l  manufacture bleach? 

A 

Q 

A 

To t he  bes t  o f  my knowledge. 

And why then does i t  buy from odyssey? 

For  when they  have manufactur ing 

problems, i t s  emergency back-up. 

Q -, same quest ion,  why does 0 
buy from Odyssey? 

A buys f o r  two reasons. 0 buys 

f o r  emergency back-up t o  cover manufactur ing 

problems, and they 've  contracted odyssey t o  make 

d e l i v e r i e s  f o r  them t o  c e r t a i n  customers i n  our  

market. 

2 64 

1 Q And what area i s  t h a t ?  

2 A That ' s  i n  Sarasota and Crys ta l  R ive r .  

3 Q And d i d  you say t h a t  odyssey a l s o  s e l l s  

4 t o  

5 A Yes. 

6 Q why does 0 buy f rom odyssey? 
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7 A wanted t o  stop manufacturing and 

8 asked odyssey if  they could cover their  small 

9 requirement. - needed more gallons and 

10 

11 

d i d n ' t  want t o  invest i n  t h e i r  old plant and made a 
deal t o  buy a certain amount per y,ear from odyssey 

- -- -n , f.r-l.i.eu *f "* money On%. the. o1 & Be-L-;LL.-.- :-= :- L :- . 
. - -. __ - .  . . . , .- - .  . 

13 

14 

1 5  
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2 1  

22 
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24 

25 

able  t o  produce more themselves. 

Q It says i n  your summary that  

contracted to  pick up one million gallons from 

Odyssey p e r  year, i s  tha t  r ight?  

A That sounds about r ight .  

Q Then i t  says that-may be going 

t o  purchase another one million gallons a f t e r  plant 

expansion. Did tha t  materialize? 

A 

Q 
what do you mean by d i d  i t  materialize? 

Did- increase from one million 

gal 1 ons? 

A Did the sa le  take place o f  the  second 

million gallons ever t ranspire? NO. 

265 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 
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9 

Q why not? 

A' I don't  know. 

Q Did- b i d  on some of  the  same 
2 -  

municipal contracts tha t  odyssey b i d  on? 

If they d id  i t  was w i t h  the A 

understanding t h a t  they would produce t h e i r  own 

bleach t o  support those contracts .  

using our bleach t o  b i d  a contracr ,  then only one 

o f  u s  bid,  b u t  they have a per fec t ly  good 

If they were 
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product ion f a c i l i t y  t h a t  they run d a i l y  and a r e  

able t o  t ransac t  t h e i r  own business any way they  

please beyond t h e  amount they buy from us. 

DOeS odyssey s e l l  t o  a a1 so? Q 

A Yes. 

MR. SMITH-: can we take a sho r t  break. 

(Thereupon, a recess was taken.) 

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) NOW, o f  t h e  

companies on your  F l o r i d a  bleach market summary, 

have any o f  them stopped manufacturing bleach? 

A Not t o  my knowledge. 

Q IS Odyssey s t i l l  s e l l i n g  to-? 

A occas iona l l y .  

Q 
A 

Q YOU say under S e l l i n g  Pr ice ,  t h e r e  was 

why does 0 buy from odyssey? 

To cover downtime i n  manufacturing. 

I 10 
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a steep dec l i ne  i n  bleach p r i c i n g  when odyssey 

entered t h e  market i n  2000, why was t h a t ?  

A I have no way of knowing e x a c t l y  why i t  

happened. 

Q w e l l ,  what 's your bes t  ana lys is?  

A I n  o rde r  t o  make sa les,  we had t o  o f f e r  

lower and lower p r i ces .  

Q why was t h a t ?  

A Because A l l i e d  was o f f e r i n g  lower  and 

lower p r i c e s  t o  t h e  same customers. 

Q w e l l ,  I thought odyssey's customers 

were  -- I thought  the  p lan  was f o r  odyssey t o  s e l l  
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t o  muni c i  pa l  i t i  es t h a t  would be conver t i  ng f rom gas 

t o  bleach? 

A That was the  p lan .  

Q So I mean those e n t i t i e s  wou ldn ' t  have 

been buy ing from A l l i e d  because they hadn ' t  been 

buy ing bleach a t  a l l  p r i o r  t o  t h e i r  conversions, 

r i g h t ?  

A 

Q 

A 

Many customers fit t h a t  desc r ip t i on .  

The desc r ip t i on  I j u s t  gave? 

Many customers who w e r e  u t i  1 i ti es 

changed from ch lo r i ne  gas and had no t  p rev ious l y  

purchased bleach. 

Q So why would odyssey en te r ing  t h e  

267 
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1 3  

14 

1 5  

market and s e l l i n g  t o  those customers r e s u l t  i n  a 

steep d e c l i n e  i n  p r ices? 

A Because A l l i e d  s o l d  t o  them too.  

Q YOU then say i n  t h e  next  sentence, 

p r i c e s  a r e  rebounding now t h a t  odyssey i s  overso ld  

and compet i to rs '  raw mater ia l  p r i c e s  a r e  

i nc reas ing ,  i s  t h a t  r i g h t ?  

A That ' s  what I b e l i e v e d  a t  the t ime  t h a t  

I wrote t h a t ,  yes. 

Q That was i n  e a r l y  2003 t h a t  you wrote 

t h i s ,  r i g h t ?  

A we be l ieve  so, yes. 

Q Has t h a t  proven t o  be t r u e ,  t h a t  p r i c e s  

a re  now rebounding, i n  o ther  words, go ing  up? 

A I t h i n k  genera l l y  t h e  average p r i c e  i n  
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t h e  market has come up a l i t t l e  b i t ,  b u t  I d o n ' t  

t h i n k  t h a t  t h e  increase i n  the  compet i tors 's  raw 

mater ia ls  cost  was sustained. I t h i n k  t h e  raw 

mater ia l  market as of today has softened again.  

Q M r .  Al lman sa id  t h a t  t h e  p r i c e  a t  which 

odyssey so ld  t o  - was t h r e e  cents l e s s  than 

t h e  p r i c e  a t  which odyssey had been s e l l i n g  t o  

Manatee County. I s  t h a t  accurate? 

A No. 

Q what was the  d i f f e r e n t i a l ?  
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A Manatee county was a p u b l i c  b i d .  

Q I d o n ' t  r e c a l l  offhand what t h e  amount 

I t h i n k  i t  might  have been 33 t h e  f i r s t  t ime was. 

around when Odyssey was s e l l i n g  t o  Manatee. 

MR. SMITH:  The problem i s  g i v i n g  you 

Harcros' p r i c e .  

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) M r .  Al1man 

already gave i t  t o  us. I ' m  j u s t  ask ing i f  he was 

accurate. 

THE WITNESS: I s a i d  no. 

MR. SMITH: Then no. There you go. 

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) what was i t ?  

MR. SMITH:  Then o b j e c t .  I n s t r u c t  him 

not t o  answer. Nice t ry .  

MR. BANDKLAYDER: I t r i e d  t o  sneak t h a t  

one by. 

MR. SMITH:  when a r e  you going t o  
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producing documents? 

MR. BANDKLAYDER: I thought we w e r e  i n  

agreement on costs,  bu t  we were ye t  f i n a l i z e d  

on p r o f i t s .  

MR. SMITH: NO, s i r .  NO agreement was 

reached on anything l a s t  n i g h t  because La r ry  

had t o  speak t o  M r .  Koven. 

269 

MR. BANDKLAYDER: AS f a r  as I ' m  

concerned, we don ' t  need t o  reach an agreement 

on cos ts  because Judge Farre11 ru led  on i t ,  so 

i t ' s  a moot issue.  I want t o  work w i th  you on 

f u t u r e  d iscovery issues t h a t  r e l a t e  t o  costs  

and f u r t h e r  documentation re1 a t i  ng t o  costs,  

but as f a r  as g e t t i n g  cos t  in fo rmat ion ,  as f a r  

as we' re  concerned, t h e  judge has r u l e d  on 

t h a t .  

MR. SMITH: We discussed l a s t  n i g h t  you 

producing documentation o f  your accounting 

records suppor t i  ng your damage claim, whi ch 

i nc ludes  documents concerning costs  and 

p r o f i t s .  we had a d iscuss ion  about t h a t .  we 

reached no conclusion because M r .  Silverman 

had t o  speak t o  M r .  Koven. My quest ion i s  

s imply  when are you going t o  get  back t o  me on 

t h a t ?  

MR. BANDKLAYDER: Wel l ,  aSSUming M r .  

Silverman i s  i n  town, w e ' l l  t r y  t o  ge t  back 

w i t h  you on t h a t  tomorrow. He's no t  i n  town 
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22 today bu t  maybe he w i l l  be back tomorrow. I f  

23 

24 MR. SMITH: He ind i ca ted  t h a t  he would 

25  ge t  back t o  me yesterday. 

he were i n  town today he would be here. 

. . . .  . . .  . .  [I---: .. - .  ...... . . . . .  
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MR. BANDKLAYDER: I thought he d i d .  

MR. SMITH: No. 
- 

MR. BANDKLAYDER: YOU know what, I 

shou ldn ' t  even say because I wasn't p r i v y  t o  

the  conversat ion.  

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) But be t h a t  as i t  

may, g e t t i n g  back t o  t h e  depos i t ion ,  i s  odyssey 

s t i l l  s e l l i n g  t o  Sentry? 

A odyssey does no t  s e l l  t o  sentry .  

Q How does i t  work, does odyssey s e l l  t o  

customers t h a t  sen t r y  b a s i c a l l y  asks i t  t o  s e l l  t o ?  

A odyssey makes some t h i r d - p a r t y  

d e l i v e r i e s  o r  s i m i l a r  t o  what they do fo r -  

Q SO who's a c t u a l l y  buying from whom i n  

tha t  scenar io? 

. A  The customer buys from Sentry.  Sent ry  

odyssey produces and makes t h e  buys from odyssey. 

d e l i v e r y .  

Q Now, when odyssey does t h a t ,  what you 

20 j u s t  descr ibed, does i t  charge t h e  same p r i c e  

2 1  

22 A General 1 y , y e s .  

23 Q A t  what p r i c e  does odyssey s e l l  t o  

24 sent ry?  

regard less of who the  u l t i m a t e  end customer i s ?  

Page 1 1 3  



i 25 

121803ss.txt 

A I d o n ' t  t h i n k  we have t o  d isc lose  t h a t .  
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MR. SMITH: o b j e c t  and i n s t r u c t  him not  

t o  answer. Same ob jec t ion .  

(Thereupon, the  document re fe r red  t o  

was marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n  as P l a i n t i f f ' s  

E x h i b i t  No. 7.) 

THE WITNESS: Can I co r rec t  something? 

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) Sure. 

A I f  Sentry  has produc t ion  problems, they 

have purchased b leach from odyssey. 

Q And has t h a t  happened? 

A Yes. 

Q About how much bleach has sent ry  

purchased from odyssey? 

A I n  what t ime frame? 

Q Wel l ,  l e t ' s  s t a r t  w i t h  odyssey's f i s c a l  

year  of 2003. 

A Maybe * t ruck loads.  

Q - gal 1 ons? 
- 

A NO, _. 
Q ga l  1 ons? 
A Yeah. 

Q And how much would you est imate odyssey 

d e l i v e r e d  t o  Sentry  customers under the  t h i r d - p a r t y  

arrangement? 

A That 's  t he  one t h a t  I s a i d  was l e s s  
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than e p e r c e n t  , 1 ess than - gal 1 ons . 
Q E x h i b i t  No. 7. That E x h i b i t  NO. 7 i s  

signed by you on June 2 5 ,  i s  t h a t  r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q 

t h i s  1 e t t e r  , whi ch r e 1  eased chemeti cs from i t s  

r e s t r i c t i v e  covenant? 

w h y - d i d  you w a i t  u n t i l  June 2 5  t o  s ign  

A That was t h e  day I received i t  o r  the  

day a f t e r  I rece ived it. 

Q w e l l  , t h e  l e t t e r  does pu rpo r t  t o  

re1 ease chemeti cs  from i t s  r e s t r i c t i v e  covenant? 

A Tha t ' s  what I understood. 

Q And t h i s  l a w s u i t  t h a t  we're i nvo l ved  i n  

now i s  f i l e d  sometime around November o f  2001? 

A T h a t ' s  c o r r e c t .  

Q why d i d  odyssey w a i t  u n t i l  May o r  June 

o f  2002 t o  ge t  a l e t t e r  ou t  t o  chemetics re leas ing  

i t  from t h e  r e s t r i c t i v e  covenant? 

A I understand t h i s  l e t t e r  i s  f rom 

chemetics. we wa i ted  u n t i l  March o r  A p r i l  t o  

contact  chemetics, and i t  took  them u n t i l  t h i s  da te  

t o  i n t e r n a l l y  re lease  i t .  

Q The l e t t e r  i s  a c t u a l l y  f rom odyssey's 

a t torneys t o  chemetics,  i s n ' t  i t ?  

A okay. w e l l ,  t h a t  was when we go t  t h e  

273 

1 agreement then f rom chemetics. The holdup was i n  
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chemetics a f t e r  i n i t i a l  d iscuss ion i n  March o r  

A p r i l  o f  t h e  same year.  

Q I mean odyssey could have released 

Chemetics f rom i t s  r e s t r i c t i v e  covenant a t  any t ime 

Odyssey wanted t o ,  c o u l d n ' t  i t ?  

A we could have p e t i t i o n e d  them as we d i d  

i n  March o r  A p r i l  o f  2002. 

Q w e l l ,  you d o n ' t  need -- when I say you, 

odyssey d i d n ' t  need Chemetics' consent f o r  odyssey 

t o  re1 ease chemeti cs from the  r e s t r i c t i v e  covenant, 

d i d  i t ?  

A on our  own we could have canceled h a l f  

t h i s  agreement, t h a t ' s  co r rec t .  

Q when you ' re  saying h a l f  o f  t h i s  

agreement, you ' re  r e f e r r i n g  t o  t h e  h a l f  t h a t  s a i d  

chemetics could n o t  b u i l d  a c e l l  p l a n t  f o r  anybody 

e l s e  w i th in  150 m i les  of Tampa, co r rec t?  

A That 's  t h e  h a l f  we cou ld  have canceled 

on our  own. 

Q Cor rec t ,  

A wi thou t  consent o f  chemetics. 

Q why d i d n ' t  odyssey do t h a t  be fore  May 

o r  JUne o f  2002? 

A we thought  Chemetics would cancel t h e  

274 

1 whole agreement. we d i d n ' t  know i t  would take  so 

2 long.  

3 Q w e l l ,  odyssey and you knew t h a t  

4 A l l i e d ' s  C I S R  r a t e  would exp i re  un less A l l i e d  go t  a 
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p l a n t  i n  commercial operat ion by A p r i l  o f  -- 
a c t u a l l y  I t h i n k  i t  was A p r i l  o f  2003. You knew 

t h a t ,  r i g h t ?  

A I knew t h a t .  

Q And you know t h a t  i t  takes a t  l e a s t  16 

o r  more months f rom s t a r t  t o  f i n i s h  t o  ge t  one o f  

these p l a n t s  -- 
- 

A No. 

Q -- up and running, i s n ' t  t h a t  t rue?  

A I know t h a t  A l l i e d  had s ta ted  i t  would 

take  18 t o  24 months. 

Q How long d i d  i t  take you when you b u i l t  

I t h i n k  you p rev ious l y  t h e  odyssey p l a n t ?  

t e s t i f i e d  -- 
A I t took  us 16 months. 

Q I t h i n k  you t o l d  us i t  was 16 months, 

p l u s  p e r m i t t i n g  time? I n  other  words, i t  was 16 

months from ground breaking? 

A A l o t  o f  advanced work was done. It 

took  us 16 months from the  date t h e  con t rac t  was 

signed w i t h  chemetics, bu t  I knew A l l i e d  had 

275 

1 

2 dead l ine  had a l ready  passed. on t h e  day t h e  f i r s t  

3 l a w s u i t  was f i l e d ,  I knew t h e i r  deadl ine had 

4 passed, and t h a t  a month here, a month t h e r e  wasn ' t  

5 going t o  be the  cause o f  any f u r t h e r  t r o u b l e .  A lso  

6 t h e  f i r s t  l a w s u i t  was withdrawn. We are  now on an 

7 amended compl a i  n t  . 

t e s t i f i e d  p rev ious l y  18 t o  24 months and t h a t  t h e i r  
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And upon t h e  --  b a s i c a l l y  t h i s  -- 

MR. SMITH: I s  t he re  a pending 

Q we l l  -- 
A 

quest ion? 

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) I t ' s  a l l  p a r t  of 

t h e  same 1 awsui t . 
complaint ,  i t ' s  a11 one l a w s u i t  f o r  your 

ed i  f i c a t i  on. 

Amended complai . .  n t  , o r i g i n a l  

MR. SMITH: s t i c k  w i t h  t h e  quest ion.  

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) w e l l ,  my quest ion 

i s  s ince  odyssey was concerned about being sued 

over t h i s ,  why d i d n ' t  odyssey j u s t  immediately 

re1 ease Chemeti cs from t h a t  r e s t r i  c t i v e  covenant 

when i t  found ou t  about the  l awsu i t?  

A I discussed i t  w i t h  my a t to rneys  and we 

d i d  what we d i d .  

(Thereupon, the  document r e f e r r e d  t o  

was marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n  as P l a i n t i f f ' s  

276 

1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

E x h i b i t  No. 8.)  

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) E x h i b i t  Number 8, 

I only  have one copy o f  i t ,  so w e ' l l  t h a t  i s  SS8. 

have t o  pass i t  around, bu t  can you t e l l  me what 

t h a t  i s ?  

A Th is  appears t o  be an est imate of 

odyssey's ECU cos t  done by Pete DeAngelis i n  

November o f  1997. 

Q And was i t  u t i l i z e d  i n  any o f  t h e  

business p lans t h a t  were prepared f o r  odyssey? 
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11 A No. 

1 2  Q How come? 

1 3  A There was no business p lan  i n  November 

1 4  o f  '97. 

1 5  Q w e l l  , I mean the  l a t e r  business plans. 

. .  16 . . .  A No, t h a t  wasn't used. The in fo rma t ion  .. . . . . . - . . .  
_ _  . .. . .  . -  ________._ . . - - - - 
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2 0  
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1 3  

i s  n o t  accurate.  It says 2,100 k i l o w a t t  hours per 

ton,  and odyssey's p l a n t  was 

- 
. e--- _ _ _  t he  p l a n t  

would have been 100 percent ou t  o f  business. 

Q The b i p o l a r  c e l l s  are the  ones t h a t  

have a l ower  e l e c t r i c  usage? 

A Yes, bu t  each c e l l  has a h igher  volume. 

Q E a r l i e r  I asked you i f  the re  were any 

277 

disadvantages t o  the  b i p o l a r  c e l l s  and you s a i d  no, 

b u t  apparent ly  t h e r e  is a disadvantage? 

A Yes, t hey ' re  n o t  s u i t a b l e  fo r  - 
Q 

plan t?  

Are they  s u i t a b l e  f o r  a 50 t o n  a day 

A Abso lu te ly ,  and t h e  technology i s  

b e t t e r  now, and you probably could b u i l d  a 30 t o n  a 

day p l a n t  w i t h  a new b i p o l a r  c e l l .  

Q How many b i p o l a r  c e l l s  would be 

requ i red  f o r  a 50 ton a day p l a n t ?  

A TWO, 
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Q So i f  one o f  them f a i l e d ,  i t  would be a 

much b igger  deal  than i n  a monopolar p lan t  where 

you might  have 1 5  o r  16 o r  17 o r  18 o f  those c e l l s ?  

A sure,  but  the  new c e l l s  can ramp up t o  

n e a r l y  double t h e  speed f o r  a per iod  o f  t ime wh i l e  

t h e  . f i r s t  one i s  f i xed .  

Q Is there  an i n t e r v a l  a t  which t h e  FM 

1,500 c e l l s  have t o  be refurb ished? 

A Yes. 

Q what 's invo lved i n  t h a t ?  

A The membranes are  changed and t h e  

gasket  i s  replaced. 
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16 

Q And a t  what i n t e r v a l  i s  t h a t  done? 

A 

opera t i on .  

Q 

Between th ree  and seven years o f  

And has Odyssey been -- has odyssey 

r e f u r b i s h e d  any o f  i t s  c e l l s ?  

A odyssey has re fu rb ished a l l  but  a few.  

Q where i s  t h e  refurbishment done? 

A I n  t h e  c e l l  maintenance room adjacent 

t o  the  c e l l  room. 

Q 

A c e r t a i n l y .  

Q who does i t ?  

A odyssey s t a f f .  

Q YOU don ' t  have t o  send t h e  c e l l s  back 

I t ' s  done on t h e  premises? 

t o  Ineos o r  have Ineos personnel come i n  t o  do i t ?  

A No. 
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17 Q what a re  t h e  costs invo lved i n  

1 8  r e f u r b i s h i n g  a c e l l ?  

19 MR. SMITH: Object ion.  Same ob jec t ion .  

20 same i n s t r u c t i  on. 

2 1  Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) HOW o f t e n  do YOU 

..... 22 ... .have ..to rep lace t h e  membranes? . .  . 
- . ... 

. .  
.. . ~. . .  . .  ~ ..... . .  ~~ . ~ ...- ~ ~ _- 

23 A Every th ree  t o  seven years. 

24 Q ' IS t h a t  what odyssey's experience has 

2 5 been? 
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A Yes. 

Q How many membranes have you replaced so 

f a r ?  

A A l l  b u t  a few. 

(Thereupon, t h e  document r e f e r r e d  t o  

was marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n  as P l a i n t i f f ' s  

E x h i b i t  No. 9.) 

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) Moving on t o  the  

next  e x h i b i t ,  which would be ss9. Have you 

re fu rb ished any anodes? 

A few. 

Is t h a t  done on premises as w e l l ?  

Those were j u s t  replaced. 

I ns tead  o f  re fu rb i shed  them? 

Yes. 

Have you had a chance t o  l o o k  a t  

E x h i b i t  No. 9? 

A okay. 

Q Now, Mr. Allman s a i d  t h a t  most o f  t he  

Page 1 2 1  
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20 i n fo rma t ion  i n  t h i s  document came from you, 

2 1  a l though he concedes t h a t  he ed i ted  i t .  Is t h a t  

22 t rue?  

23 A Yes, some o f  t h i s  i n fo rma t ion  came from 

24 me. 

25 Q on t h e  second page o f  t h i s  e x h i b i t ,  t h e  
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second paragraph says, t h e  p l a n t ' s  est imated cos ts  

t o  produce a g a l l o n  o f  bleach i s  about blank, and 

i t ' s  redacted ou t .  I ' m  no t  asking what your cos t  

now i s ,  bu t  what was i t  est imated t o  be a t  t h a t  

t ime p rospec t i ve l y?  

A I d o n ' t  know what cos t  he was r e f e r r i n g  

t o .  There's a loose cost  o f  raw mate r ia l s ,  t h e  

e l e c t r i c i t y  and t h e  s a l t ,  which i s  a f a i r l y  low 

number, and then a f t e r  you spend the  money on t h e  

p l a n t  i t s e l f  and t h e  operators ,  and t h a t ' s  q u i t e  a 

h igh  number. 

have re fe r red .  

lower number because i t ' s  more impress ive t o  h i s  

supervi  sor .  

Q 

I d o n ' t  know which number he would 

He probably would have used t h e  

L e t ' s  assume he was us ing  the  t o t a l  

number s ince he then goes on t o  t a l k  about t h e  

compet i tors 's  cos ts  i n  t h e  same paragraph. 

you r e c a l l  t he  t o t a l  number be ing a t  t h a t  t ime? 

what do 

MR. SMITH:  Same o b j e c t i o n .  Same 

i n s t r u c t i o n .  

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) He then says, t h e  

o ther  s i x  compet i to rs '  i n  t h e  s t a t e  cos ts  a r e  
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23 est imated t o  range between blank and b lank.  what 

24 

25 A Those would have been raw mate r ia l  

were  those f i g u r e s  t h a t  you gave him? 
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cos ts .  

Q Do you r e c a l l  what they  were? 

A NO. 

Q And then i t  goes on t o  say t h e  

produc t ion  costs  compet i t ive advantage o f  t h i  s 

p l a n t  i s  due t o  t h e  f a c t  t h a t  they  w i l l  make t h e i r  

own c a u s t i c  and ch lo r i ne  ra the r  than purchase these 

raw mate r ia l s  i n  the  product ion o f  t h e  bleach. 

IS t h a t  in fo rmat ion  he ob ta ined from 

you? 

A Not verbatim. 

Q what i s  i t  t h a t  you t h i n k  i s  d i f f e r e n t  

than what you t o l d  him? 

A I f  we had ta l ked  about t o t a l  cos t ,  I 

would have t o l d  him t h a t  we d i d  n o t  expect 

odyssey's t o t a l  cost  always t o  be l e s s  than the  

compet i to rs 's .  I f  we t a l k e d  about raw mate r ia l  

costs ,  I d i d  expect odyssey's raw m a t e r i a l  costs  

always t o  be cheaper than the  compet i to rs  because 

i t  ' s s a l t  agai n s t  processed ch l  o r i  ne and caus t i  c 

soda t ranspor ted  t o  F lo r i da .  

Q I f  you d i d n ' t  expect odyssey's t o t a l  

cost  t o  be l e s s  than i t s  compet i tors ,  how d i d  you 

expect Odyssey t o  make money? 

A The compet i tors made money. I don ' t  
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1 understand t h e  question. 

2 Q w e l l ,  how would odyssey have a 
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than i t s  competitors? 

A some years they would be lower. some 

when t h e  compet i tors 's costs  years t h e y  weren' t .  

were h igh,  odyssey could say --  when compet i tors 's  

costs  were low, odyssey could say, sure, today i s  

cheaper b u t  ours don ' t  change much, and we thought 

t h a t  would be an advantage i n  the water p l a n t s .  

Q It then goes on t o  say i n  the  nex t  

sentence, these product ion costs  are based on 

b lank,  w i t h  t h e  in fo rmat ion  redacted out ,  per  

megawatt hour e l e c t r i c  cost ,  which t h e  company used 

i n  i t s  business plan. That would have r e f e r r e d  t o  

t h e  

A I could assume t h a t  j u s t  l i k e  you are.  

MR. SMITH: The quest ion i s  do you 

know. 

THE WITNESS: I have no idea. 

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) And then two 

sentences f u r t h e r  along, i t  reads, a d d i t i o n a l l y ,  

t h e  cost  advantages associated w i t h  b u i l d i n g  a new 

bleach p l a n t  a re  s i g n i f i c a n t  enough t h a t  i t  i s 

expected t h a t  o ther  compet i tors  w i l l  do so i n  t h e  

283 
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nex t  t e n  years and most o f  the e x i s t i n g  b leach 

p l a n t s  w i l l  go o u t  o f  business. where d i d  you get  

t h a t  i n fo rma t ion  from? 

A He made t h a t  up. 

Q M r .  Allman made t h a t  up? 

A Yes. 

Q That was pure f i c t i o n  as f a r  as you 

were concerned? 

A No. we thought t h a t  some e x i s t i n g  

companies w i t h i n  t e n  years might b u i l d  membrane 

c e l l  p l a n t s .  That  hasn ' t  happened. There a re  none 

i n  the  U . S .  because the  p r i c e  o f  caus t i c  soda and 

c h l o r i n e  has gone down, bu t  I t o l d  Pat t h a t  

somebody w i l l  copy t h i s ,  and he apparent ly  

exaggerated i t  and sa id  t h a t  everybody w i l l  copy 

i t .  

whole country .  

we a r e  su rp r i sed  t h a t  nobody copied i t  i n  t h e  

Q IS i t  your test imony t h a t  you never 

t o l d  him t h a t  i n  your op in ion  most o f  t h e  e x i s t i n g  

bleach p l a n t s  w i l l  go ou t  o f  business? 

A I d i d  n o t  t e l l  him t h a t .  

Q D id  you t e l l  him anyth ing l i k e  t h a t ?  

A I don ' t recol  1 e c t  t e l l  i ng him any th i  ng 

t o  those - -  i n  t h a t  context ,  no. 

Q Do you and he get  along? 

284 

A y e s .  

Q He s a i d  you d i d n ' t .  

A I heard t h a t .  
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MR. SMITH: ob jec t  t o  the form. 

M i  ss ta tes  test imony . 
Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) But you d o n ' t  

agree w i t h  t h a t ?  YOU t h i n k  t h a t  you do get  along? 

A 

Q 

I t h i n k  I do ge t  along. 

Apparent ly  t h i s  i s  something t h a t  t h e  

two o f  you don ' t  agree, t h a t  i s  whether o r  n o t  you 

g e t  a1 ong? 

MR. SMITH: o b j e c t i o n  t o  the  form of 

t h e  quest ion.  Misstates A1lman's test imony.  

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) M r .  Allman s a i d  

t h a t  one o f  t h e  reasons M r .  Rakes was brought i n  

was t o  a c t  as a b u f f e r  between you and Mr. Al lman. 

IS t h a t  t r u e ?  

A NO. 

Q And s p e c i f i c a l l y  he sa id  t h a t  because 

you and he don ' t  ge t  along, M r .  Rakes was brought  

i n  as a b u f f e r  between the  two o f  you. 

MR. SMITH:  o b j e c t i o n  t o  the  form o f  

t h e  quest ion.  Misstates t h e  test imony. 

THE WITNESS: I have no knowledge t o  

t h a t ,  no. 

285 

1 Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) On t h e  l a s t  

2 sentence o f  t h i s  page, i t  says t h e  customer has 

3 

4 e l e c t r i c  power p r i c i n g .  Was t h a t  t rue? 

5 A That 's  what he t o l d  me t o  ask him. 

6 Q Does Odyssey p lan  t o  keep M r .  Al lman on 

expressed a d e s i r e  t o  ob ta in  (I, per megawatt hour 
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a f t e r  h i s  con t rac t  expi res and t h i s  l a w s u i t  i s  

presumably over? 

A Yes. 

(Thereupon, the  document r e f e r r e d  t o  

was marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n  as P l a i n t i f f ' s  

E x h i b i t  NO. 10.) 

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) Have you ever 

seen t h i s  before? 

A NO. 

Q I t  says i n  paragraph 3 o f  t h i s  document 

t h a t  t h e  proposed sent ry  I n d u s t r i e s  bleach p l a n t  i s 

no t  designed t o  compete w i t h  any o f  these e x i s t i n g  

compani es . 
others.  IS t h a t  t rue?  

The e x i  s t i  ng compani es b e i  ng A1 7 i ed and 

A Tha t ' s  l a r g e l y  t r u e ,  yes. 

Q I n  f a c t ,  doesn' t  odyssey compete w i th  

A l l i e d  o r  perhaps C F I  o r  both? 

A odyssey competes w i t h  A l l i e d  f o r  t he  

u t i  1 i t y  busi  ness and poss ib ly  some i n d u s t r i  a1 

286 

business, bu t  we don ' t  -- we d o n ' t  compete w i t h  

A l l i e d  i n  t h e i r  core business, which i s  swimming 

pool s . 
Q I n  what areas does odyssey n o t  compete 

w i t h  A l l i e d ?  

which A l l i e d  and odyssey do n o t  compete? 

I s  there  any t y p e  o f  customer f o r  

A odyssey doesn' t  compete w i t h  A l l i e d  f o r  

most o f  t h e i r  present  business. NOW, i n  t h e  years 

a f t e r  t h e  s t a r t u p  when Odyssey was undersold,  they 
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c a l l e d  on swimming pool accounts. They c a l l e d  on 

James Aust in ,  a bleach repackager f o r  which 

business A1 1 i ed a1 so competed, 

They b i d  one year on a p inch a penny 

con t rac t  f o r  the  zone -- I be l i eve  zone 3 ,  which 

would encompass sarasota, and they d i d  no t  win 

t h a t ,  b u t  i n  more recent  years,  I don ' t  t h i n k  we 

c a l l  on A l l i e d ' s  pool accounts, which are about e 
- __ 

-gallons ou t  of  - 
SO we are  no t  t r y i n g  t o  take  -gallons o u t  

o f  

Q what types o f  business does odyssey 

have t h a t  i t ' s  not  i n  compet i t ion w i t h  A l l i e d  f o r ,  

i f  any? 

A A l l i e d  can compete w i t h  odyssey, b u t  we 

d i d n ' t  take  A l l i e d ' s  business i s  my po in t .  

0 
28 7 
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Q My quest ion i s  what types o f  customer 

does odyssey have t h a t  i t  does not  compete w i th  

A l l i e d  f o r ?  

A when you phrase i t  t h a t  way, A l l i e d  

cou ld  compete f o r  every Odyssey customer, t h a t ' s  

c o r r e c t ,  b u t  odyssey cannot compete f o r  every 

A l l i e d  customer because most o f  them are t o o  

seasonal, and odyssey wants t o  run t h e  p l a n t  24/7, 

even i n  December, January and February when the  

pool  companies buy l i t t l e  o r  noth ing.  

Q It says here t h a t  A l l i e d  i s  a c t u a l l y  a 

p o t e n t i a l  customer f o r  t h e  odyssey f a c i l i t y .  
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A I saw t h a t .  

Q was t h a t  p a r t  o f  odyssey's business 

p lan? 

A NO. 

Q D i d  i t  ever -- d i d  odyssey ever 

consider  s e l l i n g  t o  A l l i e d ?  

A Yes, we considered i t .  

Q what was the  decis ion? 

A The dec is ion  was no t  t o  do i t .  

Q why was t h a t ?  

A we decided i t  wasn't i n  our bes t  

i n t e r e s t  . 
Q Why was i t  not  i n  your bes t  i n t e r e s t ?  

288 

(Thereupon, there  was a d iscuss ion  o f f  

t he  record. )  

THE WITNESS: A dec is ion  I made as the  

execut ive  i n  charge of  the  d i r e c t i o n  of t he  

company. 

way as bes t  we could by ourselves.  

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) w e l l ,  what you 

we would be independent and make our 

want t o  do w i t h  odyssey i s  s e l l  b leach, r i g h t ?  

A yes.  

Q And hope fu l l y  make money doing i t ?  

A Yes. 

Q And d i d  the re  come a p o i n t  i n  t ime  

where someone f rom A l l i e d  contacted you and asked 

i f  odyssey would s e l l  bleach t o  A l l i e d ?  

A Yes. 
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Q who was t h a t ?  

A ~ i m  Palmer. 

Q 

A 

And when d i d  t h a t  happen? 

I t  happened be fore  odyssey s t a r t e d  up, 

and i t  happened again a f t e r  t he  l awsu i t  was dropped 

b e f  o re- t he-amended-compl-ai n t was- f i-l-d-- we- had- a 

se t t lement  conference. 

Q So M r .  Palmer -- I ' m  no t  asking about 

any set t lement  conferences. 

t h a t ' s  inadmiss ib le ,  bu t  so M r .  Palmer c a l l e d  you 

Put t h a t  as ide because 

289 

before the  odyssey p l a n t  a c t u a l l y  s t a r t e d  

commerci a1 operat ions and i nqui red as t o  whether 

odyssey would s e l l  t o  A l l i e d ?  

A I ' m  no t  abso lu te l y  sure o f  t h e  t im ing .  

I be l i eve  i t  was before odyssey s t a r t e d  up. 

Q 

A Maybe i t  was a f t e r .  

Q 

Maybe i t  was a f t e r  odyssey s ta r ted?  

Somewhere i n  t h a t  general t ime frame he 

made t h a t  c a l l  ? 

A Yes. 

Q D id  he speak t o  you persona l ly?  

A Yes. 

Q And you knew M r .  Palmer from before ,  

d i  dn ' t you? 

A Yes. 

Q And f o r  how long  have you known Mr. 

Pal mer? 

A About 1 5  years.  
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19 Q And how long o f  a conversat ion d i d  you 

20 have when M r .  Palmer c a l l e d  you? 

2 1  A we had lunch. 

22 Q where d i d  you go f o r  lunch? 

2 3  A I d o n ' t  remember. 

24 Q who asked f o r  t he  lunch meeting? 

2 5  A Pal mer. 
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2 1  

Q And when he f i r s t  c a l l e d  you t o  see i f  

you cou ld  meet w i t h  him f o r  lunch,  d i d  he t e l l  you 

what t o p i c  i t  was t h a t  he hoped t o  discuss w i t h  

you? 

A NO.  

Q SO what happened when the  two of you 

went t o  lunch? F i  r s t  of a l l ,  was anybody e l se  

there? 

A NO.  

Q 

A yes.  

Q 

say t o  him? 

A 

J U S t  the  two o f  you? 

what d i d  he say t o  you and what d i d  you 

He s a i d  I know you ' re  b u i l d i n g  a 

membrane c e l l  p l a n t  i n  Tampa, which would date i t  

p r i o r  t o  t h e  s t a r t u p  because a f t e r  t h e  s t a r t u p ,  

everybody knew we were i n  business, 

A l l i e d  would be i n t e r e s t e d  i n  purchasing some o r  

a l l  of t h e  tonnage and so lve  our  sa les problem f o r  

He sa id  t h a t  

us. 

Q s o l v e  whose sales problem? 
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A Odyssey . 
Q I n  o ther  words, i f  odyssey -- 
A He d i d n ' t  use those words. 

Q B a s i c a l l y  -- 
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A He could s e l l  ou t  the  p l a n t  f o r  me l i k e  

t h a t .  

Q The idea  he was conveying was you would 

be an ove rn igh t  success? 

ou t  a l l  o f  your  product ion? 

YOU would i n s t a n t l y  s e l l  

A That  was h i s  argument. 

Q 

A I b e l i e v e  I t o l d  him I would t h i n k  

what d i d  you say t o  him? 

about i t  and I decided l a t e r  against  i t  and 

in formed him o f  my dec is ion .  

Q what was the  bas is  f o r  your dec id ing  

no t  t o  s e l l  t o  A l l i e d ?  

A I t  pu t  a c e i l i n g  on the  amount o f  money 

we would ever make. No mat ter  what market p r i c e s  

f o r  b leach were, we would be locked i n t o  a lower  

number w i t h  A l l i e d  and never r e a l i z e  our f u l l  

p o t e n t i a l ,  b u t  i t  took  away the  r i s k .  I decided t o  

take t h e  r i s k  r a t h e r  than take  the  easy road. 

Q D i d  you d iscuss M r .  Palmer's proposal  

w i t h  any o f  t h e  o the r  people associated w i t h  

odyssey? 

A No. 

Q I f  you had accepted M r .  Palmer 's 

proposal  and agreed upon terms -- w e l l ,  f i r s t  o f  
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25 a l l ,  you wouldn ' t  have had t o  worry  about sales 
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obv ious ly  because a l l  o f  your p roduc t ion  would 

a l ready  be presold,  r i g h t ?  

A presumably . 
Q And i n  add i t ion ,  i t  would have been 

s o l d  a t  a p r i c e  t h a t  obviously t h e  two o f  you would 

have had t o  have agreed upon, r i g h t ?  

A 

Q And you wouldn' t  have had t o  -- w e l l ,  

d i d  M r .  Palmer t a l k  w i t h  you about how i t  would 

work i n  terms o f  t r u c k  and d e l i v e r i e s  i f  A l l i e d  

were t o  buy odyssey's production? 

we never got t h a t  f a r .  

A 

Q 

we never got t h a t  f a r .  

D id  i t  occur t o  you t h a t  i t  would save 

odyssey -- p o t e n t i a l l y  save odyssey a l l  t h e  expense 

of having t o  have a f l e e t  o f  t r u c k s  and t o  make 

del  i v e r i  es? 

A NO. 

Q D i d  i t  occur t o  you t h a t  i t  would save 

odyssey t h e  expense o f  perhaps having t o  pay sales 

commi ssions? 

A NO.  

Q D i d  i t  occur t o  you t h a t  i t  would save 

odyssey a l l  market ing expenses? I n  o ther  words, 

t h e r e  would be no marketing expenses? 

A Those are  a l l  p r o f i t a b l e  areas f o r  
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A l l i e d .  

severa l  p r o f i t a b l e  areas and l i m i t  t h e  amount o f  

money I would ever make. A l l i e d  wasn' t  go ing t o  do 

those f o r  me below t h e i  r own cos t .  They a re  making 

money on every s i n g l e  t h i n g  you mentioned, and t h a t  

would have prevented me from making money on those 

same areas. 

take  t h e  r i s k .  I t  was a business dec is ion.  

I understood t h a t  I would be g i v i n g  away 

I decided t o  spend the  t r o u b l e  and 

Q were the re  any o the r  reasons why you 

decided t h a t  you would no t  s e l l  any o f  odyssey's 

bleach t o  A l l i e d ?  

A Not t h a t  I r e c a l l .  

Q IS t h e r e  any reason why you d i d n ' t  

e l e c t  t o  s e l l  a p o r t i o n  o f  odyssey's bleach t o  

A l l i e d ?  I n  o t h e r  words, g iven  t h a t  you decided you 

would n o t  s e l l  a l l  o f  odyssey's output  t o  A l l i e d ,  

d i d  you consider  perhaps s e l l i n g  some p o r t i o n  o f  

t h e  produc t ion  t o  A l l i e d ?  

A we considered i t  b u t  we s o l d  i t  

e l  sewhere. 

Q why d i d  you -- I understood from what 

you t o l d  me a few minutes ago t h a t  M r .  Palmer 

proposed t o  buy some o r  a l l  o f  odyssey's bleach. 

SO my quest ion i s  why d i d  you e l e c t  t o  no t  even 

s e l l  a p o r t i o n  of odyssey's bleach t o  A l l i e d ?  
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A Because A l l i e d  wanted a long- term 
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commitment. 

Q 

p lan  t o  s e l l  a t  long-term f i x e d  p r i c i n g ?  

A we discussed t r y i n g  t o  convert  

u t i l i t i e s  who used c h l o r i n e  gas t o  bleach, and we 

discussed o f f e r i n g  them, if i t  were i n  t h e i r  own 

Most o f  our sa les were day t o  day. 

wasn' t  p a r t  o f  your e a r l y  market ing 

bes t  i n t e r e s t ,  t he  oppor tun i t y  t o  buy a longer  term 

con t rac t  than one year i f  they  saw i t  as an 

advantage. 

Q So why wouldn ' t  odyssey want -- why 

d i d n ' t  you on beha l f  o f  odyssey want t o  a t  l e a s t  

ensure t h a t  some p o r t i o n  o f  odyssey's bleach would 

be s o l d  f o r  c e r t a i n  t o  a customer l i k e  A l l i e d  on a 

long- term basis? 

A Because i t ' s  o n l y  worth the  c h l o r i n e  

and c a u s t i c  t o  A l l i e d .  I t ' s  wor th t h e  va lue  of 

b leach t o  the  u t i l i t y ,  and we make a l i v i n g  from 

t h e  spread. I t ' s  f a i r l y  s imple.  

Q HOW come then you s e l l  t o  o ther  b leach 

manu f a c t  u r e  r s? 

MR. SMITH: o the r  than t h e  reasons he ' s  

a1 ready g iven a t  1 ength? 

Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) o the r  than 

A l l i e d .  You t o l d  us you won' t  s e l l  t o  A l l i e d  b u t  

295 

1 you s e l l  t o  o the r  bleach manufacturers? 

2 MR. SMITH: He's t e s t i f i e d  a t  l e n g t h  

3 why he 's  s e l l i n g  t o  them. 

4 MR. BANDKLAYDER: He t e s t i f i e d  a t  
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5 Th is  i s  a 

6 v e r y  d i f f e r e n t  quest ion.  This  i s  t h e  opposi te 

7 quest ion.  

8 MR. SMITH: I presume t h i s  i s  re levant  

9 

l e n g t h  as t o  why they buy from him. 

t o  something i n  t h i  s lawsu i t?  

10 MR. BANDKLAYDER: Yes, I ' m  q u i t e  Sure 
. - -  . . . . .. . . . ._ . ~ ~~ . ~ ~. . - - - ~.. - - 

. - . . . . . --11 ~. -_-.-_ _~-.- 
l t  1s.  

12 MR. SMITH: I hope i t ' s  cozy. 

1 3  MR. BANDKLAYDER: O r  e lse? 

14 MR. SMITH: Seems l i k e  we are  wast ing a 

15 l o t  o f  t ime here on t h i s  issue.  

16 Q (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) The quest ion 

17 i s  -- . 

18 MR. SMITH: I s  t he re  some a l l e g a t i o n  

19 f o r  him t o  s e l l  t o  A l l i e d ?  IS t h e r e  something 

20 i n  t h i s  case we are  suing because you refused 

21 t o  s e l l  t o  us? 

22 MR. BANDKLAYDER: Are YOU i n s t r u c t i n g  

23 him n o t  t o  answer? 

24 MR. SMITH: NO. Just  a l i t t l e  

25 f r u s t r a t e d  we're going down a r a b b i t  h o l e  t h a t  

296 

1 has no th ing  t o  do w i t h  t h a t  case. 

2 Q .  (BY MR. BANDKLAYDER) why i s  i t  t h a t  

3 odyssey i s  w i l l i n g  t o  s e l l  t o  o ther  F l o r i d a  bleach 

4 manufacturers b u t  i t  w i l l  n o t  s e l l  t o  A l l i e d ?  , 

5 A We s e l l  t o  r i  g i  n a l l  y because 

6 

7 day-to-day con t rac t  as long as we had excess. We 

we were overproduced, and they would buy i t  on a 
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8 s e l l  t o  _1 as emergency backup because they 

9 p rov ide  emergency back-up f o r  us. same deal w i t h  

10 -. We prov ide  emergency back-up t o  -. 
11 -provides emergency backup t o  odyssey. same 

12  t h i n g  w i t h  sent ry .  A l l  o ther  t ransac t ions  are  a t  

1 3  market p r i c e s .  
. .. .. - -. . - . - . . . . . - - - 
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~ l l  i ed never t a l  ked about market 

p r i c e s .  

what the  c h l o r i n e  and caus t ic  would be worth t o  

them. 

b u t  no t  a r e t a i l  b-leach p r i c e .  

A l l i e d  was t a l k i n g  more on the  l e v e l  o f  

Maybe a t o l l i n g  fee  t o  t u r n  i t  i n t o  bleach 

I f  A l l i e d  had t o  t u r n  around and s e l l  

i t ,  there  wou ldn ' t  have been any room, and t h e  fac t  

t h a t  i t  was long-term, was a low p r i c e  a t  long-term 

was the worst  t h i n g  t h a t  we could have signed up 

f o r .  we took  a l ow  p r i c e  f o r  a sho r t  t e r m .  

Q I thought  you t o l d  me e a r l i e r  t h a t  your 

d iscuss ions w i t h  J i m  Palmer never got  t o  t h e  p o i n t  
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o f  d i  scussi  ng p r i c e ?  

A Righ t .  

Q what 's  your bas is  f o r  saying t h a t  

A l l i e d  was o n l y  t o  w i l l i n g  t o  pay a low p r i c e ?  

A Because A l l i e d  had t o  r e s e l l .  

Q Don' t  t h e  other  b leach manufacturers 

have t o  r e s e l l  i t  a lso ,  

sen t ry?  

A yeah, b u t  i t ' s  a l l  -- yeah,- 

decided i t  was wor th  i t  a t  t h a t  p r i c e  ra the r  than 
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A l l i e d  i s  not  a t  capaci ty .  add capaci ty .  

Everybody e l s e  on ly  buys i n  emergency when t h e  

o p t i o n  i s  t o  be out  o f  i t .  I d o n ' t  know why 

I, bought it. Frankly I ' m  surpr ised.  

MR. BANDKLAYDER: Glenn, what do YOU 

want t o  do? 

amount o f  s t u f f  t o  go through. 

t o  r u i n  your Christmas p a r t y .  

break, I mean we can p i c k  up on one o f  t h e  

o ther  days we t a l k e d  about. 

I ' v e  got a f a i r l y  s i g n i f i c a n t  

I d o n ' t  want 

If you want t o  

MR. SMITH: why d o n ' t  we take a shor t  

break anyway f o r  a minute, okay? 

MR. BANDKLAYDER: sure.  

(Thereupon, t h e  d e p o s i t i o n  was 

adjourned a t  3 : 5 0  p . m . )  
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EXCEPT FOR THE CORRECTIONS 
MADE HEREIN BY ME, I CERTIFY 
T H I S  I S  A TRUE AND ACCURATE 
TRANSCRIPT. 
FURTHER DEPONENT SAYETH NOT 

DEPONENT 

STATE OF FLORIDA 1 
COUNTY OF BROWARD 3 ss: 

sworn and subscribed t o  before me t h i s  

- day o f  , 2004 

PERSONALLY KNOWN OR I . D .  

Notary Public i n  and f o r  
rhe S t a t e  o f  F l o r i d a  a t  
Large. 

My commission expi  res: 
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E R R A T A  S H E E T  

I n  Re: A l l i e d  Universal  Corporat ion,  e t  a l .  v. 

case NO. 01-27699 CA 25 
odyssey Manufacturing Company, e t  a l .  

DO NOT WRITE ON TRANSCRIPT -- ENTER CHANGES HERE: 

Page NO. 

/ 

L ine NO. 

/ 

change 

/ 

/ / 
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/ 
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19 STATE OF FLORIDA 1 
20 COUNTY OF BROWARD {” 
2 1  under pena l t ies  o f  p e r j u r y ,  I declare 

t h a t  I have read my depos i t ion  and t h a t  i t  i s  t r u e  
22 and c o r r e c t  sub jec t  t o  any changes i n  form o r  

s-u bs t a n  ce- - en t e red - h e r e-. 
23 

24 DATE STEPHEN SIDELKO 

25  

. . . . -. . . . . . - . - . . ~. 
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CERTIFICATE OF OATH 

STATE OF FLORIDA 1 
COUNTY OF BROWARD 

I, JAMIE TAYLOR, RPR-CCR, Notary  Pub l i c  i n  and 
f o r  t h e  s t a t e  o f  F l o r i d a  a t  Large, c e r t i f y  t h a t  t h e  
wi tness,  STEPHEN SIDELKO, persona l ly  appeared 
be fo re  me and was du ly  sworn. 

day o f  December, 2003. 
WITNESS my hand and o f f i c i a l  seal  t h i s  23rd 

REPORTER’S 

STATE OF FLORIDA 

COUNTY OF BROWARD 

JAMIE TAYLOR, CCR-RPR 
Notary p u b l i c ,  s t a t e  of F l o r i d a  
MY commission exp i  res  8/25/04. 
No. CC966638 

DEPOSITION CERTIFICATE 

1 

I, JAMIE TAYLOR, Registered Pro fess iona l  
Reporter,  c e r t i f y  t h a t  I was au tho r i zed  t o  and d i d  
s tenograph ica l l y  repo r t  t he  depos i t i on  o f  STEPHEN 
SIDELKO, t h e  wi tness here in;  t h a t  a rev iew o f  t h e  
t r a n s c r i p t  was n o t  waived; t h a t  t h e  fo rego ing  pages 
numbered f rom 146 t o  300, i n c l u s i v e ,  i s  a t r u e  and 
complete record o f  my stenographic notes o f  t he  
depos i t i on  by s a i d  wi tness;  and t h a t  t h i s  
computer-assisted t r a n s c r i p t  was prepared by me. 

I f u r t h e r  c e r t i f y  t h a t  I am n o t  a r e l a t i v e ,  
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20 employee, a t to rney  o r  counsel o f  any o f  t h e  

p a r t i e s ,  nor am 1 - a  r e l a t i v e  o r  employee o f  an o f  
the  p a r t i e s '  a t to rney  o r  counsel connected w i t x  t h e  
ac t i on .  

21 

22 

23 
DATED t h i s  23rd day o f  December, 2003. 

n 
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PEGGY ANN COOK & ASSOCIATES, INC.  
19 west F l a g l e r  s t r e e t ,  s u i t e  1020 

Miami, F l o r i d a  33130 
30 5/37 1- 1884 

3 

4 
December 23, 2003 
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22 

M r .  Stephen s i  de l  ko 
c/o Ruden McClosky 
200 E.  Broward s l vd .  
F t .  Lauderdale, FL 33301 

RE: A l l i e d  v. odyssey 

Th is  l e t t e r  i s  t o  adv ise you t h a t  t he  t r a n s c r i p t  o f  
your depos i t ion  taken i n  t h e  above-styled cause on 
December 18, 2003 has been completed and is 
awai t ing  your reading and s ign ing .  

Please ar ran  e t o  s top  by our  o f f i c e  i n  S u i t e  1020, 

s ign  t h i s  t r a n s c r i p t .  
a.m. t o  4:OO p.m. Monday through Fr iday.  The 
t r a n s c r i p t  i s  155 pages long, and you should a l l o w  
y o u r s e l f  s u f f i c i e n t  t i m e .  

I f  the  reading and s ign ing  has no t  been completed 
p r i o r  t o  ~ a n u a r y  25, 2004, we s h a l l  conclude t h a t  
you have waived t h e  reading and s ign ing  o f  t h e  
t r a n s c r i p t  . 
Your prompt a t t e n t i o n  t o  t h i s  mat ter  i s  
appreciated. 

s ince re l y ,  

19 West Flag 9 e r  S t ree t ,  Miami, F lo r i da ,  t o  read and 
o f f i c e  hours are f rom 8:OO 

~ a m i e  Tay lo r ,  CCR, RPR 

cc:  o r i g i n a l  t r a n s c r i p t  
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PEGGY ANN COOK & ASSOCIATES, I N C .  
19 west F l a g l e r  s t r e e t ,  s u i t e  1020 

Miami, F l o r i d a  33130 
305/371-1884 

M r  . Dani e1 Bandkl ayder 
S t e m  4300 
100 S.E. Second S t r e e t  
Miami, FL 33131 

RE: A l l i e d  v .  odyssey 

Dear M r .  Bandklayder: 

The o r i g i n a l  t r a n s c r i p t  o f  t h e  depos i t ion  o f  
STEPHEN SIDELKO taken on December 18, 2003 i n  t h e  
above cause i s  enclosed f o r  your f i l e s .  

The wi tness d i d  n o t  waive reading and s ign ing and 
was d u l y  n o t i f i e d  t o  come i n  and read t h e  
d e p o s i t i o n  t r a n s c r i p t .  

At tached t o  t h i s  l e t t e r  ou w i l l  f i n d  a copy 

Please a t t a c h  them t o  your co y o f  t h e  

AS o f  t h e  above date, t h e  wi tness has not  come 
i n  t o  read and s ign  t h e  t r a n s c r i p t ,  which has 
been noted on t h e  o r i g i n a l  t r a n s c r i p t .  

S incere ly ,  

o f  t h e  c o r r e c t i o n s  made : y t h e  wi tness. 

d e p o s i t i o n  so i t  w i l l  be comp f ete.  

Jamie Tay lo r ,  CCR, RPR 

cc:  Glenn smith,  Esq., Ruden & Mcclosky, 200 E. 
Broward B lvd . ,  F t .  Lauderdale, FL 33131 
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01-27-04 1 3 : 5 8  From-RUDEN McC!OSKY 1 4  FL NT 9547644986 T-495 P 03/03 F-597 

ERX4T.4 SHEET 

CEKTIFI CATE 

1, STEPHEN SJDELKO, do hereby certify that I have read the nanscfipt of my 
deposirion I d e n  on December 18, 2003 and bat lo the best of my knowledge, said lTanSCripliGn 
is vue and accurate (with the  exception of The following conections listed below). 

If I make changes in fbmi or substance to the dqosirion, I understand that 1 must S;ue a 
reason for rhe  change @ursuaat to Flanda Pule 1.310-e). 

PAGE 
L__z 
- LINE CfIAWGE 

-I__. REASON 

202 20 A d d  “including” before ‘?ax” Missed word 

203 8 In the firsf sentence, delele ’bwass)7 and Incomplete a s w m  
substiwe ‘?nay have been some”. M e r  
“krway”, add *‘subject to what die Bank 
woulil have allowed as a condition of 
fiJYd!SCi llg”. 

205 1 0 Delere “The number was not important to me“. 
Substitute ’“i’n not s u e  at this paint. As I said 
before, what w2s important to me war obtaining 
a CISR teff mre, which had been offered ra me 

Misunderstood 
question and 
c 1 ari ficarion 

at * 
252 2 Delere “built the pla t”  and substitute “considered Incomplete ifh~weil 

rhat rate, subject once again to whar the Bank 
would haw allowed as a condition offinancing 

and clarification 

283 4 Delete ‘‘He made ihat up”. Substimte “I Mi s u n d m m d  
didn’s get Chat informarion”. queslion 

283 6 Delete .‘yes”. SLrbsrituts “I believed that at leasr Mistake 
some exisring plants would be replaced by 
Odyssey-Type cell plants and may have 
commirnicatsd ihw io Pat”. 

Stephen Sidel- 


